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People For People

For many imagination is a dream. For
Hascol Petroleum Limited, imagination
is a reality. Our reality leads us to
achieve. This year, we explore our
continued progress which lead to our

achievements.

Our engine works on our endeavors, our road to success is lead with experience, diversified range of
our products and facilities, and our expertise. The future progress for Hascol Petroleum Limited is
invested in its stakeholders. We are a company that keeps it in front the need of its people. We believe

that our future is secured with your trust.

We implement our learnings to the development of our dreams. Our dreams are that of leaders not

followers. Our success is in our dreams
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Vision

To become the leading energy marketing company in
Pakistan through operational exellence, talent
management, business diversification and substainable
expansion.

Mission

To gain recognition and leadership in the hydrocarbon and energy sectors, by maximizing customer satisfaction
and shareholder value through continuous improvement, high quality human capital, appropriate technology,
and by adhering to the Company’s Core Values.
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Our initiative has obliged us to prepare
contingency plans to counter any adverse
event/threat that can potentially disrupt our
operations.

Respect local and international law so that we
set a prime example in the industry; and
formulate our operation in order to avoid any
potential breaches; thus setting an image of a
responsible organization.

In conclusion, our belief is based on a moral
obligation that any contribution we make today
sets the tone for our future; so we strive to be
accountable for achieving the best.

A progressive attitude which acknowledges that
all workplace injuries or disease are preventable;
employees are encouraged to report an incident
and any near misses; where a near miss is
defined as a situation which could have adverse
consequences if circumstances prevailed.

T —— —
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Employees have a responsibility to identify and
isolate any hazards during tasks, be it in the office
or out in operations; and our on the job continuous
training program are pivotal for achieving this
mission.
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES

AND BUSINESS STRATEGY

At HASCOL, our
focus on
sustainability
healthy ethics
plan is driven by
our long-standing
commitment to
doing what is
right.
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The objective of Hascol Petroleum
Limited is to create a retail
network catering the fuel needs of
its customer base throughout the
country;

reaching remote areas for domestic consumption and to cater the
energy needs of all the industrial clients in an efficient and profitable
manner.

Hascol Petroleum Limited recognizes oil and gas as an energy
resource integral to future needs for economic development in this
era of world globalization.

Our business strategy is devised in a manner that ensures fulfilling
energy needs in an environmentally viable and socially responsible
conduct. At Hascol Petroleum Limited, our aspiration is to attain a
high standard of performance with robust profitability as well as
strengthening market position in the competitive environment. We
closely liaise with our customers, partners and policy-makers to fulfill
everyone's needs.

A reputation is net built overnight. But when core values are in place,
customers give it recognition for international standards, good
governance and fair play.
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Hascol Petroleum Limited
transacts its business based
on the following Business
Principles; for which the
objectives are stated below:

Values of HASCOL,

We at HASCOL, follow a set of business principles
that let us achieve remarkable success in every
aspect. HASCOL Petroleum limited functions
effectively by aligning the following business goals,
these values are abide by the set of beliefs as
prescribed by our founding father — Unity, Faith and
Discipline. We strongly value the importance of trust,
openness, teamwork and professionalism, and take
great pride in how we do business. Hascol keeps its
doors open for feedback/suggestions to the
management and human resource and constantly
emphasis on employees to demonstrate a high level
of discipline in their role, establishing a culture of
ingenuity.

Competitive Environment

HASCOL focuses on building the competitive
environment that supports the practical
implementation of free and fair competition amongst
the industry members. We believe in following honest
business practices that are sustainable and rewarding
for the business in the long run. We seek to compete
ethically abiding by the local and international
legislation and within the framework of applicable
competition laws in the relevant jurisdiction.

Integrity and Honesty

For HASCOL, honesty, integrity, and fairness is what
matters the most in all aspects of its business; be it a
customers, suppliers, contractors or external
partnerships while expecting the same in our
interactions. The direct or indirect offer, facilitation
payments, soliciting or acceptance of bribes in any
form is unacceptable. Employees are expected to
avoid conflicts of interest between their private
activities and their part in the conduct of company
business. Insider trading and passing on sensitive
company information is strictly forbidden. HASCOL
encourages honesty in all its dealings and business
transactions that is reflected in accurate and fair
financial statements of the company.

Safeguarding the Human Capital

HASCOL vigilantly takes care that business functions
are performed safely. This is the reason we keep
aligned the health, safety, security, and environmental
management factors with our business functions to
achieve the high potential of our employees. Our

“Zero Harm Charter” revolves around the contribution
and importance our workforce provides in our growth.
At HASCOL, we promotes an open culture that allows
every employee to come forward and address their
personal concerns to the human resource on
confidential basis or any issue that may affect their
performance. In case of personal counselling general
management do take notice. HASCOL understand
that advancement in these matters will enhance their
business operations and keep on exploring the area of
improvement.

Economics

Profitability makes businesses fuelled up with growth,
sustainability and prosperity. It speaks about the
brand

value and customers’ commitment to the product &
service. Profitability helps us to simplify business
processes bringing in innovations to market more
effectively. On the other hand, the considerable
saving of costs frees up cash for investment for
another place or plan, further improving our prospects
for growth. HASCOL make sure to invest and
reallocate the resources in all aspects including,
social, economic and environmental on micro and
macro level, validating our decision making process
and their outcomes.

Meetings and Engagements

HASCOL gives importance to the views of it
stakeholders and this makes it obligatory for us to
share the right amount of information at right time. We
lift the confidence of legitimately interested parties by
representing the authentic and reliable information.
The regular investor's relations programme of
meetings between shareholders, analysts, senior
management and directors makes the operations
workout smoothly. This helps us to respond to their
concern easily, and providing them feedback honestly
and responsibly. Our employees also follow a
stringent rule of having formal work relations and not
to compromise on principles.

Compliance

We comply with all applicable laws and regulations of
the Islamic Republic of Pakistan where we operate.
Any breach is a matter of prompt scrutiny and
immediate action against the perpetrators. Within our
organization, we have also internal procedures which
are just as important as our daily tasks. General
Management ensures that employees follow the code
of conduct and work under the assigned principles
without following any shortcuts. Our retail sites ensure
the safe disposal of hazardous material and other
elements that cause environmental pollution.
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Business based on our Principles

Hascol's core values of unity, faith and discipline coupled
with honesty, integrity and respect for people are the basis
for all the work we do and are the foundation of our Business
Principles. These rules apply to all transactions, and are the
basis of the behavior expected of every employee in Hascol
Petroleum Limited at all times. Our reputation is based on
our actions and it will be upheld if we act in accordance with
the law and the Business Principles. We encourage our
business partners to follow these principles. We persuade
our employees to demonstrate leadership, accountability
and teamwork, and through these behaviors, to contribute to
the overall success of Hascol Petroleum Limited. It is the
responsibility of the management to lead by example, to
ensure that all employees are aware of these principles, and
behave in accordance with the spirit of this statement. The
application of these principles is underpinned by a
comprehensive set of assurance procedures which are
designed to make sure that our employees understand the

principles and confirm that they act in accordance with them.

As part of the assurance system, it is also the responsibility
of management to provide employees with safe and
confidential channels to raise concerns and report instances
of non-compliance. In return, it is the responsibility of the
employees to report suspected breaches of the Business
Principles to the management. The Business Principles have
been fundamental to how we conduct our business and
living by them is crucial to our continued success.

COUNTRY POLITICS

a. Of Companies

Hascol Petroleum Limited pursues its activities within the
laws and statutes of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan
whereby our aim is to legitimately accomplish our
commercial objectives. The initiatives of Triple Bottom
Reporting are gradually evolving among the corporate circles
of Pakistan, where the pillars of focus are People, Profit and
Planet and Corporate Social Responsibility. Throughout our
general principle statement, there will be

extracts of practical implementation of the TBR charter.

Hascol Petroleum Limited

as a rule of thumb does not make payments to political
parties or organization, or to their affiliates /representatives
whatsoever. The Company does not take part in any
external/internal affairs with regulatory bodies unless
compliance issue arises or authorized instruction permits us
to do so. However, with such dealings, Hascol Petroleum
Limited has the right to make our position known on any
matters which affect us, our employees, our customers, our
shareholders or the local communities in which we operate,
in a manner which is in accordance with our ethical values
and the best practices of our company.

b. Of Employees

Hascol Petroleum Limited has encouraged the need of a
friendly work environment and identified the deal conduct for
a decent workplace culture and interaction with all

stakeholders. Harassment has been explicitly stated and
what is unacceptable includes: jokes, insults, threats, and
other unwelcome actions about a person’s race, gender,
age, religion, ancestry, social or economic status or
educational background is strictly forbidden. Nor is any
employee eligible to verbally or physically conduct
himself/herself that upsets another's work performance
creating a fearful or hostile work environment. Hascol
Petroleum Limited has ensured to provide safe working
environment based on our statements in the “Zero Harm
Charter”. Also, we discourage intoxication or use of illegal
substance at work premises and employees violating shall
be subjected to disciplinary action. Where individuals wish to
engage in political activities in the community, including
standing for election to public office, they will be given the
opportunity to do so where this is appropriate keeping in view
the specific circumstances of that particular scenario.

Business Compliance, &
Ethics Guideline

We have a Business Ethics Charter by
the name of BUSINESS, COMPLIANCE &
ETHICS GUIDELINE that dictates our
commitment to fair dealing and high-
lighting ourselves as a professional
entity in the oil marketing sector. Our
initiative is to avoid any consequential
events due to non-conformance of local
and foreign legislation and be subjected
to penal scrutiny. Apart from General
Business Principles; Hascol Petroleum
Limited has placed this additional
guideline for its operational engage-
ment with the relevant stakeholders.

Customer Relation

Hascol Petroleum Limited will compete for business
aggressively and honestly in the competitive oil marketing
industry, and shall constrict itself in the following ways:

e Will not misrepresent any products, services and prices.

e Will not make false claims about our competitors.

e Product alteration / blending or change in specifications
is only allowed if requested by the customer, or
permitted by regulation or commercial practice.

e Only supply safe products and services that meet all
applicable government standards and regulations.

Hascol Annual Report



Supplier Relation

Hascol Petroleum Limited shall ensure all procurement decisions are

based on best value received by us and a supplier analysis needs to

be conducted. Base the purchase of goods and services only on the
merits of price, quality, performance and suitability.

¢ Avoid reciprocal agreements or exchange of favors.

e The fee or price paid for goods and services by Hascol
Petroleum Limited shall represent the value of the goods or
services provided. Hascol Petroleum Limited shall ensure its
maximum ability to refrain from using suppliers who participate in
the following activities:

e Supply unsafe products or services.

e Break laws or regulations.

e Hidden deals and unscrupulous commitments.

Entertainment & Gifts

Gifts, favor or entertainment should not be accepted or

provided if it will obligate or appear to obligate the

person who receives it. Employees may accept or give

gifts, favors and entertainment subject to the following

criteria:

* Not against the laws and policies of other parties’ company.

e Not intended to serve as a bribe, payoff or to get improper
influence.

e Should not have been requested or asked to be provided.

e Should not affect business relationship in any negative manner.

Information Sharing

Unless sharing information with external suppliers and customers is
against the law or our standard business practise, Hascol Petroleum
Limited shall encourage sharing information when it may improve the
quality or use of our products. Passing on internal memos and
confidential documentation / paperwork is strictly forbidden; if Hascol
proprietary information is given outside the company, it has to be
ensured that a written confidentiality and non-disclosure agreement
is prepared, and that proper controls are established to manage the
flow of information. Otherwise, the concerned employee is in serious
breach of the business ethics and subject to prosecution.

General Public Relation

Hascol Petroleum Limited considers the general public as its brand
ambassador; our brilliance in products and services must outshine
that of competitors; thus allow for our market share to rise at our
desired optimal level. Dispelling rumours and misinforming about
competitors products and services to the public is highly prohibited
and any competitor that indulges in such activities must be dealt with
the guidelines prescribed by OGRA and other regulations and
legislation. Our business ethics guide us to avoid unnecessary
comparisons and benchmarking of retrospective performance of
competitors.

Society and Local Communities

Hascol Petroleum Limited aims to be society’s best friend and foster
healthy relationships within our communities. Our aim is to monitor
possible impacts of the actions we pursue and ensure that we create
recreational facilities adjacent to our retail outlets with provision of fast
food franchise chains. This was an idea provisioned by our marketing
team to provide a means of light entertainment to the local residents.
In addition, Hascol Petroleum Limited takes a constructive interest in
societal matters directly or indirectly related to our business and

donation payments for social causes are made on a regular basis.
Two well-renowned charities are regular recipients of our donations.
Employees can in some instances given time of for appropriate
volunteer work and can also refer to legitimate registered.

Responsibilities

Hascol Petroleum Limited recognizes its responsibilities towards all

the stakeholders. The management is responsible to continuously

assess these priorities and discharge them on the basis of its
assessment. These responsibilities pertain to:

e Protect shareholders' investment, and provide competitive
long-term return; benchmarking other leading companies in the
oil marketing industry as well as to create a brand name; and
supplement growth of its affiliate brand FUCHS.

e Developing and maintaining a staunch customer base by
providing products and services which offer value in terms of
price, quality, safety and positive environmental and commercial
expertise thereby create a brand loyalty of Hascol in customers
by offering the best possible products and services.

e Employees are our most important assets and they receive
utmost respect, rights, good and safe working conditions and to
commensurate them with competitive terms and conditions of
employment. We appreciate innovation and hard work and
regular appraisals based on performance are some of the few
means which we use to promote the development and best use
of the talents of our employees. We recognize that commercial
success depends on the full commitment of all employees.

e The external stakeholders are the contractors, dealers and
suppliers with whom we seek to transact business which is
mutually beneficial. The ability to promote these principles
effectively will be an important factor in the decision to enter into
or remain in such relationship.

e Qverall, Hascol Petroleum Limited believes in conducting our
business as responsible corporate members of the society, to
comply with applicable laws and regulations, to support
fundamental human rights in line with the legitimate role of
business, and to give proper regard to health, safety, security
and the environment.

General Principles, Business, Compliance and Ethics and Zero
Harm Charter is subject to constant review and updated as per
our business requirements. We seek continuous feedback from
a variety of stakeholders and vested interest group as the
dynamic and unpredictable nature of the oil marketing business
demands us to be proactive.

I welcome the sincere initiatives of any
respective reader of our General Principles
and overall this report to present Hascol
Petroleum Limited with any clarification and
constructive feedback they deem has to be

brought to our attention.
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The year 2018 was a very challenging
year both for Hascol and for the other
Oil Marketing Companies. Certain
Government steps like stopping the use
of Furnace Oil in power generation,
severe currency devaluation to the tune
of 30%, raising of interest rates by the
State Bank of Pakistan, all had a
negative impact on our profitability. As
such, despite the hard work by the entire
Management Team of Hascol our results
have been disappointing and we ended
the year with a very modest profit.

The response of the Ministry of Petroleum and
OGRA to the problems being faced by Olil
Marketing Companies have also had no
satisfactory response, thereby, creating a lot of
uncertainty about the business model of the Hascol
and other Oil Marketing Companies. Our efforts
are continuing to engage the Government and
make them realize the seriousness of the situation.

| am pleased to advise that our joint venture
company Hascol Terminals Limited has finally
started work. The terminal was completed in
December last year but due to the delay in getting
Ministry of Defence approval, the formal opening
was delayed by more than 2 months. With this
terminal, our supply chain management will
become more efficient and thereby, give us a
competitive edge over some of our competitors.

| am also happy to report that, we were able to
complete our oil storage facility at Thalian (near
Islamabad) and at Kotlajam. The completion of all
these storage facilities will again benefit our supply
chain management and give us a significant
advantage over most of our competitors.

Our Lube Oil Blending & Grease Plant is almost at
a finishing stage and we are hoping to commission
it by the June this year. This should give a big boost
to our lubricant sales and profitability of the
company.

As, | mentioned last year Hascol has formally
started the marketing of LPG in cylinders under the
Hascol brand. We are confident that this business
will also become a major profit centre of the
company in 2019.

Finally, 1 would like to thank the Board for their
guidance in pursuing an aggressive business
strategy and in making recommendations in our
corporate governance. | would also like to place on
record the efforts of the management team and all
employees for efficiently responding to the
challenges facing the company, due to factors
outlined above.

I am confident that 2019 will prove to be a much
better year than 2018 and the company will
maintain its growth and profitability momentum.

Chairy&/Director
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Directors’
Report

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Annual
Report of the Company along with audited standalone and
consolidated financial statements and auditors’ report thereon for
the year ended 31st December 2018.

1. Financial Results

The profit for the year ended 31st December 2018 after providing for administrative, marketing and
distribution expenses, financial and other charges amounts to:

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before taxation 651,882
Taxation (444,739)
Profit for the year 207,143

(Rupees)
Earnings per share 1.14

Appropriations and movement in reserves have been disclosed in the Statement of Changes in
Equity on page 51 of the Annual Report.

During the year the Company posted a profit after tax of Rs. 207,143,000 (2017: Rs. 1,401,248,000),
with sales volume at 2,577,937 MT (2017: 2,591,978 MT). The Gross Profit stood at Rs. 10,276,649
(2017: Rs. 7,388,976) representing an increase of 39%.

The standalone EPS for the year stood at Rs. 1.14 as compared to Rs. 8.56 (restated) in 2017.

The main reason for the decline in profitability has been the losses incurred due to devaluation of the
Pakistani rupee. As you are aware, our rupee has devalued by more than 30% during the last 12 months.
As, there is no mechanism for hedging the currency movements, all the oil companies, which import
petroleum products, have suffered huge financial losses. Our various representations to the Ministry and the
OGRA have not been sympathetically considered by the Government and this is putting a lot of pressure on
the margins of the Oil Marketing Companies. Our margins have not been revised for over the last 09
months, despite increase in prices and operating cost (due to devaluation and general inflationary pressure
in the economy).

Moreover, interest rates have also gone up sharply and as such, the cost of borrowing has increased
considerably, thereby, eroding our profitability.

The Government needs to take a more sympathetic view to the problems facing Oil Marketing Companies
like Hascol, who are making huge investments in storage infrastructure and retail development.
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2. Adoption of the Companies Act, 2017 for preparation of Financial Statements

During the year, Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) was adopted for the first time for the preparation of
financial statements. The Act brought certain changes with regard to preparation and presentation of annual
and interim financial statements of the Company. These changes include recognition criteria of revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment, changes in nomenclature of primary statements, etc. All such
changes have been duly considered in the preparation of the financial statements.

3. Cash and Stock Dividends

The Company had already paid an interim cash dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share i.e. 35% and bonus shares
in the proportion of one (1) share for every four (4) shares held i.e. 25% for the year ended 31st December
2018. The Company in its meeting held on 3rd April 2019 announced a final dividend of bonus shares in the
proportion of 1 share for every 10 shares held i.e. 10% for the year ended 31st December 2018. The total
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2018 stands at 35% cash dividend and 35% Bonus shares.

4. Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The management of Hascol Petroleum Limited is committed to good corporate governance and complying
with the best practices. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, the directors are pleased to
state as follows:

(a) The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company present its state of affairs fairly, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(b) The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under the Companies Act, 2017.

(c) The Company has followed consistent and appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of the financial
statements. Changes in accounting policies, wherever made, have been adequately disclosed in the
financial statements. Accounting estimates are on the basis of prudent and reasonable judgement.

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of the financial statements and deviation, if any, has been adequately disclosed.

(e) The system of internal financial control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored regularly.

(f) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
5. Health, Safety & Environment (HSE)

HSE is an integral part of the Company’s management philosophy and values. HPL aims to achieve
business excellence and strives to protect people, environment, assets and reputation. An integrated HSE
management manual is in place and has been implemented by the Company. This covers all operational
areas and incorporates regulatory and best industrial practices. The Company recorded its 2nd consecutive
year with Zero LTI and achieved 2.3 million safe man-hours. Intensive HSE trainings, drills, audits and
inspections are conducted regularly. Altogether, 8,545 HSE training man-hours in 474 sessions, 182 drills
and 754 audits and inspections were done in 2018.

All near misses and incidents are being reported and investigated as per the Company’s Incident Reporting
and Investigation System (IRIS) and remedial measures are taken. An Emergency Response Plan (ERP) is

in place. Mutual Aid Emergency Response Plans (MAERP) are also practiced.
Hascol Annual Report



6. Human Resource

The Company’s human capital is its real strength and competitive advantage. With the expansion of
operations and diversification into new businesses like LPG, Chemicals, Aviation and the construction of the
Lube Oil Blending and Grease Plant, a major recruitment drive was undertaken and 295 people, including
45 trainees, were inducted in 2018.

Concurrently, intensive training programs have been conducted, both in-house as well as externally, to
enhance the competencies and performance of employees, and a record 19,365 training man-hours were
completed. A management development program is also being implemented. Internships are offered to
promising students from local and foreign institutions, and a trainee program for engineers, business and
accounting graduates is underway in which 80 trainees, at different stages, are working in various
assignments across the organization.

Training Type-wise Man-hours

9000 8545
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4000 e
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2000
1000 860 I

0

Core Logistics and Retail Managerial HSSE

Professional ~ Operations

As the organizational structure grows and changes to meet business needs, it is continuously being
rightsized, job analyses, and salary surveys conducted and employee engagement initiatives like the Annual
Conference, Women’s Day, Sports, Independence Day, Eid Milan, and other employee activities etc., are
organized.

We provide a conducive professional environment for employees’ continuous improvement and career
development. New offices are being acquired and equipped with state-of-the-art facilities, workstations with
distinctive architecture as well as training rooms for in-house trainings have been set up.

In recognition of our HR initiatives, Hascol Petroleum was conferred the third prize amongst Large National
Companies in Pakistan for Best HR Practices 2018 by the Employers Federation of Pakistan (EFP).

7. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company has a roadmap with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility to support in the areas of
education, health and environment through various philanthropic efforts. During the current year, the
Company contributed Rs. 11.79 million to various education institutions, hospitals and charitable
organizations.

Hascol is now a member of the prestigious United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) and submitted its First
Communication on Progress (COP) Report to the UNGC. This report reaffirms our commitment to the 10
Principles of UNGC and mentions the actions that Hascol has undertaken to implement them. HPL was also
conferred the first prize amongst multinationals in Pakistan at the United Nations Global Compact Best
Practices Sustainability award ceremony.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Corporate Governance

The Company remains committed to conducting its business in line with the best practices of the Code of
Corporate Governance, the Companies Act 2017 and the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. Details are particularly mentioned in the Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017.

Key Operational and Financial Data

A statement summarizing key operational and financial data for the last six years is given on page 27 of the

report.

Contribution to the National Exchequer and Economy

During the year your Company has made a total contribution of Rs. 64.3 billion to the national exchequer on
account of import duties, general sales tax, income tax and other government levies.

Composition of Board

Total number of Directors:

(a) Male: 7
(b) Female: Nil
Composition:

(@) Independent Directors:

(b)  Non-executive Directors:

(c) Executive Directors:

Mr

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr

. Najmus Saquib Hameed

. Mumtaz Hasan Khan

. Farooq Rahmatullah Khan
. Liaquat Al

. Abdul Aziz Khalid

. Farid Arshad Masood

. Saleem Butt

Board Changes During the Year 2018

During the year, Mr. Farid Arshad Masood was appointed as director in place of Mr. Paul Anthony

Himsworth.

Board of Directors and Meetings of the Board held during the year 2018

During the year, seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the attendance of each Director

is given below:

S.

=

Mr. Liaquat Ali

O~NO OIS WN PR

Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid
Mr. Farid Arshad Masood
Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth*

o Director’s Name

Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan(Chairman)

Mr. Saleem Butt (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Faroog Rahmatullah Khan

Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed

*Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth retired as director on 23rd July 2018.

Meetings Attended

ANNOOBANINO
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14. Board Committee Meetings held during the year 2018

During the year, the Audit Committee held five (5) meetings. The attendance record of the Directors is as

follows:

S.No Director’s Name Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed (Chairman) 4
2 Mr. Liaquat Ali (Member) 5
3 Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid (Member) 4

During the year, the Human Resource Committee held one (1) meeting. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

S.No Director’s Name Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed (Chairman) 1
2 Mr. Farid Arshad Masood (Member)* 1
3 Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Member) 1
4 Mr. Saleem Butt (Member) 1

*Mr. Paul Anthony Himsworth retired as director on 23rd July 2018.

15. Performance Evaluation of the Board

The performance of the Board of your Company was evaluated during the year. The Board members
effectively bring diversity to the Board and constitute a mix of independent and non-executive directors. The
overall performance of the Board is good and the board members are aligned with the results of the
evaluation.

16. Directors’ Remuneration

The Company has a formal and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Companies Act, 2017. The non-executive and independent
directors, are paid a fee of PKR 100,000 each for attending board meeting and Committee meeting as
approved by shareholders in the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 28th April 2016.

17. Directors Training Programme

Presently, three (03) directors namely, Mr. Faroog Rahmatullah Khan, Najmus Saquib Hameed and Mr.
Liaquat Ali have acquired prescribed certification under the Directors’ Training Program by the Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG).

18. Value of Investment in Post — Employment Benefit Funds

The Company maintains retirement benefit plans for its employees. Contribution to provident and gratuity
funds on the basis of audited financial statements as at 31st December 2018 are as follows:

(Rupees in ‘000)

Provident Fund 29,834
Gratuity 34,275

19. External Auditors

The external auditors Messrs Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for the
re-appointment.
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20.

21.

22.

The Board has recommended the appointment of Messrs Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman as Auditors
of the Company for the year 2019, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the next AGM to be held on
29th April 2019.

Pattern of Shareholding

The statement of Pattern of Shareholding as at 31st December 2018 is given on page 24 of the report.
Acknowledgement

The Board acknowledges the dedication, commitment and hard work of the Company’s Chiefs, Head of
Departments, Managers and all of its employees, and also place on record the gratitude to the shareholders,
financial institutions and Government authorities for their continuous support and confidence in the
Company.

Future Outlook

A reasonable indication of future prospects is discussed in the Chairman’s Review on page 14.

Thanking you all.
On behalf of the Board

'] . "_.'.,‘ / j‘ ,’,.
' | ' | -
_MW f{ép% “,l \:Lgutugﬁ
D/irecf\f)r Director
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Pattern of Shareholding

As of December 31, 2018

Categories of Shareholders

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
MUMTAZ HASAN KHAN

LIAQUAT ALI

FAROOQ RAHMATULLAH KHAN

NAJMUS SAQUIB HAMEED

SALEEM BUTT

NAZIA MALIK

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
FOSSIL ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MARSHAL GAS (PVT) LIMITED

Executives
Public Sector Companies and Corporations

Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds

Mutual Funds

CDC - TRUSTEE JS LARGE CAP. FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSALASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND

CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND

MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
CDC-TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND - II
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ENERGY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE DAWOOD ISLAMIC FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND

M C F S L-TRUSTEE ASKARI ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ENERGY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ENERGY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC INVESTMENT FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC GROWTH FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA MULTIASSET FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PENSION FUND EQUITY ACCOUNT
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND

General Public

a. Local

b. Foreign

Foreign Companies
OTHERS

Totals

Shareholders holding 5% or more

MUMTAZ HASAN KHAN

FOSSIL ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
MARSHAL GAS (PVT) LIMITED
VITOL DUBAI LIMITED

Shareholders

NNN PP

27

21

PRRPRRPPPRPRRRRPRRPRPRRPRPPEPRERRPRRPRPRPRPRPREPREPRERRERRRRPRRRPEPRERERERRLRLRER

7302

21
118
7548

Shares Held

34,110,203
3,974,135
411,638
79,926
399,608
1,683,650

19,288,718
11,653,157

2,046,223

11,152,791

22,815,546
528,210
65,556,117
3,124,402
181,018,800

Shares Held

34,110,203
19,288,718
11,653,157
49,705,956

Percentage

18.84
220
0.23

0.04
0.22
0.93

10.66
6.44

1.13

6.16

0.00
0.09
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.12
0.74
0.00
0.02
0.00
0.07
0.00

0.00
0.03
0.00
0.06
0.01
0.01
0.00
0.01
0.00
0.09
0.00

0.09
0.01
0.01
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.00
0.17
0.14
0.29
0.00

0.04
0.07
0.01
0.00
0.02
0.02

12.60
0.29
36.22
173
100.00

Percentage

18.84
10.66

6.44
27.46
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Pattern of Shareholding

As of December 31, 2018

# Of Shareholders

Shareholdings' Slab

Total Shares Held

1399 1 to 100 50,306
1597 101 to 500 421,548
2412 501 to 1000 2,071,810
1525 1001 to 5000 3,435,262
252 5001 to 10000 1,842,338
79 10001 to 15000 998,715
67 15001 to 20000 1,198,029
31 20001 to 25000 721,044
22 25001 to 30000 613,444
12 30001 to 35000 385,790
13 35001 to 40000 487,257
10 40001 to 45000 434,730
9 45001 to 50000 430,534
7 50001 to 55000 363,946
3 55001 to 60000 175,320
6 60001 to 65000 376,582
3 65001 to 70000 203,433
6 70001 to 75000 437,265
6 75001 to 80000 469,107
3 80001 to 85000 244,543
2 85001 to 90000 174,912
2 90001 to 95000 188,900
2 95001 to 100000 194,945
2 100001 to 105000 202,698
3 105001 to 110000 324,438
3 115001 to 120000 356,125
2 120001 to 125000 246,250
1 130001 to 135000 133,970
1 135001 to 140000 137,300
2 140001 to 145000 281,972
1 145001 to 150000 150,000
3 155001 to 160000 466,664
3 165001 to 170000 500,921
1 170001 to 175000 171,385
1 180001 to 185000 185,000
2 185001 to 190000 375,000
2 190001 to 195000 382,791
2 195001 to 200000 392,527
1 200001 to 205000 201,715
2 215001 to 220000 432,522
1 230001 to 235000 234,850
1 235001 to 240000 235,500
1 240001 to 245000 243,500
3 245001 to 250000 749,195
1 255001 to 260000 257,125
2 260001 to 265000 523,948
1 270001 to 275000 271,750
1 275001 to 280000 276,000
1 290001 to 295000 293,200
2 295001 to 300000 596,250
1 325001 to 330000 325,625
1 335001 to 340000 337,100
1 345001 to 350000 350,000
3 370001 to 375000 1,120,742
1 385001 to 390000 387,500
1 395001 to 400000 399,600
1 410001 to 415000 411,638
1 420001 to 425000 425,000
1 450001 to 455000 451,625
2 495001 to 500000 996,067
1 505001 to 510000 506,550
1 525001 to 530000 529,775
1 810001 to 815000 812,500
1 905001 to 910000 907,442
1 930001 to 935000 935,000
1 1040001 to 1045000 1,041,299
1 1335001 to 1340000 1,339,117
1 1370001 to 1375000 1,371,632
1 1425001 to 1430000 1,427,250
1 1580001 to 1585000 1,583,125
1 1680001 to 1685000 1,681,982
1 2135001 to 2140000 2,135,213
1 2480001 to 2485000 2,483,235
1 3900001 to 3905000 3,902,125
1 3970001 to 3975000 3,974,135
1 4255001 to 4260000 4,257,508
1 8435001 to 8440000 8,438,125
1 11650001 to 11655000 11,653,157
1 18475001 to 18480000 18,476,218
1 34110001 to 34115000 34,110,203
1 49705001 to 49710000 49,705,956
7548 181,018,800
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Sales - net Gross profit

275.6 | 10.3

27.79% billion 39.09% billion




Key Operational and Financial Data

Six Years Summary

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Profit and Loss Account Rs/mn
Revenue (Gross) 275,604 215,662 128,759 94,065 99,061 57,469
Revenue (net) 233,607 173,739 76,774 84,856 49,820 25,992
Cost of good sold 224,167 166,851 95,000 74,018 82,877 48,506
Gross profit 10,277 7,389 4,708 2,839 2,037 1,360
Operating profit 5,996 4,528 2,627 1,630 1,237 579
Profit before tax 652 2,659 2,154 1,197 865 425
Profit after tax 207 1,401 1,133 640 392 218
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation 2,953 3,751 2,987 1,788 1,264 633
Balance Sheet
Share Capital 1,810 1,448 1,207 906 656 656
Property, plant and equipment 22,563 13,680 8,689 6,278 3,291 2,436
Inventory 22,615 18,557 16,478 8,470 3,474 3,154
Current assets 49,485 42,184 33,710 17,916 10,975 6,557
Current liabilities 56,875 43,798 35,035 20,171 12,059 7,630
Non current assets 24,447 15,911 10,940 8,703 4,642 2,798
Non current liabilities 4,573 4,031 3,510 662 459 281
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 4,389 1,026 1,143 1,257 321 358
Summary of cash flow statements
Cash flows from operating activities (7,819) 1,276 2,421 4,364 722 948
Cash flows from investing activities (5,517) (5,825) (2,933) (2,290) (1,793) (642)
Cash flows from financing activities 1,518 4,748 1,785 104 1,367 (214)
Net cash flows during the year (11,818) 199 1,273 2,178 296 93
Investor Information %
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit ratio 4.40 4.25 5.16 3.70 2.40 2.73
Net profit ratio 0.09 0.81 1.22 1.48 0.75 0.79
EBITDA margin 1.07 1.74 2.18 1.90 1.28 1.10
Cost / Income ratio 1.12 0.77 0.79 0.74 0.65 1.35
Return on equity 0.02 0.14 0.24 0.25 0.23 0.36
Liquidity Ratios Ratio
Current ratio 0.87:1 0.96:1 0.97:1 0.88:1 0.91:1 0.88:1
Quick ratio 0.47:1 054:1 0.50:1 0.47:1 0.62:1 0.47:1
%
Cash flows from operations to sales -3.35 0.73 242 5.68 0.85 1.90
Cash to current liabilities 0.15 0.22 0.23 0.20 0.15 0.11
Investment / Market Ratios Rs
Earnings per share 114 8.56 9.41 9.39 5.89 5.97
Breakup value per share without surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 55.90 63.81 41.12 37.53 30.67 16.54
Breakup value per share with surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 86.21 70.89 50.59 47.94 34.21 22.01
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Notice of Seventeen (17th)
Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Seventeen (17th) Annual General Meeting of Hascol
Petroleum Limited will be held on Monday, 29th April 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at the
Marriott Hotel Karachi, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1. To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 10th October 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended
31st December 2018, together with the directors’ and auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the financial year 2019.
4. Special Business

To approve the issue of bonus shares in the proportion of 1 share for every 10 shares held i.e. 10 %, as
recommended by the Board of Directors, and if deemed appropriate, pass the following ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT a sum of Rs. 181,018,800/- out of the Company's reserves be capitalized and applied
towards the issue of 18,101,880 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each and allotted as fully paid bonus shares to
the members who are registered in the books of the Company as at the close of business on 22nd April
2019, in the proportion of 1 share for every 10 ordinary shares held and that such new shares shall rank
pari passu with the existing ordinary shares.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT fractional entitlement of the members shall be consolidated into whole
shares and sold in the stock market and the sale proceeds shall be donated to any registered charitable
institution.
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to give effect to this
resolution and to do or cause to do all acts, deeds and things that may be necessary or required for the
issue, allotment and distribution of bonus shares.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017, pertaining to the special business referred
above is annexed to the notice of the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

8th April 2019 Zeeshan Ul Haq
Karachi Company Secretary

Hascol Annual Report




NOTES:
Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 23rd April 2019 to 29th April 2019 (both
days inclusive). Transfers in the form of physical transfers / CDS Transaction IDs received in order at the Com-
pany’s Share Registrar, Messrs Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B,
S.M.C.H.S., Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, by close of business on 22nd April 2019 will be treated in time to attend
and vote at the meeting and for the purpose of the above entitlement to the transferees.

Participation in the Meeting

Only those persons, whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 22nd April 2019,
are entitled to attend, participate in, and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another
person as his / her proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received
at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting and must be duly
stamped, signed and witnessed. A form of proxy is attached herewith in the Annual Report.

Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification S.R.O. 787(1)/2014
dated 8th September 2014 has permitted companies to circulate Audited Financial Statements along with Notice
of Annual General Meeting to its members through e-mail. Accordingly, members are hereby requested to
convey their consent and e-mail address for receiving Audited Financial Statements and Notice through e-mail.
In order to avalil this facility a Standard Request Form is available at the Company’s website www.hascol.com,
to be sent along with copy of his / her / its CNIC / Passport to the Company’s Share Registrar.

Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of receiving the same
by post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please ignore this notice.

Notice to Members Who Have Not Provided CNIC

SECP vide Notification S.R.O. 19(1)/2014 dated 10th January 2014 read with Notification S.R.O 831(1)/2012
dated 5th July 2012 require that the dividend warrant(s) should bear CNIC number of the registered member or
the authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members. Accordingly, in case of non-receipt of
the copy of a valid CNIC, the Company would be unable to comply with the directives of SECP and therefore will
be constrained under SECP order dated July 13, 2015 to withhold the dispatch of dividend warrants of such
shareholders. The shareholders while sending CNIC must quote their respective folio number and name of the
Company.

Consent for video Conference Facility

In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location to participate in the meeting
through video conference at least 7 days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility a request
is to be submitted to the Company Secretary of the Company.

Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2018 have been made
available on the Company’s website www.hascol.com.

Change of Address

Members are requested to immediately notify the Company’s Share Registrar, Messrs Central Depository Com-

pany of Pakistan Limited of any change in their registered address.
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Payment of Dividend through electronic mode (Mandatory)

Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed Company to pay
cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the
entitled shareholders.

In order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to fill in Electronic Credit
Mandate Form available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Regis-
trar of the Company, in case of physical shares.

In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to sharehold-
er’s broker / participant / CDC account services.

Guidelines for CDC Account Holders

CDC account holders are required to comply with the following guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 of 2000
dated 26th January 2000 issued by SECP:

A. For Attending the Meeting

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per CDC regulations, shall authenticate his /
her identity by showing his / her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at
the time of attending the meeting; and

(i) In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in
group account their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC regulations, shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement;

(i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two (2) persons whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form;

(i) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form;

(iv) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting; and

(v) In case of corporate entities, the board of directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity shall be submitted (unless
it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form to the Company.

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017
Issue of Bonus Shares

The Directors are of the view that the Company’s financial position justifies capitalization of Rs. 181,018,800/-
out of the Company's reserves and applied towards the issue of 18,101,880 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each and
allotted as fully paid bonus shares in the proportion of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10) ordinary shares
held. The Directors of the Company, directly or indirectly, are not personally interested in this issue, except to
the extent of their shareholding in the Company.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

Hascol Petroleum Limited (herein after referred to as ‘the Company’) has complied
with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations™) in the following manner:

1.

The total number of Directors are seven (7) as per the following:

(@) Male: 7
(b) Female: Nil

The composition of Board is as follows:

(a) Independent Directors: Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed
(b) Non-executive Directors: Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
Mr. Faroog Rahmatullah Khan
Mr. Liaquat Ali

Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid
Mr. Farid Arshad Masood

(c) Executive Directors: Mr. Saleem Butt

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies,
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has approved a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of Board.

The Company has a formal and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company and the Companies Act, 2017.

Presently, three (03) directors of the Company have acquired prescribed certification under the Directors’
Training Program by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG). Following directors have
attended the Directors’ Training Program:

e Mr. Faroog Rahmatullah Khan

e Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed
e Mr. Liaquat Ali
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including
terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee:
Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed Chairman
Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid
Mr. Liaquat Ali

b) Strategy Committee:
Mr. Faroog Rahmatullah Khan Chairman
Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
Mr. Abdul Aziz Khalid
Mr. Saleem Butt

¢) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed Chairman
Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan

Mr. Farid Arshad Masood

Mr. Saleem Butt

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/ half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses
and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by
the ICAP

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.
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An instinct for growth’

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT \xkhano

T 492 20 47 295156
To the members of Flascol Petroleum Limited ".;:“. S01. 7048 s

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companics
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared
by the Board of Directors of Hasecol Petroleum Limited for the vear ended
December 31, 2018 1 accordance with the requirements of regulanion 40 of the

Regulatons

The tesponsibility for compliance with the Regulanions is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibdity s 10 review whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the stanus of the Company's compliance with the provisons of the
Regulatons and report if it does not and w0 highlight any non-compliance wath the
requiremnents of the Regulations. A review Is lmited primanly 10 scueries of the
Company’s pessonnel and review of vanous documents prepated by the Company 1o
comply wath the Reguladons,

As a part of our audit of the Hpancial statements we are required o obtun an
understandmy of the accountng and inteenal contral systems sufficient © plan the
~auchit and develop an effective audit appeoach. We-are not required tn consider whether
the Board of Directoes’ statement on intermal control covers all risks and controls or
to form an opinion on the effectuveness of such mremal conerols, the Company's
corpoete governance procedures and nsks.

The Regulations tequire the Company to place before the Audit Commuttee, and
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place befare the Board of Directars for
thar review. and appeoval, s related party transactions and also ensure compliance
with the requiremenis of section 208 of the Companses Act, 2017. We are only
requised and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Commutree. We have nor earned out procedures 1o assess and determune the
Company’s process for identification of related pattes and thar whether the related
pasty tratssactions were undertaken at arm's length pace o not
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Bascd on our review, nothing Bas come to our attenfion which causes 0s to
believe that the Sttemsent of Complance does not approprately refloct the
Company's comphance, s all matenial respects, with the requirements contained i
the Regulations as applicable 10 the Company for the year ended December 31,
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Statement of Compliance with The Sukuk
(Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017 and
Issue of Sukuk Regulations, 2015

This statement is being presented to comply with the requirements under “Issue of Sukuk Regulations, 2015”
and “Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). This Statement of Compliance is for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Company) entered into an arrangement for issue of Sukuk amounting to Rs.
2,000 Million inclusive of Green Shoe Option of Rs. 500 Million, on December 31, 2015 for a period of 6
years including a grace period of 1 year. We state that the Company is in compliance with the Sukuk
Features and Shari’ah Requirements in accordance with the Regulations.

We specifically confirm that:
The Company has established policies and procedures for all Sukuk related transactions to comply with
Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements.

The Company has implemented and maintained such internal control and risk management systems that
are necessary to mitigate the risk of non-compliances of the Sukuk Features and Shari’ah Requirements,
whether due to fraud or error;

The Company has a process to ensure that the management and where appropriate the board of
directors, and personnel responsible to ensure the Company’s compliance with the Sukuk Features and
Shari’ah Requirements are properly trained and systems are properly updated.

The Sukuk Features and Shari'ah Requirements in accordance with issue of the Regulations comprises
of the following:

a. Requirements of Shariah Structure and Transaction Documents as stated in the Information
Memorandum, with respect to issuance of Sukuk:

e Trust Deed

e Musharka Agreements

* Payment Agreements

* Purchase Undertaking

» Asset Purchase Agreement

* Investment Agency Agreement

»  Security Documents

b. Guidelines of the relevant Shariah Standards, issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization of the
Islamic Financial Institutions, as notified by the SECP;

c. Requirements of the relevant Islamic Financial Accounting Standard as notified by the SECP; and

d. Other compliances specified in the Regulations as issued by the SECP.

The above Statement has been duly endorsed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Directo * Director =
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Independent Assurance Report to the Boardof Directors GRANT THORNTON ANUM IANNAN
of Hascol Petroleum Limited on Shari®ah Compliance of sy el WP
Rs. 2 billion privately placed Sukuk B it

T o2 10 ¥907 284008
I+ XA

Introduction o L8

We were engaged by the Boaurd of Dircctors (“the Board™) of Hascol Perroleum Linered (“the
Company”) 10 express an opinion on the annexed Seaatement of Complunce (“Statement™)
prepased by the management for the pear ended December 31, 2018,with Sukuk Features and
Shan'ah Requitesnents about whether the aanexed Smwement presente tairdy the status of
Compliance with Sukuk Features and Sharin'ah Requirements as sequised under under [ssue
of Sukuk Regulations, 2015 and Sukuk ipvately placed) Regulations, 2017 {the Repulanons)
and Shari'sh Opimon (Fatwa) as issued by the Shaa®ah Advizor and 1 the extent applicable,
the gudelines of Shannh Standards ssoed by Acconnang and Aadinag Ogeanization for
Islarmie Financial Insomtons (AAOTEL, in all material respects,

Applicable Criteria

The criteoa sgainst which the subject mamer informaton (the Smtement) I8 assessed
comprises of the provisons of the Regulanons and Shan'ab Opinion (Fatwa) as sssued by the
Shan'ah Adwisor,

Company's Responsibilities for Shan’ah Compliance

The Board uad management of the Company are rerponsble for the preparavson of the
smnexed Statement and w0 ensure that it % free from matedal msstatement. 1t 35 the
respoasibility of the Company’s Board and management o ensure that all Sukuk edated
financial ateangements; contracts and transactons ace in sibstance and i thetr logal form, in
compliance with the Sukuk Feutures and Shan'sh Requiements as specified above The
Company's Board and management are alio responsible for prevention and detection of fraud
and for wlentifving and ensuring that the Company complies with laws and regudations
-apphicable to s Sukuk related octivities and sko for designing, imnplementation and
mantenance of sppropiate intemal control procedures with respect 10 such compliance and
mamtenance of relevant records and such sk management systems as the management
derertmines 18 necessary to mutipate the risk of non-complianee of the Sukuk Features and
Shan'sh Reguirements whether due to fraud or error. They are also respoasible for ensuring
that personnel involved with the complaanee with the Sukuk featares and Shan'ah
requirerments are propesly wained and systems aze propedy apdared

Our Responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s o examune the annexed Statement prepared by management and 1o
report thereon in form of an mdependent pssumnce conclusion based on the svidence
obtuined. We conducted our engagement in accordanice with International Standard on
Assurance Engagemnents: (ISAE) 300, Aowmawe Exgopeenss Otler. Thaw Tudits ar Ressens of

e
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Historicad’ Fenancial fformatron. issucd by the Internatonal Auditing and Assurance Sandards
Board of the International Federation of Accountants, This Standard cequires. thar we comply
with the ethieal requiresnents, aad plan and perform the engagement 10 obrain reasonable
ssueance repgarding the subject marrer te. about whether the annexed SMatemens presents
faitly the stams of compliance with Sukuk Foatures and Shari'sh Requirements ax roquired
uncier the Regulation and Shan'ah Opouon (Farwa) tssued by Shasi'sh Advisor and to the
extent applicable, the guideline: of Shan™h Standards issued by AAOIFL in all materal

TESPeCts.

The procedures selecrest depend on owr professional judgment including the assessment of
the risk of the Company's non-complance with Sukuk Features and Shaah Requirements,
whether due to fraud or errore. [n making those nisk assessments, we have considered intemal
control rdevant 10 ensure complance with Sukuk Festures and Shan'ah Requirements,
order to dessgn assurance procedures thar are appropriate i the cirarnstinces, bat not for
the purpose of expressing o conclusion as o the cffecnyeness of the Company's nteeoal
control over ensuring compliance with Sukuk Fearuzes-and Shasah Requarements.,

A systemn of mtemal control, becouse of Hs miure, may not prevent or deteor all mstances of
non-compliance with Sukuk fearures and Shari'ah requirements, and consequently cannot
provide absolute assurance that the objective of complance with Sukak Features and Shan'sh
Requirement wall be met.

The procedres pertarmed inchuded:

Evaluanon of the systems, procedures and pracnoes i place with respeet 1o Sukuk relared
transactions apsinst the Featores and Shan'ah Reguirernents,

- Evalwation of the systems estublished to help ensure the Company's compliance with the
sgstems, procedures and  practces with  respect 0 Sukuk  Featwres and  Shan'ah
Requiremenis;

Venfication thar payments wene made on tmeand there was oo delay; and
Test for 3 sample of transactions to help ensure that these are camed ont in sccordance
with the laid down procedures and pracnces.

Conclusion

Our conclusion hay been formed on the bass of, and w subjeet 10, the matters outhned an this
report. We believe that the evidence we have obrmned is suftident and approprate to provide
a basis of our conclusinn.

ln our opiion, the annexed Staement prepared by management, for the year ended
December 31, 2018 presents tady the stans of comphance with Sukuk Fentures and Shati'ah
Requirements as required under the Regulanon and Shan'sh Opinlon (Fatwa) lssaed by
Shan'ah Advisor, and 1o the extent applicable, the guidelines of Shan'sh Standards issued by
AAOIFT, in all matenial respects.

¥ \ ) -
Date 0 3 APR 2019 {nm enton Anjum R A ‘)‘
Karacin - Chanered Accountants

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeh
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
GRANT THORNTON ANJUN RANMAN

10 & 51 e,
Vartery Mators o

To the members of Hascol Petroleum Limited e

¥ 402 107 AT IHLS
Report on the audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements | 970 s

A TR Com

Opinion

We have audired the anaexed unconsobdated financial statements of Hascol Peteoleum Limited
(the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of finandal position ps ut
December 31, 2018, and the unconsolidated statement of profit o¢ losy, the unconschdated
statement of comprehensive moome, the unconsolsdated statement of changes in equity, the
unconsolicated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsohdated
financial statements, incladiag a summary of significant acconntng polaies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the informmasion and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledpe and bebef, were necessary for the purposes of the audic

I our opinion and to the best of our information and accoeding 1o the explanations mven to us,
the unconsolidated statement of financisl position, unconsolidated starement of profit or loss, the
uncansobidated statement of camprehensive incomne, the unconsolidated sratement of changes in
equity and the uncomsolidated statement of cash flows rogesher with the notes forming part
thereof conforn with the accoumting and reporting stindards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the mformaton required by the Companics Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner q0 required
and respectvely give a true and fair view of the stare of the Company's affaies as at December 31,
2018 and of the profie or loss, totl comprehensive income or loss, the changes in equity and its
cash Dows for the vear then ended.

Basis of Opinlon

We conducted our sudit n accordance with Intermational Standards on Aoditing (1SAs) s
applicable in Pakistan. Oue responsibdities under those standaeds are further descnbed m the
Auditor’s Responsibilines for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of
our report, We are independent of the Company in accoedance with the International Ethics
Standards Hoard for Accountants’ Code of Exhics for Professional Accountants 43 adopred by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakizman (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responstbalities i accoedance with the Code. We bebeve that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our optnson.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matsers are those mattes that, in or professional judgment, were of most significance
in onr audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements of the cuctent peniod. These mattes
were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as 2 whale,
und ) leeming our opamion thereon, and we do not peovide a separste opinion on these matters.

Fallowing are the key audit matters.

Ovwrtired Acccevan
Sarte n s Nyer ey
It b sl Lwy
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Key audit matters How the maner was addressed in our
audit

First time application of fourth schedule 10 1 | We have reviewed and  undersioad  the

the Companies Act, 2017 requirements of the fourth schedule of the

(Refer note 27 to the annexed unconsobidated
financal statements).

The fourth schedule 10 the Compames Act,
2017 became applicable for the first ime for
the prepatation of the Company’s anmual
financial statements.

Ag part of this transitton to the requirements
of the said third and fourth schedules, the
maniganent performed 3 gap  anabisis 10
identify  differences  between  the  previous
reparting framework and the current reporting
framewoek and 98 2 result assessed  the
amendments relaning o disclosures requiced n
the Company’s  unconsolidieed  fnancial
aratements.

In wiew of the extensive impacts in the
armexed financial satements due to first tme
application of the fourth schedule to the
Companies Act, 2017, we coasidered it as a key
audit marter,

o Conmdered the management’s process to

e Obtained relevant underlying supports for

o Verfied on test basis, the supporting

Companes Act, 217 aad  our  audit
procedures included the following:

identify the addztronal dssclosures requiced
in the Company's anpexed
Unconsolidated Frmanaal Statements;

the addiional discddosures and assessed
their appropristeness for sufficient mudi
evidence; and

evidence tor the additional disclosures and
ensured appropriatencss of the disclosures
made.

Valuation of Defined benchit obligatl

(Refer note 243 10 the unconsolidated
financial starements)

The Company operates an unfunded gratusty
scheme for @3 emplovees. The Company’s
nhhgaton in respect of defined benedit plans a2
at December 31, 2018 amounted 10 Ra
250,593 millicn.

In determining the oblgation i respeet of
defined henefit plan, the Company enpaged an
nctuarial - expert 1o perform the  actuanal
valmton of plan assets and the present value
of the defined henefit obligaton, which
fnvolves wse of key assumprons includiog
discount rates, expected rate of inceease in
future salaries, rate of emplovee tmover and
mortality rares.

Our  sudit  procedures  amongst  others,
compased understanding the mannagement
valuation process, including the involvement
of acruanal expert in performing the actuartal
vaduation of plan assets and defined benefit
obligation,

We assessed the competence and objecuviry
of the quabified actuary engaged by the
Company o value the defined benefir
obligation under [AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits”

We assessed the sppropnatencss of the
methodology  and  assumptions  wed 10
determine the obligatica in respect of defined
benefit plans.

Onarturnd Antmmtmny
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Changes in any of these key assumptions can
have a material impoct on the calealitica of
these liabilines

Ve identified retrement benefit obligation & a
ey audit matter because of significant
management  judement relating to  valuation
assumptions that ate inherently complex and

We tesred data provided by the Company 1o
actuary for the purpose of valuation,

We also revaewed the adequacy of the related
disdosures in the unconsobdated financml
starements,

As at 31 December, 2018, the Property, plant
and equipment of the Company, which are
accounted  for by the revaluation methad
amounted t K3, 16542 bilion. Followang the
revaluntion model, ¢ hay assessad
these caying walues. The revaluanca gan of
Rs, 4476 hillion hag been recopnized by
incrensmyy the carrying values of respectve
assess These conclusions ure dependent upon,
significant management judgment, ncluding i
respect of estimates and forced sale valves
provided by an independent extemal valuer.

require specialist actuarial mpuot.
"Revaluation  of Property, plant  and | | Our procedures o zelanon 1o management
equipmeal revahmton asscssment of properry, plant and
equipment mehxded
(Refer note 8.1 1o the unconsohidsted financial i
STaTCMEnts)

o Reviewed and vesified the reports of
independent evaluators;

® Checked the expedence and gualificanon
of independent evaluators,

o Ewvaluated the approprateness  of
methodologies used 1o esumate: forced
sale values by the independent exretnal
valuer. _

® Considering the spplication of the forced
sale walue estimated by the independent
external valuer based on our lnowledge of
the tndustry and values of the sssets that
have been disposed of duniag the year.

® Asscised the adequacy of disclosures in
the unconsolidated fnancial mtcmems.E

ncluding disclosires of key assamptions, |
estimates and sensivity, |

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors” Report

Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informanion. The other information comprises the
mformaton ncluded in the annual repore for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not
melude the Unconsolidated Fimnaal Statements and our auditor’s repore theeeon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our muxdit of the Unconsolidared Financial Statements, our sesponatbdity 15 10
read the other infoemation and, in doing 50, consider whether the other information s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obeained m the audir, or atherwise
appears to be matenally misstated. 1f, based on the wark we have performed, we condlude thar
there s a materal misstatement in this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Charwted Acomtars
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidared Financial
Statements

Management s respoasible for the preparation and far presentation of the Unconsalidated
Finaocial Starements in accosdance with the accounting #nd repocting smndards as applicabic in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 20I7(XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control a8 management determines 15 necessary to enable the preparaton of uncomsolidated
fimancial statements that are free from marenal masstatement, whether due to fraud or erroe.

In prepanng the unconsolidated financial staterments, management 1 responsible for assessing the
Company's abdity to continue 13 a golng comcetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters relaied 10
goang concern and using the going concern basts of accounting unless management either intends
w liquidate the Company o 1o cease opetations, or has 1o realistic ltematve but to do so,

Hoard of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statcments

Qur objectives are 1o obaain resonable assurance sbout whether the anconsobidated financal
staternients as a whole ate feee from material misstatersent, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to
issue an suditor’s report that inclsdes our opunson. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of
assurance, but 13 not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs a3 applicable in
Pakistan will afways detect a matenal misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can anse from
fraud or eror and are considered marenal if) indvadually oc in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to mifluence the ceomomic decistons of vsers taken on the basss of these.
uncontolidated fnancial statements,

As part of an audir in accordance with [SAs as applcabie in Pakistan, we exercise professional
jadgrent and maintain profeasional skepucaam theoughout the sudit. We alsoc

*  Idenufy and sssess the nsks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financul
staremnents, whether due to frand or error, design and perfoem audit procedures responsive
10 those zisks, and obaain andir evidence thar is sufficient aad appropnate to provide a basts
for our opimon. The risk of not detecting a material missttement resulting from frawd is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, Infentiona)
ormissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.

¢ Obtan an understancing of internal control relevant o the sudit in order to design audit
procedures that sre appropoate m the circumstances, but net for the purpose of expressing
an ogimion on the effectiveness of the Company™s intemnal control;

*  FEvaluae the appropriatensss of accountng policies used and the reascoableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Cnirvred hooven s
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¢ Concude on the appropriateness of management’s wse of the gomg concern basis of
accounting and, based on the andit evidence obeained, whether 0 material uncerminey exists
related 10 events or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abdity to
continue & & going concern. If we conclude that 2 material uncortainty exsts, we aze required
1o deaw attention in our suditor’s repart to the rebied disclosures in the uncoasolidated
financial statemnents or, if such disclosures are wnadequate, 1o modify our opimson. Clur
‘conchusions are based oa the audir evidence obmained up to the date of cur auditor's report,
However, future events or condivons may cause the Company 1o cease to cantinue & u
going concetn,

*  FEvalate the overall presentation, structure and content of the uncoasolidated fimancial
statements, including the disdlosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions snd events m s manner thar achseves fair peesentation.

We communicate with the board of directors reparding, among other matters, the planned scope
and tming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify dunng our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have comphed with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, und wheee applicable,
telared safeguards

From the mattess communicated with the board of directors, we detenmine thaose matters that
were of most significance m the sudit of the financial statements of the current penod and are
theretore the key audit matters. We describe these mattess in our auditors report unless hw oe
regulation preciudes public disclosute about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumatances,
we determine that o mater should not be communicated in our report Lecause the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasoaably be expected to outweigh the public micrest benefies
of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements
Based on our sucht, we further report that in oue oplnicn:

) proper books of account have been kept by the Company s tequired by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 20147);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsalidated statement of profit or
loss, unconsoludated statement of other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and the onconsolidated statement of cash flows 1ogether with
the notes thereon ave been dewn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017} and arc in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢ investments msde, expendirue incurred and guarantees extended during the yeir were for
the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Orcinance, 1980 (XVIIL of 1980), was
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section
T of that Ordinance,

et of St Lt ]
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The engagement partner on the sudit resulting i this independent auditor’s seport =

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeh.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Long-term investments
Long-term deposits

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances

Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Mark-up and profit accrued
Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of tax

Total shareholders' equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Long-term financing

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred and other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Mark-up and profit accrued

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Taxation - net

Total current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

To©m®

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20
21

22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29
18

30

(Rupees in thousand)

Restated Restated

2018 2017 2016
22,563,232 13,680,349 8,688,947
2,565 - -
1,333,814 1,899,518 1,961,977
547,772 331,537 288,882
24,447,383 15,911,404 10,939,806
22,615,303 18,557,106 16,477,668
13,552,235 11,518,218 7,871,281
109,489 181,365 253,413
199,829 80,633 106,179
2,845,526 2,161,031 1,144,753
92,718 57,398 35,816
1,270,808 - -
8,799,447 9,735,983 7.829,834
49,485,355 42,291,734 33,718,944
73,932,738 58,203,138 44,658,750
1,810,188 1,448,150 1,206,792
6,285,646 7,792,097 3,755,346
4,389,156 1,025,789 1,142,880
12,484,990 10,266,036 6,105,018
2,625,850 2,240,163 2,307,749
1,015,993 377,603 471,731
931,300 1,413,122 1,144,581
4573,143 4,030,888 3,924,061
34,531,147 34,321,373 29,222,758
362,674 107,926 8,764
311,976 117,258 91,185
18,877,466 6,944,699 3,889,629
2,791,342 1,642,892 747,466
- 772,066 669,869
56,874,605 43,906,214 34,629,671
61,447,748 47,937,102 38,553,732
73,932,738 58,203,138 44,658,750

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

*The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these unconsolidated financial statements
have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

[

vk .:‘—-f.é!j'\/j.:)

D/i,r'e'ctor Chief Financial Officer

Director

Hascol Annual Report




Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Sales - net 31 275,604,114 215,662,302
Less: sales tax (41,996,694) (41,923,129)
Net sales 233,607,420 173,739,173
Other revenue 32 836,711 500,460
Net revenue 234,444,131 174,239,633
Cost of products sold 33 (224,167,482) (166,850,657)
Gross profit 10,276,649 7,388,976
Distribution and marketing expense 34 (3,925,143) (2,666,666)
Administrative expenses 35 (882,969) (611,439)
Operating expenses (4,808,112) (3,278,105)
Other income 36 527,342 417,481
Operating profit 5,995,879 4,528,352
Finance cost 37 (1,324,262) (582,785)
Other expenses 38 (116,694) (491,095)
Exchange loss - net (3,903,041) (795,773)
(5,343,997) (1,869,653)

Profit before taxation 651,882 2,658,699
Taxation 39 (444,739) (1,257,451)
Profit for the year 207,143 1,401,248
(Restated)

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 40 1.14 8.56

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

*The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these unconsolidated financial
statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Profit for the year 207,143 1,401,248
Items that will not be reclassified
to unconsolidated profit and loss account subsequently
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit

obligation - net of tax 24.3.3 (20,915) (30,519)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently

to unconsolidated profit and loss account
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

- net of tax 3,585,979 -
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of available-for-sale

investments - net of tax (539,547) (302,341)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 3,025,517 (332,860)
Total comprehensive income 3,232,660 1,068,388

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

*The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these unconsolidated financial
statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Capital Revenue
Reserves Reserves Others
Surplus on Surplus on
Share Share Unappropriated remeasurement revaluation Total
Capital Premium profit of available for of property, shareholders’
nvestments to plant and equity
fair value equipment
Balance as at January 01, 2017 as previously reported 1,206,792 1,070,828 2,059,588 624,930 - 4,962,138
Effect of change in Accounting policy (note 5) - - - - 1,142,880 1,142,880
Balance as at January 01, 2017 (Restated) 1,206,792 1,070,828 2,059,588 624,930 1,142,880 6,105,018
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 1,401,248 - - 1,401,248
Other comprehensive loss
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit
obligation - net of tax - - (30,519) - - (30,519)
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term
investments - net of tax - - - (302,341) - (302,341)
Total comprehensive income - - 1,370,729 (302,341) - 1,068,388
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed
assets on account of incremental depreciation - net of tax - - 117,091 - (117,091) -
- - 1,487,820 (302,341) (117,091) 1,068,388
Transactions with owners recognized directly in equity
Right issue 20% @ 165/- per share - September 2017 | 241,358 || 3,741,055 | | - | | - | | - | | 3,982,413 |
Issuance cost - (45,029) - - - (45,029)
241,358 3,696,026 - - - 3,937,384
Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2016 | - || - | | (422,377) | | - | | - | | (422,377) |
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2017 - - (422,377) - - (422,377)
- - (844,754) - - (844,754)
Total transactions with owners recognized directly in equity 241,358 3,696,026 (844,754) - - 3,092,630
Balance as at December 31, 2017 (Restated) 1.448.150 4.766.854 2.702.654 322.589 1.025.789 10.266.036
Balance as at January 01, 2018 1,448,150 4,766,854 2,702,654 322,589 1,025,789 10,266,036
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year - - 207,143 - - 207,143
Other comprehensive loss
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit
obligation - net of tax - - (20,915) - - (20,915)
Revaluation for the year - net of tax = = = = 3,585,979 3,585,979
Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term
investments - net of tax - - - (539,547) - (539,547)
Total comprehensive loss - - 186,228 (539,547) 3,585,979 3,232,660
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed
assets on account of incremental depreciation - net of tax - - 222,612 - (222,612) -
408,840 (539,547) 3,363,367 3,232,660
Transactions with owners
Bonus issue 25% per shares - September 2018 362,038 - (362,038) - -
362,038 - (362,038) - - -
Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2017 - || - | | (506,853) | | - | | - | | (506,853)
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2018 = = (506,853) - - (506,853)
(1,013,706) - - (1,013,706)
Total transactions with owners 362,038 - (1,375,744) - - (1,013,706)
Balance as at December 31, 2018 1,810,188 4,766,854 1,735,750 (216,958) 4,389,156 12,484,990

*The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these unconsolidated financial statements have been signed by two directors as required by
section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Profit received on bank deposits
Taxes paid

Gratuity paid

Net cash (used) in / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure incurred

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Long-term investment made during the year

Long-term deposits paid
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease liability obtained / (repaid) - net

Proceeds from issue of shares - net of transaction cost

Dividend paid

Payment of commercial paper

Proceeds from issue of commercial paper
Long-term finance obtained - net

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

43

24.3.2

8.3

28.3

44

Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
(3,727,319) 2,388,667
(1,114,401) (555,825)

383,267 257,471
(3,344,269) (788,425)
(16,698) (25,825)
(7,819,420) 1,276,063
(6,068,659) (5,693,170)
768,247 214,099

- (303,000)

(216,235) (42,655)
(5,516,647) (5,824,726)
802,226 (131,977)

- 3,937,384

(758,958) (745,592)
(1,500,000) -
2,399,714 1,446,204
575,056 340,814
1,518,038 4,846,833
(11,818,029) 298,170
4,178,375 3,880,205
(7,639,654) 4,178,375

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

*The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these unconsolidated financial

statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on March 28, 2001. On
September 12, 2007 the Company was converted into a public unlisted company and on May 12, 2014 the Company got
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite No. 105-106, The Forum,
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.

The Company is engaged in the business of procurement, storage and marketing of petroleum, chemicals, LPG and
related products. The Company obtained oil marketing license from Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources in
the year 2005 and acquired assets of LPG licensed company in the year 2018.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESS OF BUSINESS UNITS

The business unit of the Company include the following:

Business Unit Geographical Location

Head Office Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.

Regional marketing, sales offices and invoicing points are located across the country. The Company owns retail
operation sites and sites operated through dealers across Pakistan and Northern areas, the details of which is
impracticable to disclose in these financial statements are required as required under Paragraph 1 (i) of Part | of the
4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Considering the nature of the company’s business, the information regarding production has no relevance whereas
product storage capacities at company’s facilities during the current year is detailed below:

Storage Capacity
Metric Tonnes

Description HSD PMG

Daulatpur depot 4,000 2,250
Shikarpur depot 16,200 2,700
Mehmoodkot depot 9,000 4,500
Machike depot 6,000 3,500
Sahiwal depot 6,000 3,500
Kotlajam depot 5,100 4,500
Thalliyan depot 8,000 12,000

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Issuance of bonus shares
During the year the Company issued bonus shares in the proportion of one share for every four shares held i.e. 25%.

Revaluation of Proprety,plant and equipment
During the year the Company carried out revaluation of its plant and equipment which resulted in better reflection of its
investment in network and infrastructure.

Acquisition of LPG Plant
The Company acquired liquified petroleum gas (LPG) plant from Marshal Gas (Pvt) Limited. The Company intends to
commence its LPG Operations immediately upon receipt of the NOC from the Competition Commission of Pakistan.

Exchange loss - net
Due to devaluation of Pak Rupee during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company suffered exchange loss

amounting to Rs. 3.9 billion for liabilities denominated in US Dollar.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
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2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.3.1

3.4

Hascol Annual Report

Hascol Terminals Limited - completion
During the year 232,760 cubic meter capacity came online as a result of completion of terminal at Port Qasim.

Petrochemical Business Unit
The Company further expanded its product range by adding chemicals business unit.

Applicability of Companies Act 2017
Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 amounts reported for the previous year are restated. For detailed
information refer note 5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Separate financial statements

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary is accounted for on the basis of cost rather than on the basis of reported results.
Consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented separately.

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprises of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. In case the
requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.

These unconsolidated financial statements are being submitted to the shareholders as required
under section 223 of the Companies Act 2017 and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements. These changes, amongst others, included change in respect of presentation and measurement
of surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment as fully explained in note 7.1.1 of these consolidated financial
statements, change in nomenclature of primary statements. Further, the disclosure requirements contained in the
fourth schedule of the Act have been revised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure with the IFRS disclosure
requirements and incorporation of additional amended disclosures including, but not limited to, particulars of immovable
assets of the Company (refer note 8.1), management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the consolidated
financial statements (refer note 39.1), change in threshold for identification of executives (refer note 41), additional
disclosure requirements for related parties (refer note 42) etc.

Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

Iltems Measurement basis

Available for sale investment Fair value

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Property, plant and equipment Revalued amounts

Monetary Liabilities Spot exchange rates

In these unconsolidated financial statements, except for the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, all the
transactions have been accounted for on an accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3.5 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

351 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company and
adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of
IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Amendments Effective Date

- IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2) January 1, 2018
- IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 January 1, 2018
- IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration January 1, 2018

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the
amounts for the year ended December 31, 2018.

3.5.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on January 01, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Company’s financial reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.

3.5.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective
and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the
dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Standards and amendment Effective Date
(Annual Periods
beginning on or

after)

- IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) Postponed
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 1, 2018
- IFRS 16 - Leases January 1, 2019
- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
- 1AS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28) January 1, 2019
- Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
- IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation January 1, 2019

(Amendments to IFRS 9)
- IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement
(Amendments to IAS 19) January 1, 2019
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Standards and amendment Effective Date
(Annual Periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 11 - Joint Venture - (Amendments to IFRS 11) January 1, 2019
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and

Measurement July 1, 2019
- IAS 1/ 1AS 8 - Definition of Material

(Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020
- Amendments to References to the Conceptual

Framework in IFRS Standards January 1, 2020
- IFRS 3 - IFRS Definition of a business

(Amendments to IFRS 3) January 1, 2020

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to
the published standards on the unconsolidated financial statements.

354 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
SECP

Following new standards have been issued by the IASB which are yet to be notified by SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

Standards IASB Effective Date
(Annual Periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
4 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINITY

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Accounting policies in respect of judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the Company’s unconsolidated financial
statements, estimates and assumptions with significant risk of material adjustments in the future period are included
in the following notes:

Note
a) Depreciation method, rates and useful life of operating fixed assets 71
b)  Revaluation of operating fixed assets 71.2
c)  Amortization method, rates and useful life of intangible assets 7.2
d)  Estimate of fair value of investments available for sale 7.3
e) Impairment of financial assets 7.3
f) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in subsidiaries 710
g) Net realizable value of stock-in-trade 715
h)  Recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets 7.16
i) Provisions and contingencies 7.19
) Provision for taxation 7.23
k)  Provision for gratuity 7.25

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy for the surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets,
after enactment of the Companies Act, 2017, which has not carried forward requirement of disclosing the surplus on
revaluation of operating fixed assets as a separate item below equity. Accordingly, in accordance with the requirements
of International Accounting Standard - IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’, surplus on revaluation of operating fixed
assets would now be presented within equity. The new accounting policy is explained in note 7.1.1.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS
8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’ and comparative figures have been restated.

The effect of the change is recognition and presentation of Rs. 4.389 billion for surplus on revaluation of Property,
plant and equipment previously presented below equity in the statement of financial position. There is no impact of
change in accounting policy on statement on profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows.

As previously [Adjustments | As restated
reported

Impact on statement of financial position
As at 01 January, 2017
Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (below equity) 1,142,880 (1,142,880) -

Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (within equity) - 1,142,880 -

Impact on statement of changes in equity

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - - 1,142,880
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

As previously |Adjustments | As restated
reported

Impact on statement of financial position
As at 31 December, 2017

Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (below equity) 1,025,789  (1,025,789) -

Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (within equity) - 1,025,789 -

Impact on statement of changes in equity

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - - 1,025,789

6 CORRECTION OF ERRORS

The Company had not accounted for unclaimed / unpaid dividend before since the amount was transferred to
a special dividend account and was kept off balance sheet. As a consequence, Cash and bank balances and
unclaimed/ unpaid dividend were understated. The error have been corrected by restating each of the affected
financial statement line item for prior periods. The following table summarize the impacts on the Company’s
unconsolidated financial statements.

Impact of correction of error
As previously [Adjustments | As restated
reported

Unconsolidated financial statements
1 January 2017

Total assets
Cash and bank balances 7,821,070 8,764 7,829,834

Total Liabilities
Unclaimed dividend - 8,764 8,764

31 December 2017

Total assets
Cash and bank balances 9,628,057 107,926 9,735,983

Total Liabilities
Unclaimed dividend - 107,926 107,926

7 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

7.1 Property, plant and equipment
7.1.1 Initial recognition
(a) Operating fixed assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Operating fixed assets under
construction are disclosed as capital work in progress (CWIP). The cost of self constructed assets includes the
cost of materials, fixed labour and any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset into service for its
intended use including, where applicable, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

The assets which are available for intended use are capitalized as operating fixed assets. While assets under
construction are capitalized to CWIP.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited
to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously. A decrease as a result
of revaluation is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, however decrease is recorded in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance entry in revaluation
surplus is respect of the same assets. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings
is made for the difference between depreciation based on the revaluation of carrying amount of the asset and
the depreciation based on asset’s original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation
date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred to unappropriated profit.

The Company accounts for property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases by recording the
assets and the related liabilities. These amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges
are allocated to the accounting period in @ manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding
liability.

(b) Capital work-in-progress

CWIP is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure in connection with specific
assets incurred during construction/installation period are carried to CWIP. These expenditures are transferred
to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for intended use.

7.1.2 Measurement subsequent to initial recognition
(a) Carried using revaluation model

Following classes of operating owned assets are subsequently measured under revaluation model (i.e. fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses).

- Land lease hold;

- Building on lease hold land;

- Tanks and pipelines;

- Dispensing pumps;

- Plant and machinery;

- Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment.;
- Furniture, office equipment and other assets; and
- Computer auxiliaries
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Fair value is determined by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.

(b) Carried using cost model

Fixed assets other than those mentioned above are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account by applying the straight-
line method whereby the cost/revalued amount of operating fixed assets is charged off over its remaining useful life.
Same basis and estimates for depreciation are applied to owned assets and assets acquired under finance lease.

Depreciation is charged on straight line method from the month in which an asset is available for intended use, while
no depreciation is charged from the month in which the asset is disposed off. Depreciation is provided at the rates
as disclosed in note 8.1.

Depreciation method, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting year and adjusted, if applicable.
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gain and loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in the unconsolidated profit and loss account in the
year of disposal.

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

As disclosed in note 5 to the unconsolidated financial statements, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became
applicable for the first time for the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Company has also changed its accounting policy relating to presentation
and measurement of surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. The above change in the accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively and comparative information have been restated in accordance with the
requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS) —16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” and IAS 8 “Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Due to the above change in accounting policy, the Company
has presented its statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period i.e., January
01, 2017, and related notes in accordance with requirement of IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
(Revised) (IAS 1).

Had the accounting policy not been changed, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment would have
been shown as a separate line item (below equity in the statement of financial position) amounting to Rs. 4,389 billion
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

7.2 Intangible assets - computer software

These are recorded initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight
line method.
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7.3

Amortization on addition and deletion of intangible assets is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful
life and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets
having indefinite useful life are not amortized and stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial Assets
Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

e loans and receivables; and
e available for sale.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The loan and
receivables includes trade debts, advances, deposits, markup or profit accrued, other receivables and cash and
bank balances.

Available for sale

Available for sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Listed equity securities held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company also have investments in unlisted shares that are not
traded in an active market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in market rate of the equity
securities and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in unconsolidated profit or loss account. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized in unconsolidated other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of fair value reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognize in unconsolidated comprehensive
income is reclassified to unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account when the Company’s
right to receive the dividends is established.
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AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

* significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

¢ breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or

¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss
account are not reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income . In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through unconsolidated profit and loss account if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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7.4

7.5

7.6

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred assets, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial assets in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
unconsolidated other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in unconsolidated profit and
loss account.

On derecognition of financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to re-purchase
part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continue to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in unconsolidated other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. All interest-related charges, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are
reported in unconsolidated profit and loss account are included within finance costs.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to off-set the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definition of a financial liability and equity
instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of

its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary share are recognized as deduction from equity.
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Share premium reserves

Share premium is recorded on issue of shares in accordance with the requirements of section 83 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 amendment pursuant of S.R.O 34 (1)/2016
dated 19th January 2016. The premium is available for use as per section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Dividend distribution

Final dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated balance
sheet in the period in which the dividends are approved, while interim dividend distributions are recognized in the
period in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors. However, if these are approved after the
reporting period but before the unconsolidated financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in
the notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Investment in subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the entity. The Company control an investee when the Company is exposed
or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect the return through
its power over the investee. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable are taken into account.

Investment in subsidiary company is initially stated at cost. At subsequent reporting date recoverable amounts
are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted
accordingly.

Investment in associate

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but also neither has control nor joint control over those policies.

When necessary the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS-36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with
IAS-36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Company transacts with an associate profit and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognized in the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Company.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using

the effective interest method Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign
currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.
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Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtors, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade debt is impaired. The amount of provision is charged to
unconsolidated profit and loss account. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency
are added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.

Advance and deposits

These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful balances, if any. Deposits represent security deposits from
dealers by virtue of agreement and are interest free. These are repayable on cancellation on dealership contract with
dealers.

Stock-in-trade
Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined as follows:

- Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
- The cost of stock in trade is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Provision is made for obsolete/slow moving stocks where necessary and recognized in the unconsolidated profit and
loss account. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling value price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated costs necessary in order to make the sale.

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of non financial assets, are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less cost to sell and value in use.

Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Term deposit receipts (TDRs)

These represent placement in TDRs with financial institution having tenure of one year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposit, bank

balances, short term borrowings and other items of current assets and current liabilities which qualify as cash
equivalent.
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7.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized
as liability in the unconsolidated balance sheet.

7.20 Commitment

Commitments are disclosed in the unconsolidated financial statements at committed amount.
7.21 Leases

Finance leases

Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Assets obtained under finance lease are accounted for in accordance with policy stated in note 7.1.

The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing
of the payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the
balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account over
the lease term.

Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. In the
event lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis except where
another systematic basis except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefit from the leased assets are consumed.

ljarah

Leased assets which are obtained under ljarah agreement are not recognized in the Company’s unconsolidated
balance sheet and are treated as operating lease based on IFAS 2 issued by the ICAP and notified by SECP vide
S.R.O. 43(1) / 2007 dated 22 May 2007. Ujrah payments made under an ljarah are charged to the unconsolidated
profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the ljarah term unless another systematic basis is representative
of time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payment are not on that basis.

7.22 Foreign currency translations

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the unconsolidated balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted
into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken
to the unconsolidated profit and loss account. At the end of each reporting period, monetary amount denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
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7.23

7.24

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the unconsolidated profit and
loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized outside unconsolidated profit and loss account
(whether in unconsolidated other comprehensive income or directly in equity), if any, in which case the tax amounts
are recognized outside unconsolidated profit and loss account.

- Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the unconsolidated balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.

- Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for using the unconsolidated balance sheet method providing the temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset
is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be
utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based
on the tax rates that have been enacted. The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions
taken by the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited
or charged to equity or statement of other comprehensive income, in which case it is included in equity or statement
of other comprehensive income as the case may be.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable on
the following basis:

Operating revenue

- Sales are recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
customers which coincides with dispatch of goods to customers.

- Non-fuel retail income and other revenue (including license fee) is recognized on an accrual basis.

- Handling, storage and other services income is recognized when the services have been rendered.

Other income

- Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established. -
Return on bank deposits is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

- Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amounts of the leased assets and recognized on a straight line basis over the leased term.
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7.25 Retirement and other service benefits
Unfunded gratuity scheme

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering of all its permanent employees
who have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by the trustees and
contribution therein are made in the accordance with actuarial recommendations.

The valuation in this regard is carried using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried
out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises of
actuarial gain and losses are recognized in the unconsolidated other comprehensive income based on actuarial
gain and losses.

The Company determine the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the year
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to
the net defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account and change in the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
during the year as result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense, current service cost and past
service cost related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Contributory provident fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. The contribution
to the fund is made by the Company as well as the employees at the rate of 5.72% percent of the basic salary.

7.26 Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as management that makes strategic decisions. The
management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors view the
Company’s operations as one reportable segment.

7.27 Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm’s length price using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Capital work-in-progress

1,413,796 1,505,203
Office building 807,801 697,086
Tanks and pipelines 316,206 435,325
Pump building 456,270 304,894
Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment 80,018 260,357
Tank lorries 61,834 232,592
Advances to contractors 156,146 160,087
Dispensing pumps 239,304 155,567
Furniture, office equipment and other assets 650,910 25,697
Plant and machinery 8.3 249,984 22,035
Borrowing cost capitalized jii51582 12,479
Computer auxiliaries 4,447,801 3,811,322

During the year additions amounting to Rs. 6,068.6 million (2017: 5,693.17 million) have been made in capital work-
in-progress. This also includes borrowing cost capitalized during the year at rates ranging from 7.51% - 13.22%
(2017:7.45% - 9.15%).

Due to large number of dealers it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having possession of
operating fixed assets, as required under Paragraph 12 of Part Il of the 4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

Operating fixed assets held by dealers of retail outlets of the Company are tanks and pipelines dispensing pumps,
plant and machinery, electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipments. These assets are not in possession of
the Company as these have been provided to dealers of retail outlets to facilitate them to promote and sell the
Company’s products.

In 2012, the Company carried out revaluation of petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued amount of
assets was Rs. 1,172 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amount to Rs. 387 million. In the year 2015
the Company carried out revaluation of depots and petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued amount
of assets was Rs. 4,154 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 1,006 million. Further,
during 2018 the Company carried out revaluation through an independent valuation firm of all the operating fixed
assets except for vehicles & computer auxiliaries. Revalued amount of the assets were Rs. 14,009 million, resulting
in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 3,550 million.

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of the following assets in the unconsolidated balance sheet
would have been as follows:

Cost AccumL.JIalted Written down value
depreciation 2018 2017
Owned assets
Building on lease hold land:
- Land 1,233,131 - 1,233,131 -
- Office building 3,320,746 343,534 2,977,212 -
- Pump building 2,079,490 359,178 1,720,312 683,244
Tanks and pipelines 1,128,369 136,306 992,063 262,404
Dispensing units 388,229 122,260 265,969 46,338
Plant and machinery 189,306 44,880 144,426 14,422
Electrical mechanical and
fire fighting equipment 693,741 121,073 572,668 156,503
Furniture, office equipment
and other assets 269,531 94,354 175,177 -
Computers auxiliaries 135,236 54,940 80,296 -
Total owned assets 9,437,779 1,276,525 8,161,254 1,162,911
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(Rupees in thousand)

Accumulated

Written down value

cost depreciation 2018 2017
Leased assets
Pump building - 83,068
Dispensing units = 50,019
Plant and machinery = 34,213
Tanks and pipelines = 42,249
Electrical mechanical and
fire fighting equipment = 7,717
Total leased assets - 217,266
Total assets 9,437,779 1,276,525 8,161,254 1,380,177
8.7 Forced sale values of asset class:
Class of assets
Land 1,938,050
Building 3,951,700
Dispensing Pumps 3,637,000
Plant & machinery 1,201,450
Storage tanks & pipelines 1,896,100
Office Equipments 8,550
Furniture & Fixtures 5,000
Motors Cars / Vehicles 27,500
12,665,350
8.8 The level of hierarchy for the fair value disclosed fall in level 3 i.e., inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 3 that are unobservable either directly or indirectly.
8.9 The details of immovable fixed assets (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Description of location

Depots

Daulatpur depot
Kotlajam depot
Machike depot
Mehmood kot depot
Sahiwal depot
Marshal Gas depot

Others
Lubricant oil blending plant

LPG terminal
Metropolitan Corp Lahore
Head office

Addresses

Taluka Qazi Ahmed, District Shaheed Benazirabad
Kotlajam Dagar, Tehsil & District Bhakhar

Chak Dhantpura, Machike, District Sheikhupura
Qasba Gujrat, Tehsil Kot Addu, District Muzzafargarh
Pakpattan Road, Tehsil & District Sahiwal

Naclass No.213, Deh Konkar

Chemical Area, Eastern Industrial Zone, Port Qasim
Authority, Karachi.

North Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim Authority

Shakeel Naseem Askari-1, Lahore

Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton

Total Area of
Land
Square Yards

34,848
29,040
70,180
29,040
29,040
14,520

29,040
34,848
2,118
386
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
The depreciation charged for the year has been allocated
as follows:
Distribution and marketing expenses 34 946,426 486,087
Administrative expenses 35 30,916 23,476
977,342 509,563

During the year written down value of operating fixed assets that have been disposed-off amount to Rs.428.55
million (2017: Rs. 192.2 million). Details of operating fixed assets disposed off with WDV above Rs. 500,000 are

given below:
Type No of Vehicles Cost A(li%f‘?cf‘a?{?ﬁ Net book value prig‘ei‘ds Gain / (Loss) Particulars of buyers ’\gwosdpigfal
Rupees in '000"
Motor cars
6 13,590 - 13,590 15,447 1,857 Askari Bank Limited Sale and lease back
6 13,590 - 13,590 15,447 1,857
Tank Lorries
10 39,963 - 39,963 43,621 3,658 Askari Bank Limited Sale and lease back
41 371,349 14,445 356,904 400,000 43,096  First Habib Modaraba Sale and lease back
15 19,306 1,213 18,093 20,500 2,407 Meezan Bank Limited  Sale and lease back
66 430,618 15,658 414,960 464,121 49,161
2018 72 444,208 15,658 428,550 479,568 51,018
2017 25 195,338 3,169 192,169 212,828 20,659
Note 2018 2017
INTANGIBLE ASSET
Computer software 2,565 -
Net book value at beginning of the year = -
Addition 2,608 -
Amortization charge for the year 35 (43) -
Net book value at the end of the year 9.1 2,565 -
Net book value
Cost 10,907 8,299
Accumulated amortization (8,342) (8,299)
Net book value 2,565 -
Rate of amortization - % 33.33 33.33
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10.1

10.1.1

10.2

10.3

10.3.1

10.4

10.5

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in subsidiary companies - at cost
Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (unquoted) 10.1 - -
Investment in associated company - at cost
VAS LNG (Private) Limited (unquoted) 10.2 3,000 3,000
Available for sale investments
Pakistan Refinery Limited (quoted) - at fair value 10.3 955,814 1,521,518
Hascol Terminals Limited (unquoted) - at cost 10.4 375,000 375,000

1,333,814 1,899,518
Investment at cost 30,604 30,604
Movement in provision for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year (30,604) (30,604)
Provision made during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year (30,604) (30,604)
Net book value 10.1.1 = -

This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, incorporated in Pakistan under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. lts shares are not quoted in active market. The Company holds 9.78 million ordinary
shares (2017: 9.78 million) of Rs. 10 per share.

Investment in VAS LNG (Private) Limited amounts to Rs. 3 million (2017: Rs. 3 million) representing 30% (2017: 30%)
equity stake. The Company holds 0.3 million ordinary shares (2017: 0.3 million) of Rs. 10 per share.

Note Cost Unreallsgd Carrying
(loss)/gain value
Pakistan Refinery Limited
December 31, 2018 10.3.1 1,172,772 (216,958) 955,814
December 31, 2017 1,172,772 348,746 1,521,518

Investment in Pakistan Refinery Limited represents 13.72% (2017: 13.72%) equity stake which amounts to 43.25 million
shares (2017: 43.25 million shares).

Investment in Hascol Terminals Limited amounts to Rs. 375 million (2017: Rs. 375 million) representing 15% (2017: 15%)
equity stake which amounts to 37.5 million shares (2017: 37.5 million shares) as at December 31, 2018.

Investments in associated companies and undertakings have been made in accordance with the requirements of the
Act.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
11 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Lease deposits 352,331 133,888
Less: current portion of lease deposits 15 (762) (794)
351,569 133,094
Deposits against:
- depots 126,267 107,144
- retail outlets 54,270 67,164
- others 15,666 24,135
196,203 198,443
547,772 331,537
12 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw and packing materials - lubricants 54,577 97,636

Finished goods
- fuels 121 21,227,881 16,624,943
- lubricants 464,802 298,577
- Petrochemicals 827,819 -
22,520,502 16,923,520

Stock in transit
- fuels - 1,509,777
- lubricants 40,224 26,173
40,224 1,535,950
22,615,303 18,557,106

12.1 Fuels include Rs. 6,114.41 million (2017: Rs. 3,620.17 million) of High Speed Diesel which has been maintained as
line fill necessary for the pipeline to operate.

Note 2018 2017
13 TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
- Secured 13.1 9,173,127 3,658,244
- Unsecured 4,379,108 7,859,974
13,552,235 11,518,218
Considered doubtful 13.2 92,873 7,973
13,645,108 11,526,191
Provision for impairment 13.3 (92,873) (7,973)
13,552,235 11,518,218
13.1 These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees, letter of credits and security deposits.
13.2 This includes receivable from Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (subsidiary company) amounting to Rs. 7.12 million
(2017: Rs. 7.12 million).
13.3 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year outstanding

was Rs. 7.12 million.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
13.4 Movement of provision for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,973 7,973
Provisions made during the year 84,900 -
Balance at the end of the year 92,873 7,973
14 ADVANCES - considered good, unsecured
To employees:
- against expenses 28,169 46,023
- against salaries 20,071 63,755
Advances against purchase of shares 141 44,385 60,721
Suppliers 16,864 10,866
109,489 181,365
14.1 Advances against purchase of shares - related parties
Hascol Terminals Limited 40,000 57,685
Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited 3,362 2,013
VAS LNG (Private) Limited 1,023 1,023
44,385 60,721
15 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
Current portion of lease deposits 11 762 794
Other deposits 6,636 2,477
7,398 3,271
Prepayments
- Rent 128,485 53,686
- Insurance and others 63,946 23,676
192,431 77,362
199,829 80,633
16 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Inland freight equalization margin receivable 2,792,259 2,019,113
Receivable against services rendered 16.1 22,069 53,346
Franchise income receivable - net 16.2 - 34,642
Receivable against regulatory duty 25,533 25,533
Receivable from oil marketing companies 16.3 = 9,073
Price differential claims 16.4 5,083 5,083
Others 582 14,241
2,845,526 2,161,031
16.1 This represents amount receivable from Hascol Terminals Limited (an associated company) against services

rendered by the Company on account of business support services.
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16.2.1

16.3

16.4

16.5
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18
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Franchise income receivable - net

Movement in gross receivables 97,201 100,653
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Earned during the year (2,848) (3,452)
Received during the year 94,353 97,201
Balance at the end of the year

Movement of provision (62,559) (27,349)
Balance at the beginning of the year 38 (31,794) (35,210)
Charged during the year (94,353) (62,559)
Balance at the end of the year 16.2.1 = 34,642

This represents amount receivable from CNG dealers.

This represents amount receivable from various oil marketing companies on account of share of motor gasoline
imported on their behalf.

This represents amount receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) net of recovery as per fortnightly rates
declared by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources. The Company together with other oil marketing
companies is actively pursuing the matter with the concerned authorities for the early settlement of above claim. The
Company considers that the balance amount will be reimbursed by GoP in due course of time.

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year outstanding
was Rs. 22.609 million.

Note 2018 2017
MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED
From conventional banks 86,904 54,366
From Islamic banks 5,814 3,032
92,718 57,398
TAXATION - NET
Sales tax refundable/(payable) 1,133,647 (609,883)
Income tax refundable/(payable) 137,161 (162,183)
1,270,808 (772,066)
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191

19.2

20

20.1

20.2

20.3

(Rupees in thousand)

Restated Restated
Note 2018 2017 2016
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks:
in current accounts:
- Conventional banks 829,318 864,735 1,408,267
-Dividend account 362,674 107,926 8,764
- Islamic banks = 62,135 1,925
1,191,992 1,034,796 1,418,956
in saving accounts:
- Conventional banks 5,640,352 7,561,072 5,741,121
- Islamic banks 1,897,519 1,079,278 608,028
19.1 7,537,871 8,640,350 6,349,149
Cash in hand 9,584 837 1,729
8,739,447 9,675,983 7,769,834
Term deposit receipts 19.2&22.2 60,000 60,000 60,000
8,799,447 9,735,983 7,829,834
These carry mark-up ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% per annum (2017: 3.75% to 5.5% per annum).
This carry mark-up 5% per annum (2017: 5% per annum).
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2018 2017 Note 2018 2017
Number of shares
250,000,000 150,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 20.2 2,500,000 1,500,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
2018 2017
Number of shares
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully
89,540,000 89,540,000 paid in cash 895,400 895,400
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each for 203
1,060,000 1,060,000 consideration other than cash ’ 10,600 10,600
9,966,000 9,966,000 Annual bonus @ 11% Dec 2014 99,660 99,660
20,113,200 20,113,200 Interim bonus @ 20% Jun 2015 201,132 201,132
24,135,840 24,135,840 Rightissue @ 20% Sep 2017 241,358 241,358
36,203,760 - Bonusissue @ 25% Sep 2018 362,038 -
181,018,800 144,815,040 1,810,188 1,448,150

These were issued on December 8, 2004 for consultancy, feasibility study, travel and other expenses.
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(Rupees in thousand)

An associated company held 49,705,956 (2017: 37,468,365) shares which represents 27.46% (2017 : 25.87% ) of
the equity stake of the Company.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The shareholders are
entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Note 2018 2017

RESERVES
Capital

Share premium 21.1 4,766,854 4,766,854
Revenue

Unappropriated profit 1,735,750 2,702,654
Others

Surplus on re-measurement of available for sale investments (216,958) 322,589

6,285,646 7,792,097

The reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Note 2018 2017
LONG TERM FINANCING - secured
Borrowings from conventional banks 22.1.1 1,910,500 562,500
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions (NBFI) 22.1.2 631,290 1,018,769
Sukuk certificates 22.1.3 1,280,908 1,671,373
3,822,698 3,247,642
Current portion of long term financing
Borrowings from conventional banks 444,938 225,000
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions 351,910 382,479
Sukuk certificates 400,000 400,000
29 (1,196,848) (1,007,479)
Non - current portion of long term financing 2,625,850 2,240,163
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2211

22.1.2

22.1.3

22.2

22.3

22.4

22.5

22.6

(Rupees in thousand)

Terms and conditions of borrowings are as follows

Number of

Particulars Note installments and (;récc bate of final Markup rate per annum Instaliment 2018 2017
period repayment amount
commencement month

Borrowings from conventional banks
First Women Bank Limited 22.2 36 monthly Nil March 28, 2019 six month Kibor + 1.3% 8,333 25,000 125,000
Under DF scheme March-16 payable monthly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-1 22.3 16 quarterly 1year May 24, 2021 three month Kibor + 2.5% 31,250 312,500 437,500
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-2 22.4 16 quarterly 1year March 27,2023 three month Kibor + 1.5% 64,688 1,035,000
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-3 225 16 quarterly 1year March 29, 2023 three month Kibor + 1.5% 33,625 538,000
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutior
Pak China Investment Company Limited 226 12 quarterly Nil February 29, 2020 three month Kibor + 2.25% 41,667 208,333 375,000
Under LTF scheme February-17 payable quarterly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 1 227 42 monthly 6 months November 19, 2018 six month Kibor + 3% 950 - 10,450
Under LTF scheme December-14 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 2 227 42 monthly 6 months February 3, 2019  six month Kibor + 3% 1,431 2,862 20,033
Under LTF scheme March-15 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 3 22.7 42 monthly 6 months May 19, 2019 six month Kibor + 3% 2,190 10,952 37,238
Under LTF scheme June-15 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 4 22.8 42 monthly 6 months April 4, 2020 six month Kibor + 2.5% 1,286 20,571 36,000
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 5 22.8 42 monthly 6 months August 19, 2020 six month Kibor + 2.5% 1,095 21,905 35,048
Under LTF scheme September-16 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 6 229 42 monthly 6 months June 23, 2021 six month Kibor + 2.5% 2,381 71,429 100,000
Under LTF scheme June-17 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 7 22.10 42 monthly 6 months July 18, 2021 six month Kibor + 2.5% 9,524 295,238 400,000
Under LTF scheme July-17 payable monthly
Sukuk certificates 221 20 quarterly 1year January5,2022  three month Kibor + 1.5% 100,000 1,280,908 1,671,373

January-16 payable quarterly

3,822,698 3,247,642

This represents demand finance facility from First Women Bank Limited for construction of retail outlets which is
secured against pledge of TDR of Rs. 60 million, Pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited shares at 40% margin and
personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).

This represents term loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Mehmood
Kot - Muzaffar Garh. The facility is secured against exclusive charge /mortgage of Rs. 666.67 million over the entire
land and building, installation and machinery of the storage depot, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
(Chairman), post-dated cheques covering facility amount and corporate guarantee of M/s Fossil Energy (Private)
Limited and M/s Marshal Gas (Private) Limited.

This represents term finance facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Thaliyan
for the future expansion plans and working capital requirements of the Company which is secured against first pari
passu charge over the Company’s entire fixed assets, excluding land & building, situated at Thaliyan with 25%
margin amounting to Rs. 350 million, with personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman), corporate
guarantee from Fossil Energy Pvt. Ltd and Marshal Gas Pvt. Ltd. and a post dated cheque covering the facility
obtained by the Company.

This represents term finance facility from National Bank of Pakistan (Kotla Jam) for the future expansion plans and
working capital requirements of the Company which is secured against first pari passu charge over the Company’s
land & building, Plant & Equipment, installations and equipment of the storage depot situated at the Kotla Jam site
with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 200 million, with personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman),
corporate guarantee from Fossil Energy Pvt. Ltd and Marshal Gas Pvt. Ltd. and a post dated cheque covering the
facility obtained by the Company.

This represents term finance facility from Pak China Investment Company Limited for the future expansion plans and
working capital requirements of the Company which was secured against first pari passu charge over the Company’s
current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 666.67 million, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
(Chairman) and promissory note covering the charge amount to be obtained from the Company.
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23.1
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(Rupees in thousand)

This represents two term finance facilities from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for establishment of
Daulatpur bulk oil depot. The facility limit were utilized in multiple tranches out of which one of the facility with limit
of Rs. 100 million was availed in two tranches, that is Rs. 39.9 million and Rs. 60.1 million. The other facility with a
limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in a single trench amounting to Rs. 92 million. The finance facilities were secured
against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment situated in Deh Kandah
Nandho with 25% margin.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for expansion of Daulatpur bulk
oil depot. The facility limit of Rs. 100 million was utilized in multiple tranches that is Rs. 54 million and Rs. 46 million
and facility was secured against first pari passu charge on the land, building, plant and machinery and equipment
locate at the Daulatpur Bulk Storage depot with 25% margin.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the expansion of Daulatpur
depot. The facility was secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant, machinery and equipment of
the Company situated at Daulatpur bulk oil depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the establishment of Sahiwal
depot. The facility was secured against exclusive charge on land, building, plant, machinery and equipment of the
Company situated at Sahiwal depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

Note 2018 2017
Sukuk certificates - gross amount 22.11.1 1,300,000 1,700,000
Issuance cost
Balance at the beginning of the year (28,627) (38,179)
Charged to profit and loss 9,535 9,552
Balance at the end of the year (19,092) (28,627)
Sukuk certificates - net amount 1,280,908 1,671,373

This represents rated and secured privately placed long term Islamic certificates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 2,000
million, issued to meet working capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Company. Summit Bank
Limited was the lead financial advisor and arranger while Meezan Bank Limited is acting as Shari’ah structuring
advisor for the Sukuk. The facility is secured against first pari-passu charge over specific depots and retail outlets of
the Company inclusive of 25% margin.

Note 2018 2017
LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,290,367 488,141
Less: current portion 29 (274,374) (110,538)
Non current portion 1,015,993 377,603

The Company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies for lease of items of plant and
machinery and other assets. Minimum lease payments, which are payable by the year 2022, have been discounted
by using financing rates ranging from 6 month KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75% (2017 : 6 month
KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75%). Title to the assets acquired under the leasing arrangements are
transferable to the Company upon payment of entire lease obligations.
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24.1
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(Rupees in thousand)

The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the year in which these payments will

become due are as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Total future minimum lease payments

Finance charge allocated to future years

Present value of future minimum lease payments
Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

DEFERRED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities

Deferred taxation - net

Deferred liability - gratuity

Other liabilities

Payable to MENA Energy DMCC
Current portion

Note 2018 2017
382,749 139,221
1,171,912 411,689
1,554,661 550,910
(264,294) (62,769)
1,290,367 488,141
(274,374) (110,538)
1,015,993 377,603
24.1 - 524,875
24.2 680,707 699,422
24.3 250,593 188,825
931,300 1,413,122
1,320,120 1,049,750
29 (1,320,120) (524,875)
24.1.1 - 524,875

This amount pertains to provision recorded against claim of MENA Energy DMCC against out of court settlement
of an ongoing litigation dispute in the English Commercial Court, London between MENA Energy DMCC and the
Company, based on advice and recommendation of the Solicitors and Senior Counsel representing the Company
in the litigation. The settlement involves the Company agreeing, subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP) approval,
to pay the settlement amount over a period of 18 (eighteen) months in four equal installments of USD 2,375,000
each on 19th May 2018, 19th July 2018, 19th January 2019 and 19th July 2019. However, the approval from SBP is
pending, due to which the whole amount is outstanding as at December 31, 2018.

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
This comprises the following:
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of :

Accelerated depreciation

Assets under finance lease

Revaluation of operating fixed assets

Surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of :
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Exchange loss

Provision for:

- provision investments in subsidiary

- other liabilities

- retirement benefits

- doubtful trade debts

- franchise income

Turnover tax

(673,552) (826,625)
(106,526) (160,068)

(1,555,453) (431,061)

£ (26,156)

356,942 146,442

102,939 92,461

8,569 9,181

290,383 314,925

69,417 56,648

24,728 2,368

26,100 18,768

775.746 103.695

24.2.1 (680.707) (699.422)
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Note 2018 2017
24.2.1 Movement in deferred tax (liability)/ assets

Balance at the beginning of the year (699,422) (408,790)
Deferred tax expense
- through unconsolidated profit and loss account 874,662 (362,430)
- through unconsolidated other comprehensive loss 34,289 71,798
- direct adjusted from revaluation (890,236) -
Balance at the end of the year 18,715 (290,633)

(680,707) (699,422)

24.3 DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees who have completed the employment period
of 5 years. Provision is created for the benefit of the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuations. Number of eligible
employees covered in scheme are 390 (2017: 298).

The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme as at December 31, 2018 was carried out using the projected unit credit
method, details of which as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Deferred liability - gratuity 24.31 250,593 188,825
24.3.1 Movement in liability recognized in unconsolidated
balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation as
at the end of the year 24.3.2 250,593 188,825
Fair value of plan assets = -
Balance sheet liability 250,593 188,825
24.3.2 Movement in liability recognized in unconsolidated
balance sheet
Balance at the beginning of the year 188,825 135,791
Add: charge for the year 2434 49,418 35,261
Less: payments to outgoing employees (16,698) (25,825)
Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income 29,048 43,598
Balance at the end of the year 250,593 188,825
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24.3.3

24.3.4

24.3.5

24.3.6

Movement in present value of the defined benefit
obligation

Opening balance

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurement of actuarial losses - net of tax
Impact of deferred tax

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Expense recognized in the unconsolidated
profit and loss account

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

Expense recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account

Remeasurement recognized in unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit
liability - net of tax

Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Split by vested / non - vested
(i) Vested benefits
(ii) Non-vested benefits

Split by benefits earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits
(i) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase

Expected distribution of timing of benefit payments
time in years

Within first year from the end of financial year
Within second years from the end of financial year
Within third years from the end of financial year
Within fourth years from the end of financial year
Within five years from the end of financial year
Within six to ten years from the end of financial year

Note

37

35.1

37

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
188,825 135,791
34,275 24,131
- 248
15,143 10,882
(16,698) (25,825)
221,545 145,227
20,915 30,519
8,133 13,079
29,048 43,598
250,593 188,825
34,275 24,131
- 248
15,143 10,882
49,418 35,261
29,680 30,519
186,052 148,834
63,335 39,991
95,407 100,706
153,980 86,281
19,138 17,151
25,320 26,209
27,357 9.718
22,897 28,546
32,031 14,080
413,320 218,106
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(Rupees in thousand)

Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on
present value of defined benefit obligation

Discount rate +1% 228,839 171,406
Discount rate -1% 273,277 205,229
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 274,255 205,997
Expected rate of salary increase -1% 227,657 170,475
Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation 2018 2017

Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit
obligation (time in years) 8.86 8.99

Key statistics

Average age (time in years) 42.59 42.46
Average service (time in years) 4.85 5.36
Average entry age (time in years) 37.74 37.10
Retirement assumption age (time in years) 60 60
SLIC SLIC
Mortality rates (2001-05)-1 (2001-05)-1

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).

24.3.7 Historical information of staff retirement benefits
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Present value of gratuity 250,593 188,825 135,791 99,090 71,057

24.3.8  The expected gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2018 works out to be Rs. 49.418 million.
24.3.9  Actuarial assumptions

The following significant assumptions were used in the valuation carried out at the balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method:

2018 2017
% per annum

- Expected long-term rate of increase in salary level 13.25 7.75
- Discount rate 13.25 7.75

Note 2018 2017

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 25.1 25,004,964 25,112,678
Advance from customers 4,278,366 4,608,668
Payable to cartage contractors 3,348,014 3,054,943
Dealers' and customers' security deposits 25.2 309,905 254,680
Accrued liabilities 13,838 11,220
Other liabilities 1,576,060 1,279,184
34,531,147 34,321,373
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25.1

25.2

26

27

28

28.1

(Rupees in thousand)

This includes Rs 14,141 million (2017: Rs. 13,609 million) amount payable to M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated

company).

The security deposits are non-interest bearing and are refundable on termination of contracts.

Note 2018 2017
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Balance at beginning of the year 107,926 8,764
Add: dividend for the year 1,013,706 844,754
Less: payments during the year (758,958) (745,592)
Balance at end of the year 362,674 107,926
MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED
Long-term financing 41,975 40,172
Short-term borrowings 263,216 71,400
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 6,785 2,431
Letter of credit = 3,255
311,976 117,258
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Borrowings from conventional banks - secured
National Bank of Pakistan - FATR 3,999,990 -
Habib Bank Limited - FATR 2,332,298 -
National Bank of Pakistan 1,491,001 1,500,000
United Bank Limited - FATR 891,716 -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 500,000 -
Bank of Punjab 499,729 500,000
Bank of Khyber 484,388 -
Samba Bank Limited 397,675 196,070
Sindh Bank Limited 395,623 132,463
First Women Bank Limited 349,841 -
Summit Bank Limited 334,272 44,515
Habib Bank Limited 146,134 -
United Bank Limited 56,434 24,560
28.1 11,879,101 2,397,608
Borrowings from Islamic bank - secured
Meezan Bank Limited 3,500,000 3,000,000
Bank Alfalah - Salam 500,000 -
28.1 4,000,000 3,000,000
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions
- secured
PAIR Investment Company Limited 500,000 -
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited = 100,000
28.2 500,000 100,000
Commercial paper - unsecured 28.3 2,498,365 1,447,091
18,877,466 6,944,699

These facilities were availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 6,500 million (2017: Rs. 7,700 million).
The rates of mark-up ranges from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2017: 3 month KIBOR
plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25%). These arrangements are secured against hypothecation charge over the
Company’s present and future current assets with minimum 25% margin, pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited
shares, with minimum 40% margin, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).
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28.3

28.4

29

30

30.1

30.2

(i)
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(Rupees in thousand)

These loans have been obtained aggregating to Rs. 800 million (2017: Rs. 300 million). The rate of mark-up is 1 month
KIBOR plus 1.8% (2017: 3 month KIBOR plus 1.8%). These are secured against hypothecation charge over the
Company’s present and future current assets.

Note 2018 2017
Movement in commercial paper
Discounted value 2,399,714 1,446,204
Unwinding of discount 98,651 887
Amortized cost 28.4 2,498,365 1,447,091

This represents rated, privately placed, Shari’ah compliant, Commercial Paper (CP) amounting to Rs. 2,500 million
issued to meet the working capital requirements of the Company. Bank Islami Pakistan Limited was the lead financial
advisors and arrangers. The loan shall run for a period of one year covering two CP issues each having tenor of six
months. The disbursement of second CP issue shall be subject to minimum two days clean-up period after complete
adjustment of first CP issue. Instrument is unsecured, non-convertible and redeemable at maturity date in bullet
payment.

Note 2018 2017
CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 22 1,196,848 1,007,479
Current portion of deferred and other liabilities 24 1 1,320,120 524,875
Current portion of liabilities subject to finance lease 23 274,374 110,538
2,791,342 1,642,892

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

As per the deliberations of the main committee of the Oil Companies Advisory Committee (OCAC) held in their
meeting number MCM-168 dated September 20, 2007, the financial costs on outstanding Price Differential Claims
(PDCs) should be worked and billed to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) through OCAC by the Oil Marketing
Companies (OMCs) on a regular basis. Although the Company had billed Rs. 65.97 million to the GOP/ OCAC,
the management had not accounted for its impact in these unconsolidated financial statements as the inflow of
economic benefits, though probable, is not virtually certain.

Commitments
The facility for opening letters of credit acceptances as at December 31, 2018 amounted to Rs. 68,250

million (2017: Rs. 45,425 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. 6,433
million (2017: Rs. 14,752 million).
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

31

32

33

33.1

Bank guarantees

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for

but not yet incurred are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Commitments for rental of assets under operating lease / ijarah

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

SALES - NET

Gross sales inclusive of sales tax
Less: sales discount

OTHER REVENUE

Owned tank lorries

Franchise fee

Joining fee for petrol pump operators
Non fuel retail and lubricants

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD

Opening stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials
Raw and packing materials purchased
Less: closing stock of lubricants, raw and
packing materials
Lubricants, raw and packing materials consumed

Opening stock - fuel

Fuel purchased

Storage and handling charges

Duties and levies

Less: closing stock - fuel & petrochemical

Note

12

33.1

33.2
12

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
350,268 350,268
1,029,427 978,418
479,942 262,484
1,719,780 913,557
2,795,313 1,709,781
4,995,035 2,885,822
276,107,357 215,924,271
(503,243) (261,969)
275,604,114 215,662,302
663,248 316,408
98,816 91,113
49,350 56,650
25,297 36,289
836,711 500,460
422,386 394,986
1,041,273 1,080,201
(559,603) (422,386)
904,056 1,052,801
18,134,720 16,082,682
196,726,031 137,104,662
728,634 586,673
20,729,741 30,158,559
(22,055,700) (18,134,720)
223,263,426 165,797,856
224,167,482 166,850,657

This includes fuel purchased from local refineries and imports. Imports comprise 68% (2017: 79%) of totalpurchases

from M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated company).
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
33.2 Duties and levies
Petroleum development levy 21,184,584 21,768,506
Inland freight equalization margin 6,015,598 5,548,169
Freight 2,529,559 2,841,884
29,729,741 30,158,559
34 DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 35.1 953,511 746,313
Depreciation 8.10 946,426 486,087
Rent, rates and taxes 359,000 252,142
Fuel and power 34.1 325,431 155,859
Traveling and conveyance 314,801 226,547
Repairs and maintenance 266,371 152,922
Insurance 239,126 181,726
Commission 162,146 227,932
Advertising and publicity 122,656 98,287
Ujrah payments 118,370 64,251
Royalty 34.2 47,785 21,144
Printing, communication and stationery 39,094 33,786
Fees and subscription 20,211 9,764
Legal and professional charges 10,215 9,906
3,925,143 2,666,666
34.1 Total expense of fuel and power includes fuel expense of owned tank lorries Rs. 229.63 million (2017: Rs. 82.12 million).

34.2 Royalty charged in these financial statement pertains to FUCHS Oil Middle East Limited having registered office at
SAIF Zone, Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

Note 2018 2017
35 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 35.1 462,650 289,474
Fee and subscription 35.2 94,199 39,861
Legal and professional charges 69,474 68,007
Traveling and conveyance 44,163 39,952
Insurance 38,613 31,800
Repairs and maintenance 39,596 28,512
Depreciation 8.10 30,916 23,476
Rent, rates and taxes 27,958 25,462
Printing, communication and stationery 25,024 21,563
Advertising and publicity 21,814 18,114
Fuel and power 13,164 9,860
Donation 35.3 11,790 12,176
Auditors' remuneration 35.4 3,565 3,182
Amortization 43 -

882,969 611,439
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(Rupees in thousand)

35.1 Salaries and other benefits relating to distribution and administrative expense include:

Note 2018 2017
- Gratuity 24.3.4 34,275 24,379
- Contribution to provident fund 29,834 22,212

35.2 This includes Shariah audit fee amounting to Rs. 0.7 million (2017: Rs. 0.7 million) relating to Sukuk.

35.3 Donation includes amount of Rs. 1.00 million (2017: Rs. 0.88 million) paid to Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust
(LRBT), Mr. Najmus Saquib Hameed, director of the Company, who is also Chief Executive Officer of LRBT. Further,
names of donees to whom donation amount is equivalent or exceeds Rupees 0.5 million are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Tehzib Ul Akhlaqg Trust 1,500,000 600,000
Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust (LRBT) 1,000,000 880,000
Karwan-e-Hayat 1,000,000 -
SOS Children's Villages Pakistan 2,500,000 2,500,000
One to many 2,040,000 -
Pakistan Association of the Blind 2,500,000 300,000
35.4 Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit 1,630 1,455
Certifications 672 600
Half yearly review 541 483
Out of pocket expenses 425 379
Consolidation 297 265
3,565 3,182
36 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on bank deposits
- conventional banks 357,131 237,434
- Islamic banks 61,456 41,619
418,587 279,053
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 86,207 21,894
Sundries 10,347 7,466
Promotional marketing fee 8,458 7,497
Scrap sales 2,168 1,525
Rental income 1,575 2,818
Reversal of provison of Workers' Welfare Fund = 97,228
108,755 138,428
527,342 417,481
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
37 FINANCE COST
Conventional
Short term borrowings 475,177 209,117
Letter of credit 219,792 96,727
Long term borrowings 17,807 7,837
Assets obtained under finance lease 74,082 32,602
Bank charges 23,703 10,431
Interest cost of gratuity scheme 2434 15,143 6,664
825,704 363,378
Islamic
Short term borrowings 321,226 141,366
Letter of credit 94,907 41,767
Long term borrowings 71,607 31,513
Assets obtained under finance lease 3,626 1,596
Bank charges 7,192 3,165
498,558 219,407
1,324,262 582,785
38 OTHER EXPENSES
Provision against franchise income 16.2 31,794 35,210
Provision against doubtful debts 84,900 -
Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim = 449,750
Income tax penalty = 6,135
116,694 491,095
39 TAXATION
Current 1,081,640 764,662
Prior 237,761 130,359
Deferred (874,662) 362,430
444,739 1,257,451
39.1 Management of the Company has provided sufficient tax provision in the financial statements in accordance with

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Following is the comparison of tax provision as per accounts vis a vis tax assessment

for last three years:

Deemed
assessment
Tax year 2018 826,238
Tax year 2017 356,713
Tax year 2016 261,653

Provision

764,662
700,869
330,862
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39.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxation
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2017: 30%)
Tax effect on income under final tax regime
Reversal of deferred tax asset - net
Prior year tax
Other adjustments
Tax expense for the year

40 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousand)

Earning per share - basic (Rupees)

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
651,882 2,658,699
189,046 797,610

32,962 64,239

(874,662) 362,430

237,761 130,359

859,632 (97,187)

444,739 1,257,451

207,143 1,401,248
Restated

2018 2017
181,019 163,691

1.14 8.56

There is no dilutive effect on basic earning per share as the Company has no potential ordinary shares outstanding

at year end.
41 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2018 2017
Chief . ) Chief Directors )
. Directors Executives . *Executives
Executive Executive S
Director's fee - 20,100 - - - -
Managerial remuneration 63,311 - 425,618 34,769 34,769 323,884
Cost of living allowance 5,943 - 47,291 3,863 3,863 40,088
Reimbursement of medical expenses 58 4,323 30,634 2,012 2,012 22,871
Bonus - - - 18,563 18,563 30,960
Retirement benefits 3,286 - 20,986 1,910 1,910 15,540
72,598 24,423 524,529 61,117 61,117 433,343
Number of persons 1 8 172 2 2 136
41.1 The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars and

cellular connections. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is provided with free security services in accordance

with the terms of employment

*Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the description of executives as per Companies Act, 2017.
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprises of associated undertakings, directors, major shareholders, key management personnel,
entities over which the directors are able to exercise influence, entities under common directorship and staff

retirement fund.

Significant transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial

statements, are as follows:

42.1 Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship

Liaquat Noman
Vitol Dubai Limited
Clover Pakistan Limited
Hascol Terminals Limited
Hascombe Business Solutions
Marshal Gas

42.2 Balances with related parties
Associated companies
Hascol Terminals Limited
Hascol Lubricants (Private)
Limited

VAS LNG (Private) Limited

Nature of transaction

Consultancy services
Procurement
Procurement

Business support service
Procurement

Assets Procurement

Advance against issue of
shares

Advance against issue of
shares

Advance against issue of
shares

VAS LNG (Private) Limited Investments
Hascol Terminals Limited Investments

42.3 Related parties with no transaction or balances
Name Relationship

Fossil Energy (Private) Limited

Associated company

Percentage of
shareholding

2.20%
27.46%
N/A
N/A
N/A

6.44%

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
= 11,400
125,768,587 96,453,017
122,667 -
22,069 53,346
408,522 -
183,288 -
40,000 57,685
3,362 2,013
1,023 1,023
3,000 3,000
375,000 375,000

Percentage of shareholding

2018

10.66%

2017
10.45%
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42.4

43

43.1

44

Following are the associated companies with whom the company had ended into transactions or have agreement/

agreements:
S.No Company Name
1 Vitol Dubai Limited
2 Marshal Gas (Private) Limited
3 Hascol Terminals Limted

CASH (USED) IN / GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision against franchise income
Provision for gratuity

Provision for doubtful debts

Profit on bank deposits

(Reversal) / provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Provision against MENA energy DMCC
Exchange loss - unrealised

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Finance cost

Changes in working capital

Changes in working capital
Current assets
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Advances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Changes in working capital

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Less: term deposit receipt

Short-term borrowings
Add: commercial paper

Note

16.2
24.3.4

36
38
36

37
43.1

19
19

28
28

(Rupees in thousand)

Basic of Association

Associated Company
Common Directorship
Common Directorship

2018 2017
651,882 2,658,699
977,385 509,563

31,794 35,210
34,275 35,261
84,900 -
(418,587) (279,053)

. (97,228)

- 449,750

372,133 308,204
(86,207) (21,894)
1,324,262 582,785
(6,699,156) (1,792,630)
(3,727,319) 2,388,667
(4,058,197) (2,079,438)
(2,118,917) (3,646,937)
71,876 72,048
(119,196) (9,664)
(684,495) (1,016,278)
(6,908,929) (6,680,269)
209,773 4,887,639
(6,699,156) (1,792,630
8,799,447 9,735,983
(60,000) (60,000)
8,739,447 9,675,983
(18,877,466) (6,944,699)
2,498,365 1,447,091
(16,379,101) (5,497,608)
(7,639,654) 4,178,375
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(Rupees in thousand)

45 OPERATING SEGMENTS
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.
- Sales from petroleum products represents 99.13 % (2017: 99.2 %) of total revenues of the Company.
- Out of total sales of the Company 98.9 % (2017: 99.1 %) related to customers in Pakistan.
- All non-current assets of the Company as at 31 December, 2018 are located in Pakistan.
The Company sells its product to dealers, governments agencies and autonomous bodies, independent power

project and other corporate customers. Sales to ten major customers of the Company are around 43.09% during
the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: 41.1%).

Note 2018 2017
46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per Balance sheet
Available for sale
Long term investments 10 1,330,814 1,896,518
At amortized cost
Deposits 555,170 334,808
Trade debts 13 13,552,235 11,518,218
Advances 14 81,320 135,342
Other receivables 16 2,845,526 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued 17 92,718 57,398
Cash and bank balances 19 8,799,447 9,735,983

25,926,416 23,942,780
Total financial assets 27,257,230 25,839,298
Financial liabilities as per Balance sheet
At amortized cost
Long-term financing 22 3,822,698 3,247,642
Unclaimed dividend 26 362,674 107,926
Other liabilities 1,320,120 1,049,750
Trade and other payables 25 34,517,309 34,310,153
Mark-up and profit accrued 27 311,976 117,258
Short-term borrowings 28 18,877,466 6,944,699
Total financial liabilities 59,212,243 45,777,428

a7 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
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Fair values versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the unconsolidated
balance sheet are as follows:

2018 2017

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

amount amount
Financial assets
Long term investments 1,330,814 1,330,814 1,896,518 1,896,518
Deposits 555,170 555,170 334,808 334,808
Trade debts 13,552,235 13,552,235 11,518,218 11,518,218
Advances 81,320 81,320 135,342 135,342
Other receivables 2,845,526 2,845,526 2,161,031 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued 92,718 92,718 57,398 57,398
Cash and bank balances 8,799,447 8,799,447 9,735,983 9,735,983

27,257,230 27,257,230 25,839,298 25,839,298
2018 2017

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

amount amount
Financial liability
Long-term financing 3,822,698 3,822,698 3,247,642 3,247,642
Unclaimed dividend 362,674 362,674 107,926 107,926
Other liabilities 1,320,120 1,320,120 1,049,750 1,049,750
Trade and other payables 34,517,309 34,517,309 34,310,153 34,310,153
Mark-up and profit accrued 311,976 311,976 117,258 117,258
Short-term borrowings 18,877,466 18,877,466 6,944,699 6,944,699

59,212,243 59,212,243 45,777,428 45,777,428

Valuation of financial instruments

The Company measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.
Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other financial
instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do not have a market/
quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques includes risk-free rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices. The
objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial instrument at the
balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s length.
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c)

a Hascol Annual Report

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs
and a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management
judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used,
determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate

discount rates.

Financial assets

2018

Long term investments
2017

Long term investments

d) Non-financial assets

2018

Building on lease hold land

- Office and depots building

- Pump building

Tanks and pipelines

Dispensing pumps

Plant and machinery

Electrical, mechanical and fire
fighting equipment

Furniture, office equipment
and other assets

Computer auxiliaries

2017

Building on lease hold land
- Office and depots building
- Pump building

Tanks and pipelines
Dispensing pumps

Plant and machinery
Electrical, mechanical and fire
fighting equipment

(Rupees in thousand)

Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
1,330,814 955,814 375,000 - 1,330,814
1,896,518 1,521,518 375,000 - 1,896,518
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
4,116,170 - 4,116,170 4,116,170
2,852,472 - 2,852,472 2,852,472
3,532,433 - 3,532,433 3,532,433
1,051,529 - 1,051,529 1,051,529
490,461 - 490,461 490,461
1,742,036 - 1,742,036 1,742,036
190,491 - 190,491 190,491
75,761 - 75,761 75,761
14,051,353 - 14,051,353 14,051,353
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
2,464,822 - 2,464,822 2,464,822
1,552,314 - 1,552,314 1,552,314
2,161,249 - 2,161,249 2,161,249
706,492 - 706,492 706,492
303,547 - 303,547 303,547
1,035,584 - 1,035,584 1,035,584
8,224,008 - 8,224,008 8,224,008
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48

48.1

48.1.1

@)

(Rupees in thousand)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: Note
- Market risk 48.1.1
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 48.1.2
- Liquidity risk 48.1.3

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring any increase in risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board oversee how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures, and review the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk,
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating and investing activities. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range.
The market risk includes:

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It
arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The Company imports
petroleum product and is thus exposed to currency risk in respect to foreign creditors, which at the year end amount to USD 102
million (2017: USD 129.67 million) having PKR equivalent amount of Rs. 14,188.63 million (2017: Rs. 13,333.70 million). The
average rates applied during the year is Rs. 121.91 per USD (2017: Rs. 107.73 per USD) and the spot rate as at December 31,
2018 is Rs. 138.69 per USD (2017: Rs. 110.50 per USD).

The Company manages its currency risk by close monitoring of currency markets. Under regulatory requirements, the
Company cannot hedge its currency risk exposure. Consequently, the Company recorded exchange loss amounting to
Rs. 3,903.04 million (2017: Rs. 795.77 million) during the year.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Sensitivity analysis

As at December 31, 2018, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year would have been lower/higher by Rs. 98.583 million (2017: Rs. 667 million).

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises due to long-term financing and short
term borrowings. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s mark-up bearing financial
instruments is summarized as follows:

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would effect on profit or loss before tax is
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates remain constant.

Profit and loss Equity
Cash flow sensitivity of 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps
variable rate instruments increase decrease increase decrease
(Expense) / income
As at December 31, 2018 (15,742) 15,742 (11,177) 11,177
As at December 31, 2017 (6,048 ) 6,048 (4,234) 4,234
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(b) Interest / profit rate risk (continued)

2018

Financial assets

Long term investments
Deposits

Trade debts

Advances

Other receivables

Mark-up and profit accrued
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Long term finances
Unclaimed dividend

Other liabilities

Trade and other payables
Mark-up and profit accrued
Short-term borrowings

On balance sheet gap

2017

Financial assets

Long term investments
Deposits

Trade debts

Advances

Other receivables

Mark-up and profit accrued
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Long term finances
Unclaimed dividend
Other liabilities

Trade and other payables
Mark-up accrued
Short-term borrowings

(Rupees in thousand)

Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk

Non-interest/profit bearin

Effective
yield/
interest/profit Maturity Maturity Sub- Maturity Maturity Sub-
rate % up to one after one Total up to one after one Total Total
(Per annum) year year year year
(@)
- 1,330,814 1,330,814 1,330,814
- - 7,398 547,772 555,170 555,170
- - 13,552,235 - 13,552,235 13,552,235
- - 81,320 - 81,320 81,320
- - 2,845,526 - 2,845,526 2,845,526
- - 92,718 - 92,718 92,718
3.75-5.5 7,537,871 60,000 7,597,871 1,201,576 - 1,201,576 8,799,447
7,537,871 60,000 7,597,871 17,780,773 1,878,586 19,659,359 27,257,230
(b)
7.95-10.15 1,196,848 2,625,850 3,822,698 - - 3,822,698
- - 362,674 - 362,674 362,674
- - 1,320,120 1,320,120 1,320,120
- - 34,517,309 34,517,309 34,517,309
- - 311,976 311,976 311,976
7.39-9.12 18,877,466 18,877,466 - 18,877,466
20,074,314 2,625,850 22,700,164 35,191,959 1,320,120 36,512,079 59,212,243
(a)-(b) (12,536,443) (2,565,850) (15,102,293) (17,411,186) 558,466 (16,852,720) (31,955,013)
Effective Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk Non-interest/profit bearing
) yield! Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
interest/profit Sub- Sub-
rate % up to one after one Total up to one after one Total Total
(Per annum) year year year year
(@
- - - - 1,896,518 1,896,518 1,896,518
- - - 3,271 331,537 334,808 334,808
- - - 11,518,218 11,518,218 11,518,218
- - - 135,342 - 135,342 135,342
- - - 2,161,031 - 2,161,031 2,161,031
57,398 - 57,398 57,398
3.75-6 8,640,350 60,000 8,700,350 1,035,633 - 1,035,633 9,735,983
8,640,350 60,000 8,700,350 14,910,893 2,228,055 17,138,948 25,839,298
(b)
7.95-10.15 1,007,479 2,240,163 3,247,642 - - - 3,247,642
- - - - 107,926 - 107,926 107,926
- - - - 524,875 524,875 1,049,750 1,049,750
- - - - 34,310,153 - 34,310,153 34,310,153
- - - - 117,258 - 117,258 117,258
8.15-9.65 6,944,699 - 6,944,699 - - - 6,944,699
7,952,178 2,240,163 10,192,341 35,060,212 524,875 35,585,087 45,777,428
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(Rupees in thousand)

(c) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuers, or factors affecting all or similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in
quoted equity securities amounting to Rs. 955.81 million (2017: Rs. 1,522 million) at the balance sheet date.

The Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict
discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.

The value of investment subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instance, based on quoted market price as of
the reporting date except for unquoted investments which are carried at cost. Market prices are subject to fluctuation
and consequently the amount realized as a result of subsequent sale of an investment may differ from the reported
market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying
economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investment and general market condition.
Furthermore, the amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the
security being sold.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarizes the Company’s equity price risk as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and shows the
effects of a hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected
hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly,
the sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indication of the effect on Company’s net assets of future
movement in the level of PSX 100 index.

Estimated fair Hypothetical Hypothetical
Hypothetical value increase / increase /
Fair price change at hypothetical (decrease) in (decrease) in
value 30% after change in shareholders pofit / (loss)
price equity

2018 955,814 Increase 1,242,558 286,744 286,744
Decrease 669,070 (286,744) (286,744)
2017 1,521,518 Increase 1,977,973 456,455 456,455
Decrease 1,065,063 (456,455) (456,455)

48.1.2 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to the historical performance with no or some
defaults in recent history. The Company manages credit risk of receivables through the monitoring of credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific customers and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of its
customers.
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The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Long term investments 10 1,330,814 1,896,518
Deposits 555,170 334,808
Trade debts - unsecured 13 4,379,108 7,859,974
Advances 14 81,320 135,342
Other receivables 16 2,845,526 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued 17 92,718 57,398
Bank balances 19 8,789,863 9,735,146
18,074,519 22,180,217

Aging analysis of trade debts:

2018 2017
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired

Past due 1-30 days 12,051,744 10,582,457 -
Past due 31-90 days 1,383,451 935,761 -
Past due 91-180 days 5,084 - -
Past due 181-365 days 1,070 - - -
Over 1 year 106,313 81,500 - -
Over 5 years 7973 7,973 7,973 7,973
13,555,635 89,473 11,526,191 7,973

The credit risk for bank balances is considered to be negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks
and institutions with high quality external credit ratings. The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past

due nor impaired can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Islamic Banks Short term Short term Long term
Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA A A1
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A+ A1
Meezan Bank Limited JCR- VIS AA+ A-1+
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A A1
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan JCR- VIS AA- A-1
Conventional banks

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Moody's A1 P-1
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank Al Falah Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank of Khyber PACRA A-1 A
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
First Women Bank Limited PACRA A2 A-
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
SAMBA Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1 AA
Silk Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-2 A-
Sindh Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AA
Summit Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1 A-
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(Rupees in thousand)

Rating Agency Short term Long term
United Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
Pak China Investment Company Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AA+
PAIR Investment Company Limited PACRA Al+ AA

48.1.3  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors
the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors
and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
customers. The Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

Within one Over

year one year Total

2018 1,196,848 2,625,850 3,822,698
Long-term finances - secured - 1,320,120 1,320,120
Other liabilities 34,517,309 - 34,517,309
Trade and other payable 362,674 - 362,674
Unclaimed dividend 311,976 - 311,976
Mark-up accrued 18,877,466 - 18,877,466
Short-term running finances - secured 55,266,273 3.945.970 59,212,243
2017 1,007,479 2,240,163 3,247,642
Long term finances 524,875 524,875 1,049,750
Other liabilities 34,310,153 - 34,310,153
Trade and other payables 117,258 - 117,258
Mark-up accrued 107,926 - 107,926
Unclaimed dividend 6,944,699 - 6,944,699
Short-term borrowings 43,012,390 2,765,038 45,777,428
49 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market’s confidence
and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net
profit/(loss) after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders subject to the availability of funds.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Note 2018 2017

Total interest bearing debt
Trade and other payables 25 23,990,531 10,680,482
Mark-up and profit accrued 27 34,531,147 34,321,373
Less: cash and bank balances 19 311,976 117,258
Excess of net cash over debt/ net debt (8,799,447) (9,735,983)
Total shareholders' equity and revaluation surplus 50,034,207 35,383,130
Net equity 12,484,990 10,266,036

62,519,197 45,649,166
Gearing ratio 80.03% 77.51%

Hascol Annual Report




Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

50

50.1

50.2

51

EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND

(Rupees in thousand)

The Company operates approved provident fund for its eligible employees as of 31 December, 2018. Details of assets

and investments of the fund is as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Size of fund - total assets (Rupees in '000) 122,179 99,071
Number of members 352 295
Cost of investments made (Rupees in '000) 121,826 101,727
Percentage of investments made 100% 103%
Fair value of investments (Rupees in '000) 50.1 121,576 100,695
The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:
2018 2017
Investments Percentage of Investments Percentage of
(Rs in '000) investment (Rs in '000) investment
made made
Saving bank accounts 88,365 73 67,043 66
Regular income certificates 19,365 16 17,919 18
Mutual fund 13,846 11 15,733 16
121,576 100 100,695 100

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies

Act, 2017 and applicable rules.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed with reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.

Description Explanation

Loans and advances Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 22 and 28
Deposits Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 11 and 15.
Segment revenue Disclosed in note 45.

Bank balances Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible

arrangement as disclosed in note 19.

Income on bank deposits Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible

arrangement as disclosed in note 35.

Gain/(loss) on disposal of

available-for-sale investments Not applicable during the year.
Dividend income Not applicable during the year.
All sources of income Disclosed in note 31, 32 and 36.
Exchange gain Not applicable during the year.
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(Rupees in thousand)

S.No Description Explanation

(x) Mark up paid on Islamic mode
of financing Disclosed in note 36.

(xi) Relationship with banks having Following is the list of banks with which the Company has a
Islamic windows relationship with Islamic window of operations:

S.NO Names of Islamic bank
1 Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited

2 Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
3 Meezan Bank Limited
4 MCB Islamic Bank Limited
5 Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan
(xii) Profits earned or interest paid on  Disclosed in note 36 and 37
any conventional loan or advance
52 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees as at year end 2018 2017
Average number of employees during the year
988 755
872 611

53 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 03, 2019 has proposed bonus issue @ 10% i.e. one share of
every ten shares held for the year ended December 31, 2018 for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on April 29, 2018. These unconsolidated financial statements do not include the effect of the
proposed bonus issue which will be accounted for in the unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2019.

54 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue on April 03, 2018 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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An instinct for growth

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT wpgilisny

To the members of Hascol Petroleum Limited O e T
S

Report on the andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consobdated financial statements of Hascol Petroleum Limited
and is subsidiaries {the Group), which compeise the consolidated seatement of fimancial posinon &5
at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit o loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in eguity and the consolidated

staternent of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statemnents,
including 4 summary of significant sccounting polscies and other explanatory informanon.

In our opinton, consolidated financinl statements give a tue and fair view of the consosdated
financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2M8, and (of) its consolidared Arancial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
accounting wnd reporting stndands as applicable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Audsting (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistin. Our responstbilities under those standards ate further described m the Auditor’s
Responsibelities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements secton of our teport. We are
mdependent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Hoard for
Accountants’ Code of Erhics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the
Chartered  Nccounmanis of Pakistan (the Code), and we have filfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtamed i
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opizion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit marnters are those matters thar, in our professional judgrment, were of most significance n
our andit of the consofidated financial statements of the current period. These matters wezne
addressed in the context of our audit of the comolidated frnancial sutements as a whole, and m
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 1 separste opinion on these matters.,

We have determined that theee are no key audit maticss 10 communscate in our report.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The management is responsible for the other mformation, The ather mformation comprises the
mfonmanon meluded in the annual report but does not nclude the consolidated financial statements
and our andiror's report thereon,

Out opinian on the consolidsted Gnancial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of sssurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our aodit of the fnancial stitements, our responsibility is 1o read the other
information and, in dotng 5o, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial smtements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 10 be
materially misstated. 1€, based on the work we have pesformed, we conclude that there is § matcrial
misstatement m this other nformation; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 10
repoet in this repard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Mastagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements n accordance with accounting and reporting standards a5 applicable m Pakistan and
Compames Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary (o enable
the prepanation of consolidated financial statements that ace free frum marceal misstatement,
whether due 0 fraud or exror,

In preparing the consolidated finandial statoments, management 15 responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as 1 going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matees related 1o going
concern and using, the going concern basis of accounting unless mangement either intends 10
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistie alternative but 1o do so.

The Board of Dizectors 1s nesponsible for ovessecing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditoe's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements

Our objectves are to obtxin reasonable assutance about whether the consolidated  financial
statements a5 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud oz error, and to
issise 20 sucitor’s report that inchudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 4 high Jevel of sssurance,
bt 15 not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstarements can arise from fraud oc error and
are considered maredal if, individually oz in the aggregate, they could reasoably be expected 1o
influence the economic decistons of users taken un the bass of these comsolidared financial
STATCIENIS,
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As part of an audit m accordance with ISAs #s applicable m Pakistan, we excreise professional
judgrment and maintain professionnl skepticism theoughouat the audit. We also:

o ldenify and gsscss the risks of material misstatement of the consobdated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or etror, desipn and perform audis procedures sesponmve
1o these risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appeopniate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detocting 3 matenial misstatement reswltng from fraud is
hugher than for one resulting from errar, 2s fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, mtennenal
omisssons, misrepresentations, ot the averride of mternal control

o  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the sudit in arder to design audir
procedures that are appropriate tn the ciraunstances, but nac for the purpose of expressiag
an epinson on the effectivencss of the Group's mtermal control

o Evaluate the appropsateness of accounting policses used and the reasonableness of
accounting sstimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Coacude on the appropeateniess of mansgement’s use of the going. concern basis of
aceounting ad, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relited to events or conditions thar may cast signaficant doubt oo the Group's abdity 1o
continue a8 a gomg concern. If we conclude that a material uncermainey exists, We are
required  draw attention i oue auditor's repare to the redated disclosures in the
consolidated financial statemens or, if such disclosures ate inadequate, to  modify oar
opinian, Our conchusions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up to the date of ous
auditor’s report. However, funire events or conditions may cause the Group to cesie 10
CONMILE As 1 gaing conoern,

o Evalate the overall presentation, suuctare and content of the consolidated financal
starements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial stutements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtam sufficient appropriste audic evidence regarding the financal infosmanon of the
entities or business activities within the Group 0 express an opinjon on the consolidated
financial statements. We ate ecsponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit, We remun soldy responsable for our sudit opimion,.

We commumncate with the Doard of Directors tqarﬂing, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the suditand significant audit findings, including any signaficant deficiencies in mternal
control that we identify during our audit

We also provide the Boasd of Disectors with 3 statement that we have complied with relevant cthical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and othes
matters that may reasonably be thowsht 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards,
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From the matters communicated with the Boand of Directors, we determine those matters that weee
of most significance in the awdit of the consolidated fimancial statements of the current petiod and
are therefore the key audit mamers. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regudation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 1n extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a manter should not be communicared i our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasomably be expected o ourweigh the public inferest hencfits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the sudit resulting in this independent auditor’s repart is Mubammad
Shaukat Nasceb.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Restated Restated

ASSETS Note 2018 2017 2016
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 22,563,232 13,680,349 9,424,264
Intangible asset 10 2,565 - -
Long-term investments 11 1,332,365 1,898,263 1,886,977
Long-term deposits 12 547,772 331,537 289,632
Total non-current assets 24,445,934 15,910,149 11,600,873
Current assets
Stock-in-trade 13 22,615,303 18,557,106 16,477,668
Trade debts 14 13,552,235 11,518,218 7,871,281
Advances 15 109,489 181,365 44,605
Deposits and prepayments 16 199,829 80,633 109,755
Other receivables 17 2,844,944 2,161,031 1,158,880
Mark-up and profit accrued 18 92,718 57,398 35,816
Taxation - net 19 1,270,808 - -
Cash and bank balances 20 8,799,447 9,736,439 7,834,911
Total current assets 49,484,773 42,292,190 33,527,916
TOTAL ASSETS 73,930,707 58,202,339 45,128,789
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 21 1,810,188 1,448,150 1,206,792
Reserves 22 6,282,360 7,789,623 3,746,665
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant

and equipment - net of tax 4,389,156 1,025,789 1,142,880
Equity attributable to owners of the Holding Company 12,481,704 10,263,562 6,096,337
Non - controlling interest 23 = - 469,714
Total shareholders' equity 12,481,704 10,263,562 6,566,051
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long-term financing 24 2,625,850 2,240,163 2,307,749
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 25 1,015,993 377,603 471,731
Deferred and other liabilities 26 931,300 1,413,122 1,144,581
Total non-current liabilities 4,573,143 4,030,888 3,924,061
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 34,532,402 34,323,048 29,234,263
Unclaimed dividend 28 362,674 107,926 8,764
Mark-up and profit accrued 29 311,976 117,258 91,185
Short-term borrowings 30 18,877,466 6,944,699 3,889,629
Current portion of non-current liabilities 31 2,791,342 1,642,892 747,466
Taxation - net 19 = 772,066 667,370
Total current liabilities 56,875,860 43,907,889 34,638,677
TOTAL LIABILITIES 61,449,003 47,938,777 38,562,738
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 73,930,707 58,202,339 45,128,789
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 32

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

* The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these consolidated financial statements have been
signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

/

Djféétor Chief Financial Officer Director
/
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Sales - net
Less: sales tax
Net sales

Other revenue
Net revenue

Cost of products sold
Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expense
Administrative expenses
Operating expenses
Other income

Operating profit

Finance cost

Other expenses
Exchange loss - net
Share of loss of associate
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit for the year from continued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Profit / (loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company
- continued operations
- discontinued operations

Non - controlling interests
- continued operations
- discontinued operations

Basic and diluted earning/ (loss) per share
- continued operation (Rupees)
- discontinued operation (Rupees)

Note

33

34

35

36
37

38

39
40

11.1.2

41

23.1

42
42

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
275,604,114 215,662,302
(41,996,694) (41,923,129)
233,607,420 173,739,173

836,711 500,460
234,444,131 174,239,633
(224,167,482) (166,850,657)
10,276,649 7,388,976
(3,925,143) (2,666,666)
(883,587) (683,341)
(4,808,730) (3,350,007)
527,342 417,481
5,995,261 4,456,450
(1,324,262) (582,785)
(116,694) (491,095)
(3,903,041) (795,773)
(194) (1,255)
(5,344,191) (1,870,908)
651,070 2,585,542
(444,739) (1,257,451)
206,331 1,328,091
206,331 1,399,831

- (71,740)

206,331 1,328,091
206,331 1,399,831

- (44,837)

206,331 1,354,994
(26,903)

- (26,903)

206,331 1,328,091
(Restated)

1.14 8.11

(0.44)

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

* The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these consolidated financial statements have been
signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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D,iréctor

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Profit for the year 206,331 1,328,091
Items that will not be reclassified
to consolidated profit and loss account subsequently
Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit

obligation - net of tax 26.3.3 (20,915) (30,519)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated profit and loss account
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

- net of tax 3,585,979 -
Unrealized loss on remeasurement of available-for-sale

investments - net of tax (539,547) (302,341)
Other comprehensive income 3,025,517 (332,860)
Total comprehensive (loss) /income 3,231,848 995,231
Total comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Holding Company 3,231,848 1,022,134
Non - controlling interests 231 - (26,903)

3,231,848 995,231

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

* The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these consolidated financial
statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Moo ef? b

Dir9c’t’or Chief Financial Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Balance as at January 01, 2017 as previously reported
Effect of change in Accounting policy (note 5)
Balance as at January 01, 2017 (Restated)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit
obligation - net of tax

Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term
investments - net of tax

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed
assets on account of incremental depreciation - net of tax

Transactions with owners recognized directly in equity
Right issue 20% @ 165/- per share - September 2017
Issuance cost

Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2016
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2017
Changes in ownership structure in subsidiaries
Disposal of non-controlling interest

Total transactions with owners recognized directly in equity

Balance as at December 31, 2017 (Restated)
Balance as at January 01, 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit
obligation - net of tax

Revaluation for the year - net of tax

Unrealized loss due to change in fair value of long-term
investments - net of tax

Total comprehensive loss

Transferred from surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets

on account of incremental depreciation - net of tax

Transactions with owners
Bonus issue 25% per shares - September 2018

Final dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - December 2017
Interim dividend at Rs. 3.50 per share - June 2018

Total transactions with owners
Balance as at December 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Capital Revenue
reserves reserve Others
Surplus on Surplus on
Share remeasurement  revaluation Non - Total
of of property Sub Total controlling shareholders’
Capital Share Unappropri-
d it available for plant and interest equity
premium ated profi sale equipment
investments to
fair value
1,206,792 1,070,828 2,050,907 624,930 - 4,953,457 469,714 5,423,171
- - - - 1,142,880 1,142,880 - 1,142,880
1,206,792 1,070,828 2,050,907 624,930 1,142,880 6,096,337 469,714 6,566,051

- - 1,354,994 - - 1,354,994 (26,903)(| 1,328,091

- - (30,519) - - (30,519) - (30,519)

- - - (302,341) - (302,341) - (302,341)

- - 1,324,475 (302,341) - 1,022,134 (26,903) 995,231

- - 117,091 - (117,091) - - -

- - 1,441,566 (302,341) (117,091) 1,022,134 (26,903) 995,231
241,358 3,741,055 - - - 3,982,413 - 3,982,413

- (45,029) - - - (45,029) - (45,029)
241,358 3,696,026 - - - 3,937,384 - 3,937,384

- - (422,377) - - (422,377) - (422,377)

- - (422,377) - - (422,377) - (422,377)

- - 52,461 - - 52,461 - 52,461

- - - - - - (442,811) (442,811)

- - (792,293) - - (792,293) (442,811)  (1,235,104)
241,358 3,696,026 (792,293) - - 3,145,091 (442,811) _ 2,702,280

1,448,150 4,766,854 2,700,180 322,589 1,025,789 _ 10,263,562 - 10,263,562
1,448,150 4,766,854 2,700,180 322,589 1,025,789 10,263,562 - 10,263,562

- - 206,331 - - 206,331 - 206,331

- - (20,915) - - (20,915) - (20,915)

- - - - 3,585,979 3,585,979 - 3,585,979

- - - (539,547) - (539,547) - (539,547)

- - 185,416 (539,547) 3,585,979 3,231,848 - 3,231,848

- - 222,612 - (222,612) - - -

- - 408,028 (539,547) 3,363,367 3,231,848 - 3,231,848
362,038 - (362,038) - - - -
362,038 - (362,038) - - - - -

- - (506,853) - - (506,853) - (506,853)

- - (506,853) - - (506,853) - (506,853)

- - (1,013,706) - - (1,013,706) - (1,013,706)
362,038 - (1,375,744) - - (1,013,706) - (1,013,706)

1,810,188 4,766,854 1,732,464 (216,958) 4,389,156 12,481,704 - 12,481,704

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

* The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these consolidated financial statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the

Companies Act, 2017.
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Chief Financial Officer

Dirextor
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 45
Finance cost paid
Profit received on bank deposits
Taxes paid
Gratuity paid 26.3.2
Net cash (used) in / generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred 9.3
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Discontinued operation of subsidiaries
Long-term investment made during the year
Long-term deposits paid
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liability obtained / (repaid) - net
Proceeds from issue of shares - net of transaction cost
Dividend paid
Payment of commercial paper
Proceeds from issue of commercial paper 30.3
Long-term finance obtained - net
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 46

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
(3,727,775) 2,388,667
(1,114,401) (555,825)

383,267 257,471
(3,344,269) (788,425)
(16,698) (25,825)
(7,819,876) 1,276,063
(6,068,659) (5,693,170)
768,247 214,099

- (4,621)

- (303,000)

(216,235) (42,655)
(5,516,647) (5,829,347)
802,226 (131,977)

- 3,937,384

(758,958) (745,592)
(1,500,000) -
2,399,714 1,446,204
575,056 340,814
1,518,038 4,846,833
(11,818,485) 293,549
4,178,831 3,885,282
(7,639,654) 4,178,831

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

* The Chief Executive Officer is for the time being not available in Pakistan therefore, these consolidated financial

statements have been signed by two directors as required by section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Group consists of:

Name of the Company Status in the Group Percentage of holding
Hascol Petroleum Limited Holding Company -
Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company 100%

Hascol Petroleum Limited

Hascol Petroleum Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on March 28, 2001. On
September 12, 2007 the Company was converted into a public unlisted company and on May 12, 2014 the Company got
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is situated at Suite No. 105-106, The Forum,
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.

The Company is engaged in the business of procurement, storage and marketing of petroleum, chemicals, LPG and
related products. The Company obtained oil marketing license from Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources in
the year 2005 and acquired assets of LPG licensed company in the year 2018.

Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited

Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company) was incorporated on December 27, 2001 as a
private limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Subsidiary Company
is situated at Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi. Principal activity of the Subsidiary
Company was marketing and selling imported and locally produced automobile and industrial lubricants. The company
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hascol Petroleum Limited.

The Subsidiary Company has ceased to be as a going concern and therefore the financial statements of the Subsidiary
Company has not been prepared on a going concern basis.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESS OF BUSINESS UNITS

The business unit of the Company include the following:

Business Unit Geographical Location

Head Office Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi.

Regional marketing, sales offices and invoicing points are located across the country. The Company owns retail
operation sites and sites operated through dealers across Pakistan and Northern areas, the details of which is
impracticable to disclose in these financial statements are required as required under Paragraph 1 (i) of Part | of the
4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Considering the nature of the company’s business, the information regarding production has no relevance whereas
product storage capacities at company’s facilities during the current year is detailed below:

Storage Capacity
Metric Tonnes

Description HSD PMG

Daulatpur depot 4,000 2,250
Shikarpur depot 16,200 2,700
Mehmoodkot depot 9,000 4,500
Machike depot 6,000 3,500
Sahiwal depot 6,000 3,500
Kotlajam depot 5,100 4,500
Thalliyan depot 8,000 12,000

Hascol Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Hascol Annual Report

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Issuance of Bonus Shares

During the year the Company issued bonus shares in the proportion of one share for every four shares held i.e. 25%.
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

During the year the Company carried out revaluation of its property, plant and equipment which resulted in better
reflection of its investment in network and infrastructure.

Acquisition of LPG Plant

The Company acquired liquified petroleum gas (LPG) plant from Marshal Gas (Pvt) Limited. The Company intends
to commence its LPG Operations immediately upon receipt of the NOC from the Competition Commission of
Pakistan.

Exchange Loss - net

Due to devaluation of Pak Rupee during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company suffered exchange
loss amounting to Rs. 3.9 billion for liabilities denominated in US Dollar.

Hascol Terminals Limited - Completion

During the year 232,760 cubic meter capacity came online as a result of completion of terminal at Port Qasim.
Petrochemical Business Unit

The Company further expanded its product range by adding chemicals business unit.

Applicability of Companies Act, 2017

Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 amounts reported for the previous year are restated. For detailed
information refer note 6.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements includes the financial statement of Holding Company and its subsidiary,
comprising together ‘the Group’. Control is achieved when the Holding Company:

- has a power over the investee;
- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Holding Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controls listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed-off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Holding Company gains control until the date when the Holding Company
ceases to control the subsidiary. These consolidated financial statements include Hascol Petroleum Limited and
all companies in which it directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns of holds more than 50% of the voting
securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors (the Subsidiary).

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Holding
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Holding Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the
carrying value of the investment held by the Holding Company has been eliminated against corresponding Holding
in subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changesin the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Holding Company.

Loss of control

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at
the date of acquisition.

The Group treats transaction with non-controlling interest as that do not results in loss of control as an equity transaction
with owner of the Group. The difference between the fair value of consideration paid and relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gain and loss on disposal to non-controlling interest
is recorded directly in equity.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations;
or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to
be classified as held-for-sale.
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4.1

4.2
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Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprises of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies
Act, 2017 and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. In case the requirements differ,
the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.

These consolidated financial statements are being submitted to the shareholders as required
under section 223 of the Companies Act 2017 and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Regulations.

The Act has also brought certain changes with regard to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements. These changes, amongst others, included change in respect of presentation and measurement
of surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment as fully explained in note 8.1.2 of these consolidated
financial statements, change in nomenclature of primary statements. Further, the disclosure requirements
contained in the fourth schedule of the Act have been revised, resulting in elimination of duplicative disclosure
with the IFRS disclosure requirements and incorporation of additional amended disclosures including, but not
limited to, particulars of immovable assets of the Group (refer note 9.1), management assessment of sufficiency
of tax provision in the consolidated financial statements (refer note 41.1), change in threshold for identification of
executives (refer note 43), additional disclosure requirements for related parties (refer note 44) etc.

Accounting convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

Iltems Measurement basis

Available for sale investment Fair value

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Property, plant and equipment Revalued amounts

Monetary Liabilities Spot exchange rates
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42.1 In these consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, all the transactions
have been accounted for on an accrual basis.

4.3 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

4.4 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

4.4.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company
and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of
IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Amendments Effective Date

- IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transaction (Amendments to IFRS 2) January 1, 2018
- IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 January 1, 2018
- IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration January 1, 2018

Adoption of the above revisions, amendments and interpretations of the standards have no significant effect on the
amounts for the year ended December 31, 2018.

4.4.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on January 01, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on
the Company’s financial reporting and operations and are therefore not presented here.

4.4.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective
and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the
dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective Date
Standards and amendment (Annual Periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) Postponed
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 1,2018
- IFRS 16 - Leases January 1, 2019
- IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments January 1, 2019
- 1AS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28) January 1, 2019
- Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
- IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation January 1, 2019

(Amendments to IFRS 9)
- IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement
(Amendments to IAS 19) January 1, 2019
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Effective Date
Standards and amendment (Annual Periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 11 - Joint Venture - (Amendments to IFRS 11) January 1, 2019
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and

Measurement July 1, 2019
- IAS 1/ 1AS 8 - Definition of Material

(Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 1, 2020
- Amendments to References to the Conceptual

Framework in IFRS Standards January 1, 2020
- IFRS 3 - IFRS Definition of a business

(Amendments to IFRS 3) January 1, 2020

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations to the
published standards on the consolidated financial statements.

444 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
SECP

Following new standards have been issued by the IASB which are yet to be notified by SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

Standards IASB Effective Date
(Annual Periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021
5 CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINITY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Accounting policies in respect of judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting
standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
estimates and assumptions with significant risk of material adjustments in the future period are included in the
following notes:

Note
a) Depreciation method, rates and useful life of operating fixed assets 8.1
b)  Revaluation of operating fixed assets 8.1.2
c)  Amortization method, rates and useful life of intangible assets 8.2
d)  Estimate of fair value of investments available for sale 8.3
e) Impairment of financial assets 8.3
f) Estimate of recoverable amount of investment in subsidiaries 8.10
g) Net realizable value of stock-in-trade 8.15
h)  Recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets 8.16
i) Provisions and contingencies 8.19
) Provision for taxation 8.23
k)  Provision for gratuity 8.25

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

During the year, the Company changed its accounting policy for the surplus on revaluation of operating fixed
assets, after enactment of the Companies Act, 2017, which has not carried forward requirement of disclosing the
surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets as a separate item below equity. Accordingly, in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard - IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’, surplus on revaluation
of operating fixed assets would now be presented within equity. The new accounting policy is explained in note
8.1.1.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS
8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’ and comparative figures have been restated.

The effect of the change is recognition and presentation of Rs. 4.389 billion for surplus on revaluation of Property,
plant and equipment previously presented below equity in the statement of financial position. There is no impact of
change in accounting policy on statement on profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows.

As previously | Adjustments | As restated
reported

Impact on statement of financial position
As at 01 January, 2017

Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (below equity) 1,142,880 (1,142,880) -

Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment (within equity) - 1,142,880 -

Impact on statement of changes in equity

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - - 1,142,880
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(Rupees in thousand)

As previously| Adjustments | As restated

reported

As at December 31, 2017
Surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment (below equity) 1,025,789  (1,025,789) -
Surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment (within equity) - 1,025,789 -
Impact on statement of changes in equity
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - - 1,025,789

CORRECTION OF ERRORS

The Company had not accounted for unclaimed / unpaid dividend before since the amount was transferred to a special
dividend account and was kept off balance sheet. As a consequence, Cash and bank balances and unclaimed/
unpaid dividend were understated. The error have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial
statement line item for prior periods. The following table summarise the impacts on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Impact of correction of error

As previously| Adjustments | As restated
reported

Consolidated financial statements
1 January 2017

Total assets
Cash and bank balances 7,821,070 8,764 7,829,834

Total Liabilities
Unclaimed dividend - 8,764 8,764

31 December 2017

Total assets
Cash and bank balances 9,628,057 107,926 9,735,983

Total Liabilities
Unclaimed dividend - 107,926 107.926

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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8.1 Property, plant and equipment

8.1.1 Initial recognition

@)

Operating fixed assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at cost.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Operating fixed assets under
construction are disclosed as capital work in progress (CWIP). The cost of self constructed assets includes the
cost of materials, fixed labour and any other cost directly attributable to bringing the asset into service for its
intended use including, where applicable, the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

The assets which are available for intended use are capitalized as operating fixed assets. While assets under
construction are capitalized to CWIP.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited
to the asset revaluation surplus in equity. However, the increase is recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously. A decrease as a result
of revaluation is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, however decrease is recorded in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance entry in revaluation
surplus is respect of the same assets.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revaluation of carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation based on asset’s
original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal,
any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit.

The Company accounts for property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases by recording the
assets and the related liabilities. These amounts are determined at the inception of lease, on the basis of the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges
are allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding
liability.

Capital work-in-progress
CWIP is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure in connection with specific

assets incurred during construction/installation period are carried to CWIP. These expenditures are transferred
to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for intended use.

8.1.2 Measurement subsequent to initial recognition

@)

Carried using revaluation model

Following classes of operating owned assets are subsequently measured under revaluation model (i.e. fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses).

- Land lease hold;

- Building on lease hold land;

- Tanks and pipelines;

- Dispensing pumps;

- Plant and machinery;

- Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment.;
- Furniture, office equipment and other assets; and
- Computer auxiliaries

Fair value is determined by external professional valuers with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.
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(b) Carried using cost model

Fixed assets other than those mentioned above are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to consolidated profit and loss account by applying the straight-
line method whereby the cost/revalued amount of operating fixed assets is charged off over its remaining useful life.
Same basis and estimates for depreciation are applied to owned assets and assets acquired under finance lease.

Depreciation is charged on straight line method from the month in which an asset is available for intended use, while
no depreciation is charged from the month in which the asset is disposed off. Depreciation is provided at the rates
as disclosed in note 8.1.

Depreciation method, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting year and adjusted, if applicable.
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gain and loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is included in the consolidated profit and loss account in the year
of disposal.

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became
applicable for the first time for the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the Company has also changed its accounting policy relating to
presentation and measurement of surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. The above change
in the accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and comparative information have been restated
in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS) —16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment” and IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. Due to the above
change in accounting policy, the Company has presented its statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period i.e., January 01, 2017, and related notes in accordance with requirement of
IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised) (IAS 1).

Had the accounting policy not been changed, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment would have
been shown as a separate line item (below equity in the statement of financial position) amounting to Rs. 4,389 billion
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

8.2 Intangible assets - computer software

These are recorded initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight
line method.

Amortization on addition and deletion of intangible assets is charged in proportion to the period of use. The useful

life and amortization method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the balance sheet date. Intangible assets
having indefinite useful life are not amortized and stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
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8.3

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial Assets
Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:

¢ loans and receivables, and
e available for sale.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The loan and
receivables includes trade debts, advances, deposits, markup or profit accrued, other receivables and cash and
bank balances.

Available for sale

Available for sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Listed equity securities held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company also have investments in unlisted shares that are not
traded in an active market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in market rate of the equity
securities and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in consolidated profit or loss account. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized in consolidated other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of fair value reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognize in consolidated comprehensive income is reclassified to
consolidated profit and loss account.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in consolidated profit and loss account when the Company’s right
to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Hascol Annual Report 127




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Impairment

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or

¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognized in consolidated profit and loss account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through consolidated profit and loss account to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in consolidated profit and loss
account are not reversed through consolidated profit and loss account. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income . In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through consolidated profit and loss account if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred assets, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

On derecognition of a financial assets in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
consolidated other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in consolidated profit and loss
account.

On derecognition of financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to re-purchase
part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continue to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in consolidated other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities
Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. All interest-related charges, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported
in consolidated profit and loss account are included within finance costs.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in consolidated profit and loss account.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to off-set the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definition of a financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the issue of ordinary share are recognized as deduction from equity.

Share premium reserves

Share premium is recorded on issue of shares in accordance with the requirements of section 83 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996 amendment pursuant of S.R.O 34 (1)/2016 dated
19th January 2016. The premium is available for use as per section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Dividend distribution

Final dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated balance sheet
in the period in which the dividends are approved, while interim dividend distributions are recognized in the period
in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors. However, if these are approved after the reporting
period but before the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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8.9 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

8.10 Investment in subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the entity. The Company control an investee when the Company is exposed or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect the return through its power
over the investee. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
are taken into account.

Investment in subsidiary company is initially stated at cost. At subsequent reporting date recoverable amounts are
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted accordingly.

8.11 Investment in associate

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but also neither has control nor joint control over those policies.

When necessary the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with 1AS-36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS-36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Company transacts with an associate profit and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Company.

8.12 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the
effective interest method Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are
added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

8.13 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates fair value, and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade debts and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to
collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
trade debt is impaired. The amount of provision is charged to consolidated profit and loss account. Trade debts and other
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency are
added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.

8.14 Advance and deposits

These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful balances, if any. Deposits represent security deposits from dealers by
virtue of agreement and are interest free. These are repayable on cancellation on dealership contract with dealers.
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8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is determined as follows:
- Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
- The cost of stock in trade is determined on moving weighted average basis.

Provision is made for obsolete/slow moving stocks where necessary and recognized in the consolidated profit and loss
account. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling value price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs necessary in order to make the sale.

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of non financial assets, are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized, as an expense in the consolidated profit and loss account, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and
value in use.

Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating
units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Term deposit receipts (TDRS)

These represent placement in TDRs with financial institution having tenure of one year.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposit, bank balances, short term
borrowings and other items of current assets and current liabilities which qualify as cash equivalent.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a
present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability. Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognized as liability in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Commitment
Commitments are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements at committed amount.

Leases

Finance leases

Leases in terms of which the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Assets obtained under finance lease are accounted for in accordance with policy stated in note 7.1.
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8.22

8.23
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The related rental obligations, net of finance costs are classified as current and long term depending upon the timing of
the payment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the balance
outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to consolidated profit and loss account over the lease term.

Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of lease. In the event lease incentives
are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis except where another systematic basis
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit from the
leased assets are consumed.

ljarah

Leased assets which are obtained under ljarah agreement are not recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet and are treated as operating lease based on IFAS 2 issued by the ICAP and notified by SECP vide S.R.O.43(1) /
2007 dated 22 May 2007. Ujrah payments made under an ljarah are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the ljarah term unless another systematic basis is representative of time pattern of the user’s
benefit even if the payment are not on that basis.

Foreign currency translations

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted into
Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to
the consolidated profit and loss account. At the end of each reporting period, monetary amount denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Taxation

Taxation for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is recognized in the consolidated profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized outside consolidated profit and loss account (whether in
consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in equity), if any, in which case the tax amounts are recognized
outside consolidated profit and loss account.

- Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of prior years.

- Deferred

Deferred tax is provided for using the consolidated balance sheet method providing the temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized only
to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available and credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on
the tax rates that have been enacted. The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken
by the taxation authorities.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or
charged to equity or statement of other comprehensive income, in which case it is included in equity or statement of
other comprehensive income as the case may be.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable on the
following basis:

Operating revenue

- Sales are recorded when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customers
which coincides with dispatch of goods to customers.

- Non-fuel retail income and other revenue (including license fee) is recognized on an accrual basis.

- Handling, storage and other services income is recognized when the services have been rendered.

Other income

- Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established.

- Return on bank deposits is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a timely basis by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

- Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amounts of
the leased assets and recognized on a straight line basis over the leased term.

Retirement and other service benefits

Unfunded gratuity scheme

The Company operates an unapproved and unfunded gratuity scheme covering of all its permanent employees who
have completed the qualifying period under the scheme. The scheme is administered by the trustees and contribution
therein are made in the accordance with actuarial recommendations.

The valuation in this regard is carried using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial
gain and losses are recognized in the consolidated other comprehensive income based on actuarial gain and losses.

The Company determine the net interest expense / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the year by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the net
defined benefit liability / (asset), taking into account and change in the net defined benefit liability / (asset) during the year
as result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense, current service cost and past service cost related
to defined benefit plans are recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Contributory provident fund

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. The contribution to the
fund is made by the Company as well as the employees at the rate of 5.72% percent of the basic salary.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as management that makes strategic decisions. The
management has determined that the Company has a single reportable segment as the Board of Directors view the
Company’s operations as one reportable segment.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm’s length price using the comparable
uncontrolled valuation method.
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9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
Capital work-in-progress
Office building 1,413,796 1,505,203
Tanks and pipelines 807,801 697,086
Pump building 316,206 435,325
Electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipment 456,270 304,894
Tank lorries 80,018 260,357
Advances to contractors 61,834 232,592
Dispensing pumps 156,146 160,087
Furniture, office equipment and other assets 239,304 155,567
Plant and machinery 650,910 25,697
Borrowing cost capitalized 9.3 249,984 22,035
Computer auxiliaries 15,532 12,479

9.4 4,447,801 3,811,322

During the year additions amounting to Rs. 6,068.6 million (2017: 5,693.17 million) have been made in capital work-
in-progress. This also includes borrowing cost capitalized during the year at rates ranging from 7.51% - 13.22%
(2017: 7.45% - 9.15%).

This include amount related to discontinued operations which are as follows;

2018 2017
Opening balance - 115,376
Additions during the year - 2,073,221
Transferred to operating assets = (11,103)
2,062,118
Assets of subsidiary disposed off - (2,177,494)

Closing balance = -

Due to large number of dealers it is impracticable to disclose the name of each person having possession of
operating fixed assets, as required under Paragraph 12 of Part Il of the 4th Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017.

Operating fixed assets held by dealers of retail outlets of the Company are tanks and pipelines dispensing pumps,
plant and machinery, electrical, mechanical and fire fighting equipments. These assets are not in possession of
the Company as these have been provided to dealers of retail outlets to facilitate them to promote and sell the
Company’s products.

In 2012, the Company carried out revaluation of petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued amount of
assets was Rs. 1,172 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amount to Rs. 387 million. In the year 2015
the Company carried out revaluation of depots and petrol pumps through an independent valuer. Revalued amount
of assets was Rs. 4,154 million, resulting in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 1,006 million. Further,
during 2018 the Company carried out revaluation through an independent valuation firm of all the operating fixed
assets except for vehicles & computer auxiliaries. Revalued amount of the assets were Rs. 14,009 million, resulting
in surplus (net of deferred tax) amounting to Rs. 3,550 million.
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9.7

9.8

9.9

Hascol Annual Report

(Rupees in thousand)

Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of the following assets in the consolidated balance sheet

would have been as follows:

Owned assets

Building on lease hold land:

- Land

- Office building

- Pump building

Tanks and pipelines

Dispensing units

Plant and machinery

Electrical mechanical and
fire fighting equipment

Furniture, office equipment
and other assets

Computers auxiliaries

Total owned assets

Leased assets

Pump building
Dispensing units

Plant and machinery
Tanks and pipelines
Electrical mechanical and
fire fighting equipment
Total leased assets

Total assets

Forced sale values of asset class:

Class of assets

Land

Building

Dispensing Pumps

Plant & machinery
Storage tanks & pipelines
Office Equipments
Furniture & Fixtures
Motors Cars / Vehicles

Accumulated

Written down value

cost depreciation 2018 2017

1,233,131 - 1,233,131 -
3,320,746 343,534 2,977,212 -
2,079,490 359,178 1,720,312 683,244
1,128,369 136,306 992,063 262,404
388,229 122,260 265,969 46,338
189,306 44,880 144,426 14,422
693,741 121,073 572,668 156,503
269,531 94,354 175,177 -
135,236 54,940 80,296 -
9,437,779 1,276,525 8,161,254 1,162,911
- - = 83,068
- - - 50,019
- - - 34,213

- - - 42,249

- - - 7,717

- - - 217,266
9,437,779 1,276,525 8,161,254 1,380,177
1,938,050

3,951,700

3,637,000

1,201,450

1,896,100

8,550

5,000

27,500

12,665,350

The level of hierarchy for the fair value disclosed fall in level 3 i.e., inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 3 that are unobservable either directly or indirecily.
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9.10

9.11

9.12

(Rupees in thousand)

The details of immovable fixed assets (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Description of location

Depots

Daulatpur depot
Kotlajam depot
Machike depot
Mehmood kot depot
Sahiwal depot
Marshal Gas depot

Others

Lubricant oil blending plant

LPG terminal

Metropolitan Corp Lahore

Head office

Addresses Total Area of
Land
Square Yards
Taluka Qazi Ahmed, District Shaheed Benazirabad 34,848
Kotlajam Dagar, Tehsil & District Bhakhar 29,040
Chak Dhantpura, Machike, District Sheikhupura 70,180
Qasba Gujrat, Tehsil Kot Addu, District Muzzafargarh 29,040
Pakpattan Road, Tehsil & District Sahiwal 29,040
Naclass No.213, Deh Konkar 14,520
Chemical Area, Eastern Industrial Zone, Port Qasim 29,040
Authority, Karachi.
North Western Industrial Zone, Port Qasim Authority 34,848
Shakeel Naseem Askari-1, Lahore 2,118
Suite No. 105-106, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton 386
Note 2018 2017

The depreciation charged for the year has been allocated

as follows:
Distribution and marketing expenses 36 946,426 486,087
Administrative expenses 37 30,916 23,476
977,342 509,563

During the year written down value of operating fixed assets that have been disposed-off amount to Rs.428.55
million (2017: Rs. 192.2 million). Details of operating fixed assets disposed off with WDV above Rs. 500,000 are

given below:
A lated Net book Sal : ) Mode of
Type No of Vehicles Cost ceumy a_ N cthoo ae Gain / (Loss) Particulars of buyers oaeo
depreciation value proceeds disposal
Motor cars
6 13,590 13,590 15,447 1,857  Askari Bank Limited Sale and lease back
6 13,590 13,590 15,447 1,857
Tank Lorries
10 39,963 - 39,963 43,621 3,658  Askari Bank Limited Sale and lease back
41 371,349 14,445 356,904 400,000 43,096 First Habib Modaraba Sale and lease back
15 19,306 1,213 18,093 20,500 2,407 Meezan Bank Limited Sale and lease back
66 430,618 15,658 414,960 464,121 49,161
2018 72 444,208 15,658 428,550 479,568 51,018
2017 25 195,338 3,169 192,169 212,828 20,659
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

10 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Computer software 2,565 -

Net book value at beginning of the year - -

Addition 2,608 -

Amortization charge for the year 37 (43) -

Net book value at the end of the year 10.1 2,565 -
10.1 Net book value

Cost 10,907 8,299

Accumulated amortization (8,342) (8,299)

Net book value 2,565 -

Rate of amortization - % 888 33.33
11 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in associated company

VAS LNG (Private) Limited (unquoted) 11.1 1,551 1,745

Available for sale investments

Pakistan Refinery Limited (quoted) - at fair value 11.2 955,814 1,521,518

Hascol Terminals Limited (unquoted) - at cost 11.3 375,000 375,000

1,332,365 1,898,263
11.1 Investment in associated company
2017 2016 Note 2018 2017
Number of shares Unquoted
300,002 300,002 VAS LNG (Private) Limited 11.1.1 1,551 1,745

11.1.1  The investment has been accounted for using equity method.

11.1.2  Shareholders of the Holding Company in the Annual General Meeting held on April 28, 2017 authorized investment
upto Rs. 300 million i.e. 30% of equity interest in the VAS LNG (Private) Limited. In the year 2017, investment made
by the Holding Company in VAS LNG (Private) Limited amounted to Rs. 3 million (2017: 3 million) representing 30%
(2017: 30%) equity stake. The Company holds 0.3 million ordinary shares (2017: 0.3 million) of Rs. 10 per share.
Details of investment is as follows:

(Unaudited) (Audited)
2018 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,745 -
Investment made during the year = 3,000
Share of loss for the period (194) (1,255)
Balance at the end of the year 1,551 1,745
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11.1.3

11.2

11.2.1

11.3

11.4

12

(Rupees in thousand)

Summarized aggregated financial information of the Group’s share in associated company is as follows:

2018 2017

Total accumulated losses 4,829 4,182
Total assets 6,317 6,904
Total liabilities (122) (63)
Advance against issue of shares (1,024) (1,024)

5171 5,817
% share in net assets 30% 30%
Total amount of net assets 1,551 1,745

Note Cost Unreallse_d Carrying
(loss)/gain value

Pakistan Refinery Limited
December 31, 2018 11.2.1 1,172,772 (216,958) 955,814
December 31, 2017 1,172,772 348,746 1,521,518

Investment in Pakistan Refinery Limited represents 13.72% (2017: 13.72%) equity stake which amounts to
43.25 million shares (2017: 43.25 million shares).

Investment in Hascol Terminals Limited amounts to Rs. 375 million (2018: Rs. 75 million) representing 15% (2017: 15%)
equity stake which amounts to 37.5 million shares (2017: 37.5 million shares) as at December 31, 2018. In the year
2017, the Holding Company subscribed to 30 million right shares at Rs. 10 each. These shares are not quoted on an
active market and have been carried at cost. Hascol Terminals Limited provides storage facilities for imported and locally
produced petroleum and related products. Due to change in ownership structure in 2017, the Holding Company lost
control of Hascol Terminal Limited and therefore it is no longer subsidiary of Hascol Petroleum Limited.

Investments in associated companies and undertakings have been made in accordance with the requirements of the
Act.

Note 2018 2017
LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Lease deposits 352,331 133,888
Less: current portion of lease deposits 16 (762) (794)
351,569 133,094
Deposits against:
- depots 126,267 107,144
- retail outlets 54,270 67,164
- others 15,666 24,135
196,203 198,443
547,772 331,537
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131

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.3.1
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials - lubricants 54,577 97,636
Finished goods
- fuels 13.1 21,227,881 16,624,943
- lubricants 464,802 298,577
- Petrochemicals 827,819 -
22,520,502 16,923,520
Stock in transit
- fuels - 1,509,777
- lubricants 40,224 26,173
40,224 1,535,950
22,615,303 18,557,106

Fuels include Rs. 6,114.41 million (2017: Rs. 3,620.17 million) of High Speed Diesel which has been maintained as
line fill necessary for the pipeline to operate.

Note 2018 2017
TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
- Secured 14.1 9,173,127 3,658,244
- Unsecured 4,379,108 7,859,974
13,552,235 11,518,218
Considered doubtful 14.2 85,749 849
13,637,984 11,519,067
Provision for impairment 14.3.1 (85,749) (849)
13,552,235 11,518,218

These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees, letter of credits and security deposits.

This includes receivable from Hascombe Lubricants (Private) Limited (subsidiary company) amounting to
Rs. 7.12 million (2017: Rs. 7.12 million).

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year outstanding
was Rs. 7.12 million.

Note 2018 2017
Movement of provision for impairment
Balance at the beginning of the year 849 849
Provisions made during the year 84,900 -
Balance at the end of the year 85,749 849
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
15 ADVANCES - considered good, unsecured
To employees:
- against expenses 28,169 46,023
- against salaries 20,071 63,755
Advances against purchase of shares 15.1 44,385 60,721
Suppliers 16,864 10,866
109,489 181,365
15.1 Advances against purchase of shares - related parties
Hascol Terminals Limited 40,000 57,685
Hascol Lubricants (Private) Limited 3,362 2,013
VAS LNG (Private) Limited 1,023 1,023
44,385 60,721
16 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
Current portion of lease deposits 12 762 794
Other deposits 6,636 2,477
7,398 3,271
Prepayments
- Rent 128,485 53,686
- Insurance and others 63,946 23,676
192,431 77,362
199,829 80,633
17 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Inland freight equalization margin receivable 2,792,259 2,019,113
Receivable against services rendered 17.1 22,069 53,346
Franchise income receivable - net 17.2 - 34,642
Receivable against regulatory duty 25,533 25,533
Receivable from oil marketing companies 17.3 - 9,073
Price differential claims 17.4 5,083 5,083
Others - 14,241
2,844,944 2,161,031
17.1 This represents amount receivable from Hascol Terminals Limited (an associated company) against services

rendered by the Company on account of business support services.
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017

Franchise income receivable - net
Movement in gross receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year 97,201 100,653
Received during the year (2,848) (3,452)
Balance at the end of the year 94,353 97,201
Movement of provision
Balance at the beginning of the year (62,559) (27,349)
Charged during the year 40 (31,794) (35,210)
Balance at the end of the year (94,353) (62,559)

17.2.1 = 34,642

This represents amount receivable from CNG dealers.

This represents amount receivable from various oil marketing companies on account of share of motor gasoline
imported on their behalf.

This represents amount receivable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) net of recovery as per fortnightly rates
declared by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources. The Company together with other oil marketing
companies is actively pursuing the matter with the concerned authorities for the early settlement of above claim. The
Company considers that the balance amount will be reimbursed by GoP in due course of time.

The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year outstanding
was Rs. 22.609 million.

Note 2018 2017
MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED
From conventional banks 86,904 54,366
From Islamic banks 5,814 3,032
92,718 57,398
TAXATION - NET
Sales tax refundable/(payable) 1,133,647 (609,883)
Income tax refundable/(payable) 137,161 (162,183)
1,270,808 (772,066)
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(Rupees in thousand)

Restated Restated
Note 2018 2017 2016
20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks:
in current accounts:
- Conventional banks 829,318 865,191 1,413,344
- Dividend account 362,674 107,926 8,764
- Islamic banks - 62,135 1,925
1,191,992 1,035,252 1,424,033
in saving accounts:
- Conventional banks 5,640,352 7,561,072 5,741,121
- Islamic banks 1,897,519 1,079,278 608,028
20.1 7,537,871 8,640,350 6,349,149
Cash in hand 9,584 837 1,729
8,739,447 9,676,439 7,774,911
Term deposit receipts 20.2&24.2 60,000 60,000 60,000
8,799,447 9,736,439 7,834,911

20.1 These carry mark-up ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% per annum (2017: 3.75% to 5.5% per annum).

20.2 This carry mark-up 5% per annum (2017: 5% per annum).

21 SHARE CAPITAL
21.1 Authorized share capital
2018 2017 Note 2018 2017

Number of shares

250,000,000 150,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 21.2 2,500,000 1,500,000
21.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
2018 2017

Number of shares

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully

89,540,000 89,540,000 L 895,400 895,400
paid in cash

1060000 1,060,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each for 21.3 10,600 10,600

consideration other than cash
9,966,000 9,966,000 Annual bonus @ 11% Dec 2014 99,660 99,660
20,113,200 20,113,200 Interim bonus @ 20% Jun 2015 201,132 201,132
24,135,840 24,135,840 Right issue @ 20% Sep 2017 241,358 241,358
36,203,760 - Bonus issue @ 25% Sep 2018 362,038 -
181,018,800 144,815,040 1,810,188 1,448,150

21.3 These were issued on December 8, 2004 for consultancy, feasibility study, travel and other expenses.

21.4 An associated company held 49,705,956 (2017: 37,468,365) shares which represents 27.46% (2017 : 25.87%) of

the equity stake of the Company.
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(Rupees in thousand)

215 The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The shareholders are
entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Note 2018 2017
22 RESERVES
Capital
Share premium 22.1 4,766,854 4,766,854
Surplus on re-measurement of available for sale investments (216,958) 322,589
4,549,896 5,089,443
Revenue
Unappropriated profit 1,732,464 2,700,180
6,282,360 7,789,623
221 The reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.
Note 2018 2017
23 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI)
Opening balance = 469,714
NCI contribution in share capital of subsidiary company 23.1 = -
Loss allocated to NCI - (26,903)
Net assets attributable to NCI = (26,903)
NCI contribution in advance against equity of subsidiary company = -
Disposal of non-controlling interest = (442,811)
Closing balance = -
231 Total comprehensive loss of the subsidiary company = (71,740)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to Owners of
the Holding Company - (44,837)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI - (26,903)

Cash (used in)/generated from:

- operating activities - -
- investing activities - -
- financing activities - -
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24

241

2411

24.1.2

2413

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
LONG TERM FINANCING - secured
Borrowings from conventional banks 2411 1,910,500 562,500
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions (NBFI) 24.1.2 631,290 1,013,769
Sukuk certificates 24.1.3 1,280,908 1,671,373
3,822,698 3,247,642
Current portion of long term financing
Borrowings from conventional banks 444 938 225,000
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions 351,910 382,479
Sukuk certificates 400,000 400,000
31 (1,196,848) (1,007,479)
Non - current portion of long term financing 2,625,850 2,240,163
Terms and conditions of borrowings are as follows
Number of
Particulars Note installments and Crace bate offinal Markup rate per annum Installment 2018 2017
period repayment amount
commencement month
Borrowings from conventional banks
First Women Bank Limited 242 36 monthly Nil March 28, 2019 six month Kibor + 1.3% 8,333 25,000 125,000
Under DF scheme March-16 payable monthly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-1 24.3 16 quarterly 1year May 24, 2021 three month Kibor + 2.5% 31,250 312,500 437,500
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-2 24.4 16 quarterly 1year March 27, 2023 three month Kibor + 1.5% 64,688 1,035,000 -
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
National Bank of Pakistan Loan-3 245 16 quarterly 1year March 29, 2023 three month Kibor + 1.5% 33,625 538,000 -
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable quarterly
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions
Pak China Investment Company Limited 24.6 12 quarterly Nil February 29, 2020  three month Kibor + 2.25% 41,667 208,333 375,000
Under LTF scheme February-17 payable quarterly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 1 247 42 monthly 6 months November 19, 2018  six month Kibor + 3% 950 - 10,450
Under LTF scheme December-14 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 2 247 42 monthly 6 months  February 3, 2019 six month Kibor + 3% 1,431 2,862 20,033
Under LTF scheme March-15 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 3 247 42 monthly 6 months  May 19, 2019 six month Kibor + 3% 2,190 10,952 37,238
Under LTF scheme June-15 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 4 24.8 42 monthly 6 months  April 4, 2020 six month Kibor + 2.5% 1,286 20,571 36,000
Under LTF scheme May-16 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 5 248 42 monthly 6 months  August 19, 2020 six month Kibor + 2.5% 1,095 21,905 35,048
Under LTF scheme September-16 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 6 249 42 monthly 6 months  June 23, 2021 six month Kibor + 2.5% 2,381 71,429 100,000
Under LTF scheme June-17 payable monthly
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited Loan 7 24.10 42 monthly 6 months  July 18, 2021 six month Kibor + 2.5% 9,524 295,238 400,000
Under LTF scheme July-17 payable monthly
Sukuk certificates 24.11 20 quarterly 1year January 5, 2022 three month Kibor + 1.5% 100,000 1,280,908 1,671,373
January-16 payable quarterly
3,822,698 3,247,642

Hascol Annual Report

145




24.2

24.3

24.4

24.5

24.6

24.7

24.8

24.9

24.10

24.11

Hascol Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

This represents demand finance facility from First Women Bank Limited for construction of retail outlets which
is secured against pledge of TDR of Rs. 60 million, Pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited shares at 40% margin
and personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).

This represents term loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Mehmood
Kot - Muzaffar Garh. The facility is secured against exclusive charge /mortgage of Rs. 666.67 million over the entire
land and building, installation and machinery of the storage depot, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan
(Chairman), post-dated cheques covering facility amount and corporate guarantee of M/s Fossil Energy (Private)
Limited and M/s Marshal Gas (Private) Limited.

This represents term finance facility from National Bank of Pakistan for construction of storage depot at Thaliyan
for the future expansion plans and working capital requirements of the Company which is secured against first pari
passu charge over the Company’s entire fixed assets, excluding land & building, situated at Thaliyan with 25%
margin amounting to Rs. 350 million, with personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman), corporate
guarantee from Fossil Energy Pvt. Ltd and Marshal Gas Pvt. Ltd. and a post dated cheque covering the facility
obtained by the Company.

This represents term finance facility from National Bank of Pakistan (Kolta Jam) for the future expansion plans and
working capital requirements of the Company which is secured against first pari passu charge over the Company’s
land & building, Plant & Equipment, installations and equipment of the storage depot situated at the Kolta Jam site
with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 200 million, with personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman),
corporate guarantee from Fossil Energy Pvt. Ltd and Marshal Gas Pvt. Ltd. and a post dated cheque covering the
facility obtained by the Company.

This represents term finance facility from Pak China Investment Company Limited for the future expansion plans
and working capital requirements of the Company which was secured against first pari passu charge over the
Company’s current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 666.67 million, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz
Hasan Khan (Chairman) and promissory note covering the charge amount to be obtained from the Company.

This represents two term finance facilities from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for establishment of
Daulatpur bulk oil depot. The facility limit were utilized in multiple tranches out of which one of the facility with limit
of Rs. 100 million was availed in two tranches, that is Rs. 39.9 million and Rs. 60.1 million. The other facility with a
limit of Rs. 100 million was availed in a single trench amounting to Rs. 92 million. The finance facilities were secured
against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant and machinery and equipment situated in Deh Kandah
Nandho with 25% margin.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for expansion of Daulatpur bulk
oil depot. The facility limit of Rs. 100 million was utilized in multiple tranches that is Rs. 54 million and Rs. 46 million
and facility was secured against first pari passu charge on the land, building, plant and machinery and equipment
locate at the Daulatpur Bulk Storage depot with 25% margin.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the expansion of Daulatpur
depot. The facility was secured against first pari passu charge on land, building, plant, machinery and equipment of
the Company situated at Daulatpur bulk oil depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

This represents term finance facility from Pak Oman Investment Company Limited for the establishment of Sahiwal
depot. The facility was secured against exclusive charge on land, building, plant, machinery and equipment of the
Company situated at Sahiwal depot with 25% margin maintained all times.

Note 2018 2017
Sukuk certificates - gross amount 24111 1,300,000 1,700,000
Issuance cost
Balance at the beginning of the year (28,627) (38,179)
Charged to profit and loss 9,535 9,552
Balance at the end of the year (19,092) (28,627)
Sukuk certificates - net amount 1,280,908 1,671,373
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24.11.1 This represents rated and secured privately placed long term Islamic certificates (Sukuk) amounting to Rs. 2,000
million, issued to meet working capital requirements and future expansion plans of the Company. Summit Bank
Limited was the lead financial advisor and arranger while Meezan Bank Limited is acting as Shari’ah structuring
advisor for the Sukuk. The facility is secured against first pari-passu charge over specific depots and retail outlets of
the Company inclusive of 25% margin.

Note 2018 2017
25 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASE
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,290,367 488,141
Less: current portion 31 (274,374) (110,538)
Non current portion 1,015,993 377,603
25.1 The Company has entered into lease agreements with various leasing companies for lease of items of plant and

machinery and other assets. Minimum lease payments, which are payable by the year 2022, have been discounted
by using financing rates ranging from 6 month KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75% (2017 : 6 month
KIBOR plus 1.6% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.75%). Title to the assets acquired under the leasing arrangements are
transferable to the Company upon payment of entire lease obligations.

25.2 The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the year in which these payments will
become due are as follows:

Note 2018 2017

Not later than one year 382,749 139,221
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,171,912 411,689
Total future minimum lease payments 1,554,661 550,910
Finance charge allocated to future years (264,294) (62,769)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,290,367 488,141
Not later than one year (274,374) (110,538)
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,015,993 377,603

26 DEFERRED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 26.1 = 524,875
Deferred taxation - net 26.2 680,707 699,422
Deferred liability - gratuity 26.3 250,593 188,825
931,300 1,413,122

26.1 Other liabilities

Payable to MENA Energy DMCC 31 1,320,120 1,049,750
Current portion 26.1.1 (1,320,120) (524,875)
= 524,875

26.1.1  This amount pertains to provision recorded against claim of MENA Energy DMCC against out of court settlement
of an ongoing litigation dispute in the English Commercial Court, London between MENA Energy DMCC and the
Company, based on advice and recommendation of the Solicitors and Senior Counsel representing the Company
in the litigation. The settlement involves the Company agreeing, subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP) approval,
to pay the settlement amount over a period of 18 (eighteen) months in four equal installments of USD 2,375,000
each on 19th May 2018, 19th July 2018, 19th January 2019 and 19th July 2019. However, the approval from SBP is
pending, due to which the whole amount is outstanding as at December 31, 2018.
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DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
This comprises the following:

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of :
Accelerated depreciation

Assets under finance lease

Revaluation of operating fixed assets

Surplus on remeasurement on available for sale investment

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of :
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Exchange loss

Provision for:

- provision investments in subsidiary

- other liabilities

- retirement benefits

- doubtful trade debts

- franchise income

Turnover tax

Movement in deferred tax (liability)/ assets

Balance at the beginning of the year

Deferred tax expense

- through consolidated profit and loss account

- through consolidated other comprehensive loss
- direct adjusted from revaluation

Balance at the end of the year

DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
(673,552 (826,625)
(106,526) (160,068)
(1,555,453) (431,061)
- (26,156)
356,942 146,442
102,939 92,461
8,569 9,181
290,383 314,925
69,417 56,648
24,728 2,368
26,100 18,768
775,746 103,695
26.2.1 (680,707) (699,422)
(699,422) (408,790)
874,662 (362,430)
34,289 71,798
(890,236) -
(680,707) (699,422)

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees who have completed the employment period
of 5 years. Provision is created for the benefit of the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuations. Number of eligible

employees covered in scheme are 390 (2017: 298).

The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme as at December 31, 2018 was carried out using the projected unit credit
method, details of which as per the actuarial valuation are as follows:
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26.3.1

26.3.2

26.3.3

26.3.4

Deferred liability - gratuity

Movement in liability recognized in consolidated
balance sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation as
at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets

Balance sheet liability

Movement in liability recognized in consolidated
balance sheet

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: charge for the year

Less: payments to outgoing employees

Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Movement in present value of the defined benefit
obligation

Opening balance

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid during the year

Remeasurement of actuarial losses - net of tax
Impact of deferred tax

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Expense recognized in the consolidated
profit and loss account

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

Expense recognized in consolidated profit and loss account

Note

26.3.1

26.3.2

26.3.4

39

37.1

39

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
250,593 188,825
250,593 188,825
250,593 188,825
188,825 135,791

49,418 35,261
(16,698) (25,825)
29,048 43,598
250,593 188,825
188,825 135,791
34,275 24,131

. 248

15,143 10,882
(16,698) (25,825)
221,545 145,227
20,915 30,519
8,133 13,079
29,048 43,598
250,593 188,825
34,275 24,131

- 248

15,143 10,882
49,418 35,261
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2018 2017
26.3.5 Remeasurement recognized in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement of actuarial losses on defined benefit

liability - net of tax 29,680 30,519

26.3.6  Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Split by vested / non - vested
(i) Vested benefits 186,052 148,834
(i) Non-vested benefits 63,335 39,991
Split by benefits earned to date
(i) Present value of guaranteed benefits 95,407 100,706
(i) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase 153,980 86,281
Expected distribution of timing of benefit payments

time in years
Within first year from the end of financial year 19,138 17,151
Within second years from the end of financial year 25,320 26,209
Within third years from the end of financial year 27,357 9,718
Within fourth years from the end of financial year 22,897 28,546
Within five years from the end of financial year 32,031 14,080
Within six to ten years from the end of financial year 413,320 218,106
Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on

present value of defined benefit obligation
Discount rate +1% 228,839 171,406
Discount rate -1% 273,277 205,229
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 274,255 205,997
Expected rate of salary increase -1% 227,657 170,475
Maturity profile of present value of defined benefit obligation 2018 2017
Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit
obligation (time in years) 8.86 8.99
Key statistics
Average age (time in years) 42.59 42.46
Average service (time in years) 4.85 5.36
Average entry age (time in years) 37.74 37.10
Retirement assumption age (time in years) 60 60

SLIC SLIC

Mortality rates (2001-05)-1 (2001-05)-1

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).
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26.3.7 Historical information of staff retirement benefits
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Present value of gratuity 250,593 188,825 135,791 99,090 71,057

26.3.8  The expected gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2018 works out to be Rs. 49.418 million.
26.3.9 Actuarial assumptions

The following significant assumptions were used in the valuation carried out at the balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method:

2018 2017
% per annum
- Expected long-term rate of increase in salary level 13.25 7.75
- Discount rate 13.25 7.75
2018 2017

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 271 25,004,964 25,112,678
Advance from customers 4,278,366 4,608,668
Payable to cartage contractors 3,348,014 3,054,943
Dealers' and customers' security deposits 27.2 309,905 254,680
Accrued liabilities 13,838 12,895
Other liabilities 1,577,315 1,279,184
34,532,402 34,323,048
27.1 This includes Rs 14,141 million (2017: Rs. 13,609 million) amount payable to M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated
company).
27.2 The security deposits are non-interest bearing and are refundable on termination of contracts.
2018 2017
28 UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Balance at beginning of the year 107,926 8,764
Add: dividend for the year 1,013,706 844,754
Less: payments during the year (758,958) (745,592)
Balance at end of the year 362,674 107,926
29 MARK - UP AND PROFIT ACCRUED
Long-term financing 41,975 40,172
Short-term borrowings 263,216 71,400
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 6,785 2,431
Letter of credit = 3,255
311,976 117,258
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Note 2018 2017
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Borrowings from conventional banks - secured
National Bank of Pakistan - FATR 3,999,990 -
Habib Bank Limited - FATR 2,332,298 -
National Bank of Pakistan 1,491,001 1,500,000
United Bank Limited - FATR 891,716 -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 500,000 -
Bank of Punjab 499,729 500,000
Bank of Khyber 484,388 -
Samba Bank Limited 397,675 196,070
Sindh Bank Limited 395,623 132,463
First Women Bank Limited 349,841 -
Summit Bank Limited 334,272 44 515
Habib Bank Limited 146,134 -
United Bank Limited 56,434 24,560
30.1 11,879,101 2,397,608
Borrowings from Islamic bank - secured
Meezan Bank Limited 3,500,000 3,000,000
Bank Alfalah - Salam 500,000 -
30.1 4,000,000 3,000,000
Borrowings from Non Banking Financial Institutions
- secured
PAIR Investment Company Limited 500,000 -
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited = 100,000
30.2 500,000 100,000
Commercial paper - unsecured 30.3 2,498,365 1,447,091
18,877,466 6,944,699

These facilities were availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 6,500 million (2017: Rs. 7,700 million).
The rates of mark-up ranges from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25% (2017: 3 month KIBOR
plus 1.25% to 6 month KIBOR plus 2.25%). These arrangements are secured against hypothecation charge over the
Company’s present and future current assets with minimum 25% margin, pledge of Pakistan Refinery Limited shares,
with minimum 40% margin, personal guarantee of Mr. Mumtaz Hasan Khan (Chairman).

These loans have been obtained aggregating to Rs. 800 million (2017: Rs. 300 million). The rate of mark-up is 1
month KIBOR plus 1.8% (2017: 3 month KIBOR plus 1.8%). These are secured against hypothecation charge over
the Company’s present and future current assets.

Note 2018 2017
Movement in commercial paper
Discounted value 2,399,714 1,446,204
Unwinding of discount 98,651 887
Amortized cost 30.4 2,498,365 1,447,091

Hascol Annual Report

This represents rated, privately placed, Shari’'ah compliant, Commercial Paper (CP) amounting to Rs. 2,500 million
issued to meet the working capital requirements of the Company. Bank Islami Pakistan Limited was the lead financial
advisors and arrangers. The loan shall run for a period of one year covering two CP issues each having tenor of six
months. The disbursement of second CP issue shall be subject to minimum two days clean-up period after complete
adjustment of first CP issue. Instrument is unsecured, non-convertible and redeemable at maturity date in bullet
payment.
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32.1

32.2

(i)

(i)
(i)

(iv)

33

(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term financing 24 1,196,848 1,007,479
Current portion of deferred and other liabilities 26.1 1,320,120 524,875
Current portion of liabilities subject to finance lease 25 274,374 110,538
2,791,342 1,642,892

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

As per the deliberations of the main committee of the Oil Companies Advisory Committee (OCAC) held in their
meeting number MCM-168 dated September 20, 2007, the financial costs on outstanding Price Differential Claims
(PDCs) should be worked and billed to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) through OCAC by the Oil Marketing
Companies (OMCs) on a regular basis. Although the Company had billed Rs. 65.97 million to the GOP/ OCAC, the
management had not accounted for its impact in these consolidated financial statements as the inflow of economic
benefits, though probable, is not virtually certain.

Commitments
The facility for opening letters of credit acceptances as at December 31, 2018 amounted to Rs. 68,250 million (2017:

Rs. 45,425 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized as at that date was Rs. 6,433 million (2017: Rs. 14,752
million).

Note 2018 2017
Bank guarantees 350,268 350,268
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure contracted for
but not yet incurred are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment 1,029,427 978,418
Commitments for rental of assets under operating lease / ijarah
Not later than one year 479,942 262,484
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,719,780 913,557
Later than five years 2,795,313 1,709,781
4,995,035 2,885,822

SALES - NET
Gross sales inclusive of sales tax 276,107,357 215,924,271
Less: sales discount (503,243) (261,969)

275,604,114 215,662,302
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(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2018 2017
34 OTHER REVENUE
Owned tank lorries 663,248 316,408
Franchise fee 98,816 91,113
Joining fee for petrol pump operators 49,350 56,650
Non fuel retail and lubricants 25,297 36,289
836,711 500,460
35 COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD

Opening stock of lubricants, raw and packing materials 422,386 394,986
Raw and packing materials purchased 1,041,273 1,080,201

Less: closing stock of lubricants, raw and
packing materials 13 (559,603) (422,386)
Lubricants, raw and packing materials consumed 904,056 1,052,801
Opening stock - fuel 18,134,720 16,082,682
Fuel purchased 35.1 196,726,031 137,104,662
Storage and handling charges 728,634 586,673
Duties and levies 35.2 29,729,741 30,158,559
Less: closing stock - fuel & petrochemical 13 (22,055,700) (18,134,720)
223,263,426 165,797,856
224,167,482 166,850,657

35.1

35.2

154

This includes fuel purchased from local refineries and imports. Imports comprise 68% (2017: 79%) of total purchases
from M/s Vitol Dubai Limited (an associated company).

Duties and levies

Petroleum development levy
Inland freight equalization margin

Freight
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Note

2018 2017

21,184,584 21,768,506
6,015,598 5,548,169
2,529,559 2,841,884

29,729,741 30,158,559
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36

36.1

36.2

37

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Depreciation

Rent, rates and taxes

Fuel and power

Traveling and conveyance

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Commission

Advertising and publicity

Ujrah payments

Royalty

Printing, communication and stationery
Fees and subscription

Legal and professional charges

37.1
9.11

36.1

36.2

(Rupees in thousand)

953,511 746,313
946,426 486,087
359,000 252,142
325,431 155,859
314,801 226,547
266,371 152,922
239,126 181,726
162,146 227,932
122,656 98,287
118,370 64,251
47,785 21,144
39,094 33,786
20,211 9,764
10,215 9,906
3,925,143 2,666,666

Total expense of fuel and power includes fuel expense of owned tank lorries Rs. 229.63 million (2017: Rs. 82.12 miillion).

Royalty charged in these financial statement pertains to FUCHS Oil Middle East Limited having registered office at
SAIF Zone, Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Legal and professional charges
Traveling and conveyance

Fee and subscription

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Depreciation

Printing, communication and stationery
Advertising and publicity

Donation

Fuel and power

Auditors' remuneration

Technical service fee

Amortization

Miscellaneous

Note

37.1

37.2

37.3

37.4

10

2018 2017
462,650 329,005
69,474 70,083
44,163 42,526
94,199 45,226
38,613 32,023
39,596 29,651
27,958 31,400
30,916 24,924
25,024 21,835
21,814 18,346
11,790 12,176
13,164 10,662
3,727 3,344
- 10,215
43 -
456 1,925
883,587 683,341
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(Rupees in thousand)

37.1 Salaries and other benefits relating to distribution and administrative expense include:

Note 2018 2017
- Gratuity 26.3.4 34,275 24,379
- Contribution to provident fund 29,834 22,212

37.2 This includes Shariah audit fee amounting to Rs. 0.7 million (2017: Rs. 0.7 million) relating to Sukuk.

37.3 Donation includes amount of Rs. 1.00 million (2017: Rs. 0.88 million) paid to Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust (LRBT), Mr.
Najmus Saquib Hameed, director of the Company, who is also Chief Executive Officer of LRBT. Further, names of donees to
whom donation amount is equivalent or exceeds Rupees 0.5 million are as follows:

2018 2017
Tehzib Ul Akhlaq Trust 1,500,000 600,000
Layton Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust (LRBT) 1,000,000 880,000
Karwan-e-Hayat 1,000,000 -
SOS Children's Villages Pakistan 2,500,000 2,500,000
One to many 2,040,000 -
Pakistan Association of the Blind 2,500,000 300,000
37.4 Auditors’ remuneration
Remuneration for the audit of Holding Company
Statutory audit 1,630 1,455
Certifications 672 600
Half yearly review 541 483
Out of pocket expenses 425 379
Consolidation 297 265
3,565 3,182
Remuneration for the audit of Subsidiaries
Statutory audit 137 137
Out of pocket expenses 25 25
162 162
3,727 3,344
38 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on bank deposits
- conventional banks 357,131 237,434
- Islamic banks 61,456 41,619
418,587 279,053
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 86,207 21,894
Sundries 10,347 7,466
Promotional marketing fee 8,458 7,497
Scrap sales 2,168 1,525
Rental income 1,575 2,818
Reversal of provision of Workers' Welfare Fund - 97,228
108,755 138,428
527,342 417,481
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39

40

40.1

41

41.1

FINANCE COST

Conventional

Short term borrowings

Letter of credit

Long term borrowings
Assets obtained under finance lease

Bank charges

Interest cost of gratuity scheme

Islamic

Short term borrowings

Letter of credit

Long term borrowings
Assets obtained under finance lease

Bank charges

OTHER EXPENSES

Provision against franchise income
Provision against doubtful debts
Provision against MENA Energy DMCC claim

Income tax penalty

Note

26.3.4

17.2

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
475,177 209,117
219,792 96,727

17,807 7,837
74,082 32,602
23,703 10,431
15,143 6,664
825,704 363,378
321,226 141,366
94,907 41,767
71,607 31,513
3,626 1,596
7,192 3,165
498,558 219,407
1,324,262 582,785
31,794 35,210
84,900 -

= 449,750

= 6,135
116,694 491,095

This represents amount of penalty paid to tax authorities in 2017 on account of failure to deduct withholding tax on
sales discount as per Division VIA part Ill of the first schedule of Income Tax Ordinance 2001. However, historically

the tax authorities have reversed this penalty subsegently.

TAXATION

Current
Prior
Deferred

2018 2017
1,081,640 764,662
237,761 130,359
(874,662) 362,430
444,739 1,257,451

Management of the Company has provided sufficient tax provision in the financial statements in accordance with
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Following is the comparison of tax provision as per accounts vis a vis tax assessment

for last three years:

Tax year 2018
Tax year 2017
Tax year 2016

Deemed
assessment

826,238
356,713
261,653

Provision

764,662
700,869
330,862
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41.2

42

43

43.1

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2017: 30%)
Tax effect on income under final tax regime
Reversal of deferred tax asset - net

Prior year tax

Other adjustments

Tax expense for the year

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit for the year from continued operations

Loss for the year from discontinued operations

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in thousand)

Earning / (loss) per share - basic
- continued operation (Rupees)

- discontinued operation (Rupees)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
651,070 2,585,542
188,810 775,663

32,962 64,239
(874,662) 362,430
237,761 130,359
859,632 (97,187)
444,503 1,235,504
206,331 1,328,091
- (71,740)
Restated

2018 2017

181,019 163,691
1.14 8.11
- (0.44)

There is no dilutive effect on basic earning per share as the Company has no potential ordinary shares

outstanding at year end.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2018 2017
Chief ) ) Chief Directors .

Executive Directors Executives Executive s *Executives

Director's fee - 20,100 - 13,400 -
Managerial remuneration 63,311 425,618 34,769 31,894 323,884
Cost of living allowance 5,943 47,291 3,863 3,544 40,088
Reimbursement of medical expenses 58 4,323 30,634 2,012 2,475 22,871
Bonus - 18,563 - 30,960
Retirement benefits 3,286 20,986 1,910 26,824 15,540
72,598 24,423 524,529 61,117 78,137 433,343

Number of persons 1 8 172 2 7 136

The Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with free use of Company maintained cars and
cellular connections. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer is provided with free security services in accordance

with the terms of employment.

*Comparative figures have been restated to reflect changes in the description of executives as per Companies Act,

2017.
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44

44.1

44.2

44.3

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties comprises of associated undertakings, directors, major shareholders, key management personnel,
entities over which the directors are able to exercise influence, entities under common directorship and staff

retirement fund.

Significant transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, are as follows:

Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship

Liaquat Noman
Vitol Dubai Limited
Clover Pakistan Limited

Hascol Terminals Limited

Hascombe Business Solutions

Marshal Gas

Balances with related parties

Associated companies

Hascol Terminals Limited

Hascol Lubricants (Private)

Limited

VAS LNG (Private) Limited

VAS LNG (Private) Limited

Hascol Terminals Limited

Nature of transaction

Consultancy services
Procurement
Procurement

Business support service
Procurement

Assets Procurement

Advance against issue of
shares

Advance against issue of
shares

Advance against issue of
shares
Investments

Investments

Related parties with no transaction or balances

Name

Relationship

Fossil Energy (Private) Limited Associated company

Percentage of
shareholding

2.20%
27.46%
N/A
N/A
N/A

6.44%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

(Rupees in thousand)

2018 2017
= 11,400
125,768,587 96,453,017
122,667 -
22,069 53,346
408,522 -
183,288 -
40,000 57,685
3,362 2,013
1,023 1,023
3,000 3,000
375,000 375,000

Percentage of shareholding

2018

10.66%

2017
10.45%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Rupees in thousand)

44.4 Following are the associated companies with whom the company had ended into transactions or have agreement/
agreements:
S.No Company Name Basic of Association

—_

Vitol Dubai Limited

2 Marshal Gas (Private) Limited
3 Hascol Terminals Limted
45 CASH (USED) IN / GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision against franchise income
Provision for gratuity

Provision for doubtful debts

Profit on bank deposits

(Reversal) / provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Provision against MENA energy DMCC
Exchange loss - unrealised

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Finance cost

Expense of discontinued operations

Loss on associate

Changes in working capital

45.1 Changes in working capital

Current assets

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances

Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Changes in working capital

46 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Less: term deposit receipt

Short-term borrowings
Add: commercial paper

Note

17.2
26.3.4

38

40

38
39

11.1.2
451

Note

20
20

30
30

Associated Company
Common Directorship
Common Directorship

2018 2017
651,070 2,585,542
977,385 511,011

31,794 35,210
34,275 35,261
84,900 -
(418,587) (279,053)
5 (97,228)
- 449,750
372,133 308,204
(86,207) (21,894)
1,324,262 582,785
- 70,292
194 1,255
(6,698,994) (1,792,468)
(3,727,775) 2,388,667
(4,058,197) (2,079,438)
(2,118,917) (3,646,937)
71,876 72,048
(119,196) (9,664)
(683,913) (1,016,278)
(6,908,347) (6,680,269)
209,353 4,887,801
(6,698,994) (1,792,468)
2018 2017
8,799,447 9,736,439
(60,000) (60,000)
8,739,447 9,676,439
(18,877,466) (6,944,699)
2,498,365 1,447,091
(16,379,101) (5,497,608)
(7,639,654) 4,178,831
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

47 OPERATING SEGMENTS
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

- Sales from petroleum products represents 99.13 % (2017: 99.2 %) of total revenues of the Company.
- Out of total sales of the Company 98.9 % (2017: 99.1 %) related to customers in Pakistan.
- All non-current assets of the Company as at 31 December, 2018 are located in Pakistan.

The Company sells its product to dealers, governments agencies and autonomous bodies, independent power
project and other corporate customers. Sales to ten major customers of the Company are around 43.09% during the
year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: 41.1%).

Note 2018 2017
48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per Balance sheet
Available for sale
Long term investments 11 1,330,814 1,896,518
At amortized cost
Deposits 555,170 334,808
Trade debts 14 13,552,235 11,518,218
Advances 15 81,320 135,342
Other receivables 17 2,844,944 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued 18 92,718 57,398
Cash and bank balances 20 8,799,447 9,736,439

25,925,834 23,943,236
Total financial assets 27,256,648 25,839,754
Financial liabilities as per Balance sheet
At amortized cost 24
Long-term financing 28 3,822,698 3,247,642
Unclaimed dividend 362,674 107,926
Other liabilities 1,320,120 1,049,750
Trade and other payables 27 34,518,564 34,310,153
Mark-up and profit accrued 29 311,976 117,258
Short-term borrowings 30 18,877,466 6,944,699
Total financial liabilities 59,213,498 45,777,428

49 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

a) Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the consolidated
balance sheet are as follows:
2018 2017

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

amount amount
Financial assets
Long term investments 1,330,814 1,330,814 1,896,518 1,896,518
Deposits 555,170 555,170 334,808 334,808
Trade debts 13,552,235 13,552,235 11,518,218 11,518,218
Advances 81,320 81,320 135,342 135,342
Other receivables 2,844,944 2,844,944 2,161,031 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued 92,718 92,718 57,398 57,398
Cash and bank balances 8,799,447 8,799,447 9,736,439 9,736,439

27,256,648 27,256,648 25,839,754 25,839,754
2018 2017

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

amount amount
Financial liability
Long-term financing 3,822,698 3,822,698 3,247,642 3,247,642
Unclaimed dividend 362,674 362,674 107,926 107,926
Other liabilities 1,320,120 1,320,120 1,049,750 1,049,750
Trade and other payables 34,518,564 34,518,564 34,310,153 34,310,153
Mark-up and profit accrued 311,976 311,976 117,258 117,258
Short-term borrowings 18,877,466 18,877,466 6,944,699 6,944,699

59,213,498 59,213,498 45,777,428 45,777,428
b) Valuation of financial instruments

The Company measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market.
Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data.

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
financial instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation techniques unless the instruments do
not have a market/ quoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Valuation techniques used by the Company include discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs used in
valuation techniques includes risk-free rates, bond and equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity and
equity index prices. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the
price of the financial instrument at the balance sheet date that would have been determined by market participants
acting at arm’s length.
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c)

Valuation models for valuing securities for which there is no active market requires significant unobservable inputs and
a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement
and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of

(Rupees in thousand)

expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount rates.

Financial assets

2018

Long term investments
2017

Long term investments

d) Non-financial assets

2018

Building on lease hold land

- Office and depots building

- Pump building

Tanks and pipelines

Dispensing pumps

Plant and machinery

Electrical, mechanical and fire
fighting equipment

Furniture, office equipment
and other assets

Computer auxiliaries

2017

Building on lease hold land
- Office and depots building
- Pump building

Tanks and pipelines
Dispensing pumps

Plant and machinery
Electrical, mechanical and fire
fighting equipment

Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
1,330,814 955,814 375,000 1,330,814
1,896,518 1,521,518 375,000 - 1,896,518
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
4,116,170 4,116,170 4,116,170
2,852,472 2,852,472 2,852,472
3,532,433 3,532,433 3,532,433
1,051,529 1,051,529 1,051,529
490,461 490,461 490,461
1,742,036 1,742,036 1,742,036
190,491 190,491 190,491
75,761 75,761 75,761
14,051,353 14,051,353 14,051,353
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
2,464,822 2,464,822 2,464,822
1,552,314 1,552,314 1,552,314
2,161,249 2,161,249 2,161,249
706,492 706,492 706,492
303,547 303,547 303,547
1,035,584 1,035,584 1,035,584
8,224,008 8,224,008 8,224,008
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50

50.1

50.1.1

Hascol Annual Report

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: Note
- Market risk 50.1.1
- Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 50.1.2
- Liquidity risk 50.1.3

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring any increase in risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board oversee how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures, and review the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company.

Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk,
interest rate risk and certain other price risks, which result from both its operating and investing activities. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range.
The market risk includes:

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange
rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The
Company imports petroleum product and is thus exposed to currency risk in respect to foreign creditors, which
at the year end amount to USD 102 million (2017: USD 129.67 million) having PKR equivalent amount of Rs.
14,188.63 million (2017: Rs. 13,333.70 million). The average rates applied during the year is Rs. 121.91 per USD
(2017: Rs. 107.73 per USD) and the spot rate as at December 31, 2018 is Rs. 138.69 per USD (2017: Rs. 110.50
per USD).

The Company manages its currency risk by close monitoring of currency markets. Under regulatory requirements,
the Company cannot hedge its currency risk exposure. Consequently, the Company recorded exchange loss
amounting to Rs. 3,903.04 million (2017: Rs. 795.77 million) during the year.

Sensitivity analysis
As at December 31, 2018, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD with all other

variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower/higher by Rs. 98.583 million (2017: Rs. 667
million).
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(Rupees in thousand)

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises due to long-term financing and short term borrowings.
At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company’s mark-up bearing financial instruments is
summarized as follows:

Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would effect on profit or loss before tax is
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates remain constant.

Profit and loss Equity
Cash flow sensitivity of 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps
variable rate instruments increase decrease increase decrease
(Expense) / income
As at December 31, 2018 (15,742) 15,742 (11,177) 11,177
As at December 31, 2017 (6,048) 6,048 (4,234) 4,234
(b) Interest / profit rate risk (continued)
Effective Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk Non-interest/profit bearing
yield/ . ) ) .
interest/profit Maturity Maturity Sub- Maturity Maturity Sub-
2018 up to one after one up to one after one Total
rate % Total Total
(Per annum) year year year year

Rupees. in '000

Financial assets (a)
Long term investments - - - - - 1,330,814 1,330,814 1,330,814
Deposits - - - - 7,398 547,772 555,170 555,170
Trade debts - - - - 13,552,235 - 13,552,235 13,552,235
Advances - - - - 81,320 - 81,320 81,320
Other receivables - - - - 2,844,944 - 2,844,944 2,844,944
Mark-up and profit accrued - - - - 92,718 - 92,718 92,718
Cash and bank balances 3.75-5.5 7,537,871 60,000 7,597,871 1,201,576 s 1,201,576 8,799,447
7,537,871 60,000 7,597,871 17,780,191 1,878,586 19,658,777 27,256,648

Financial liabilities (b)
Long term finances 7.95-10.15 1,196,848 2,625,850 3,822,698 - - 3,822,698
Unclaimed dividend - - - - 362,674 - 362,674 362,674
Other liabilities - - - - - 1,320,120 1,320,120 1,320,120
Trade and other payables - - - - 34,518,564 - 34,518,564 34,518,564
Mark-up and profit accrued - - - - 311,976 - 311,976 311,976
Short-term borrowings 7.39-9.12 18,877,466 - 18,877,466 - - - 18,877,466
20,074,314 2,625,850 22,700,164 35,193,214 1,320,120 36,513,334 59,213,498
On balance sheet gap (a)-(b) (12,536,443)  (2,565,850)  (15,102,293) (17,413,023) 558,466 (16,854,557) (31,956,850)
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(Rupees in thousand)

Effective Exposed to yield/interest/profit risk Non-interest/profit bearing
vield/ Maturit Maturit Maturit Maturit
interest/profit aturity aturity Sub- aturity aturity Sub-
2017 . up to one after one up to one after one Total
rate % Total Total
(Per annum) year year year year

Financial assets (a)
Long term investments - - - - - 1,896,518 1,896,518 1,896,518
Deposits - - - - 3,271 331,537 334,808 334,808
Trade debts - - - - 11,518,218 11,518,218 11,518,218
Advances - - - - 135,342 - 135,342 135,342
Other receivables - - - - 2,161,031 - 2,161,031 2,161,031
Mark-up and profit accrued - 57,398 - 57,398 57,398
Cash and bank balances 3.75-6 8,640,350 60,000 8,700,350 1,036,089 - 1,036,089 9,736,439

8,640,350 60,000 8,700,350 14,911,349 2,228,055 17,139,404 25,839,754
Financial liabilities (b)
Long term finances 7.95-10.15 1,007,479 2,240,163 3,247,642 - - - 3,247,642
Unclaimed dividend - - - - 107,926 - 107,926 107,926
Other liabilities - - - - 524,875 524,875 1,049,750 1,049,750
Trade and other payables - - - - 34,310,153 - 34,310,153 34,310,153
Mark-up accrued - - - - 117,258 - 117,258 117,258
Short-term borrowings 8.15-9.65 6,944,699 - 6,944,699 - - - 6,944,699

7,952,178 2,240,163 10,192,341 35,060,212 524,875 35,585,087 45,777,428
On balance sheet gap (a)-(b) 688,172 (2,180,163) (1,491,991) (20,148,863) 1,703,180 (18,445,683) (19,937,674)

(c) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the
market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuers, or factors affecting all or similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in
quoted equity securities amounting to Rs. 955.81 million (2017: Rs. 1,522 million) at the balance sheet date.

The Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing strict
discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.

The value of investment subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instance, based on quoted market price as of
the reporting date except for unquoted investments which are carried at cost. Market prices are subject to fluctuation
and consequently the amount realized as a result of subsequent sale of an investment may differ from the reported
market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a security may result from perceived changes in the underlying
economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investment and general market condition.
Furthermore, the amount realized in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the
security being sold.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarizes the Company’s equity price risk as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and shows the
effects of a hypothetical 30% increase and a 30% decrease in market prices as at the year end. The selected
hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Accordingly,
the sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indication of the effect on Company’s net assets of future
movement in the level of PSX 100 index.
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50.1.2

(Rupees in thousand)

Hypothetical

Estimated fair

value

Hypothetical
increase /

Hypothetical

increase /

Fair price change hypothetical (decrease) in (decrease) in
value 30% after change in  shareholders pofit / (loss)
price equity
2018 955,814 Increase 1,242,558 286,744 286,744
Decrease 669,070 (286,744) (286,744)
2017 1,521,518 Increase 1,977,973 456,455 456,455
Decrease 1,065,063 (456,455) (456,455)

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to the historical performance with no or some
defaults in recent history. The Company manages credit risk of receivables through the monitoring of credit exposures,

limiting transactions with specific customers and continuous assessment of credit worthiness of its customers.

The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

Long term investments
Deposits

Trade debts - unsecured
Advances

Other receivables

Mark-up and profit accrued
Bank balances

Aging analysis of trade debts:

Past due 1-30 days
Past due 31-90 days
Past due 91-180 days
Past due 181-365 days
Over 1 year

Over 5 years

Note 2018 2017
11 1,330,814 1,896,518
555,170 334,808
14 4,379,108 7,859,974
15 81,320 135,342
17 2,844,944 2,161,031
18 92,718 57,398
20 8,789,863 9,735,602
18,073,937 22,180,673
2018 2017
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
12,051,744 - 10,582,457 -
1,383,451 - 935,761 -
5,084 - - -
1,070 - - -
106,313 81,500 - -
7973 7,973 7,973 7,973
13,555,635 89,473 11,526,191 7,973
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(Rupees in thousand)
The credit risk for bank balances is considered to be negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks and

institutions with high quality external credit ratings. The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Islamic Banks Rating Agency Short term Long term
Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited PACRA A Al
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A+ Al
Meezan Bank Limited JCR- VIS AA+ A-1+
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A Al
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan JCR- VIS AA- A-1
Conventional banks

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Moody's A1 P-1
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank Al Falah Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank of Khyber PACRA A-1 A
Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
First Women Bank Limited PACRA A2 A-
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
SAMBA Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1 AA
Silk Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-2 A-
Sindh Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AA
Summit Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1 A-
Islamic Banks Rating Agency Short term Long term
United Bank Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
Pak China Investment Company Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AAA
Pak Oman Investment Company Limited JCR- VIS A-1+ AA+
PAIR Investment Company Limited PACRA Al+ AA

50.1.3  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors
the Company’s liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors
and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual
customers. The Company’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarized below:

Within one Over

year one year Total
2018
Long-term finances - secured 1,196,848 2,625,850 3,822,698
Other liabilities - 1,320,120 1,320,120
Trade and other payable 34,518,564 - 34,518,564
Unclaimed dividend 362,674 - 362,674
Mark-up accrued 311,976 - 311,976
Short-term running finances - secured 18,877,466 - 18,877,466

55,267,528 3,945,970 59,213,498
2017
Long term finances 1,007,479 2,240,163 3,247,642
Other liabilities 524,875 524,875 1,049,750
Trade and other payables 34,310,153 - 34,310,153
Mark-up accrued 117,258 - 117,258
Unclaimed dividend 107,926 - 107,926
Short-term borrowings 6,944,699 - 6,944,699

43,012,390 2,765,038 45,777,428
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(Rupees in thousand)

51 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market’s confidence
and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net
profit/(loss) after tax divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders subject to the availability of funds.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Note 2018 2017

Total interest bearing debt
Trade and other payables 23,990,531 10,680,482
Mark-up and profit accrued 27 34,531,147 34,321,373
Less: cash and bank balances 29 311,976 117,258
Excess of net cash over debt/ net debt 30 (8,799,447) (9,735,983)
Total shareholders' equity and revaluation surplus 50,034,207 35,383,130
Net equity 12,484,990 10,266,036

62,519,197 45,649,166
Gearing ratio 80.03% 77.51%

52 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND

The Company operates approved provident fund for its eligible employees as of 31 December, 2018. Details of
assets and investments of the fund is as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Size of fund - total assets (Rupees in '000) 122,179 99,071
Number of members 352 295
Cost of investments made (Rupees in '000) 121,826 101,727
Percentage of investments made 100% 103%
Fair value of investments (Rupees in '000) 52.1 121,576 100,695
52.1 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:
2018 2017
Investments Percentage of Investments Percentage of
(Rs in '000) investment investment
made made
Saving bank accounts 88,365 73 67,043 66
Regular income certificates 19,365 16 17,919 18
Mutual fund 13,846 11 15,733 16
121,576 100 100,695 100
52.2 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of Companies
Act, 2017 and applicable rules.
53 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed with reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to “All Shares Islamic Index”.
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Description

Loans and advances
Deposits

Segment revenue
Bank balances

Income on bank deposits

Gain/(loss) on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Dividend income

All sources of income

Exchange gain

Mark up paid on Islamic mode
of financing

Relationship with banks having
Islamic windows

Profits earned or interest paid on
any conventional loan or advance

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Rupees in thousand)

Explanation

Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 24 and 30.

Non-interest bearing as disclosed in Note 12 and 16.

Disclosed in note 47.

Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible arrangement
as disclosed in note 20.

Placed under interest arrangement and Shariah permissible arrangement
as disclosed in note 38.

Not applicable during the year.
Not applicable during the year.
Disclosed in note 33, 34 and 38.
Not applicable during the year.

Disclosed in note 39.

Following is the list of banks with which the Company has a relationship
with Islamic window of operations:

S.NO Names of Islamic bank

1 Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

MCB lIslamic Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan

a b~ wN

Disclosed in note 38 and 39.

2018 2017
Total number of employees as at year end 988 755
Average number of employees during the year 872 611

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on April 03, 2019 has proposed bonus issue @ 10% i.e. one share of
every ten shares held for the year ended December 31, 2018 for approval of the members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on April 29, 2018. These consolidated financial statements do not include the effect of the
proposed bonus issue which will be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending

December 31, 2019.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue on April 03, 2018 by the Board of Directors

of the Company.
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Form of Proxy
17" Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary

Hascol Petroleum Limited

The Forum, Suite No. 105-106, 1*! Floor
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton

Karachi

1/ We of
being

member(s) of Hascol Petroleum Limited and holder of ordinary shares as per

Share Register Folio No. and/or CDC Participant LD. No. and Sub Account

No. , hereby appoint

of

or failing him / her of

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my
/ our behalf at the 17" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 29" April 2019, and at any

adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hands / seal this day of April 2019.

Rs. 5/-
Revenue

Witness No.1
Stamp

Name
Address

CNIC

Signature
(Signature should agree with the
specimen signature required with
Witness No.2 the Company)
Name
Address

CNIC

Important

1. This proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the registered office of the Company at The Forum, Suite No. 105-106, 1*
Floor Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

2. Members are requested:

(a) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above; and
(b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.

For CDC account holder(s)/ corporate entities
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

i)  the proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be stated on the form;
ii)  attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form;
the proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting; and

corporate entities should produce a certified copy of the resolution pertinent of its board of directors’ meeting or a power of
attorney bearing signature of the nominee at the time of the Meeting, unless it has been provided earlier.
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Key features:

@3 Licensed Entlities Verification

e~ Scam meter*

o8 Jamapunji games”

B Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

JENRE PUNG 98 BN Nvasior
Fausmton rehabus of

’ \
‘® Seaunties ond Exchangn

2 W Commanion of Falastan

Jama

b o

s O lwuab'g.-)__-

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

4 Stock trading simulator

L
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U
&8

n
jamapunji.pk

(based on live feed from KSE)
Knowledge center

Risk profiler*

Financial calculator

Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

Jamapunji application for
mobile device

Online Quizzes

w
@jemapunji_pk
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